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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ESE £

Dear shareholders

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
am pleased to present to you the annual report of the Company and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the fifteen
months period from 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2021 (the "Period”).

As at 31 March 2021, the principal activities of the Group include:
(1) oil and liquefied chemical terminal representing the businesses of
leasing of oil and liquefied chemical terminal, together with its storage
and logistics facilities (the “Port and Storage Facilities”), and provision
of agency services on trading of oil and liquefied chemical products;
and (2) insurance brokerage service representing the business of
providing insurance brokerage service.

BUSINESS REVIEW

OIL AND LIQUEFIED CHEMICAL TERMINAL

Following all requisite licenses and regulatory approvals for operation
have been obtained, the Port and Storage Facilities located at
Dongying Port Economic Development Zone, Shandong Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") has achieved full-scale
operation in May 2018. The Group is entitled to receive full rental
income from the lessee (an independent third party) at RMB125
million per annum (including value-added tax). Starting from January
2021, the annual rental income has increased from RMB125 million
to RMB140 million until 31 March 2022 and will further increase to
RMB150 million with effect from 1 April 2022 until 19 May 2023
according to the Novated Port Lease Agreement (as defined below)
entered in December 2020. The increasing trend of rental income
provides an opportunity for the Group to expedite its recovery of
investment costs and delivers reasonable return to the Group.

As a result of the full operation of the Port and Storage Facilities,
during the Period, the Group recorded a revenue from continuing
operations of approximately HK$193 million (year ended 31 December
2019: HK$130 million), representing an increase of approximately
HK$63 million as compared to year 2019. The gross profit for the
Period increased by 49% to approximately HK$190 million (year ended
31 December 2019: HK$128 million).
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The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$59 million for the
Period (year ended 31 December 2019: HK$47 million), which is mainly
attributable to the profit generated from the oil and liquefied chemical
terminal business; and fair value gain from the investment properties
of approximately HK$34 million (year ended 31 December 2019: HK$5
million). On the other hand, the profit was partially offset by fair value
loss on in securities investment of approximately HK$15 million and
fair value loss on preferred shares of approximately HK$14 million. The
investment properties represent the Port and Storage Facilities located
in Shandong Province.

PROSPECTS

Since the commencement of trial operation in September 2017 and
full operation in May 2018, the rental income from the Port and
Storage Facilities has started to contribute a significant and consistent
operating cash inflow and revenue to the Group going forward.

Looking ahead, COVID-19 and sino-foreign relations will continue
to bring challenges to the global economy and thus the operating
environment is expected to remain tough in next year. Even the
regional government has taken active and effective measures in
pursuit of economic and social stability, the business and investment
environment remain uncertain. Nevertheless, the Group is optimistic of
the investment environment and will continue to explore opportunities
in expanding our existing business and different industries in order
to drive the Group's sustainable growth and strengthen its financial
position.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere appreciation
to our shareholders, business partners, colleagues and my fellow
Directors who have continuously supported the Group.

Lan Yongqiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 November 2021
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OPERATING RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged in the leasing of the Port and Storage
Facilities, agency services on trading of oil and liquefied chemical
products, insurance brokerage service and oil production (which was
disposed on 28 June 2019). As the Company changed its financial
year end date from 31 December to 31 March in 2021, the financial
information of the Company herein presented is for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2021, with comparatives based on those for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The comparative amounts are therefore not
entirely comparable.

(i) Revenue

For the Period, the Group's record revenue from continuing
operations was approximately HK$193 million (year ended
31 December 2019: HK$130 million). The Group's revenue
is mainly contributed from the rental income of the Port and
Storage Facilities.

(ii) Gross profit

For the Period, the Group’s record gross profit from continuing
operations was approximately HK$190 million (year ended 31
December 2019: HK$128 million). The Board believes that the
stable rental income generated from the leasing of the Port and
Storage Facilities enables the Group to maintain the gross profit
position.

(iii) Profit for the Period

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$59 million
for the Period (year ended 31 December 2019: HK$47 million),
which is mainly attributable to the profit generated from the
oil and liquefied chemical terminal business; and fair value
gain from the investment properties of approximately HK$34
million (year ended 31 December 2019: HK$5 million). The
investment properties represents the Port and Storage Facilities
located in Shandong Province. On the other hand, the profit
was partially offset by fair value loss on in securities investment
of approximately HK$15 million and fair value loss on preferred
shares of approximately HK$14 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage
and logistics facilities business

In 2015, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in Shandong
Shundong Port Services Company Limited (“Shundong Port”).
Shundong Port owns two sea area use rights covering an aggregate
area available for land-forming and reclamation construction of
approximately 31.59 hectares in Dongying Port, Shandong Province,
the PRC and permitting the construction of reclamation and land-
forming for use in sea transportation and port facilities for a 50-years’
period running from 13 November 2014 to 12 November 2064 and 23
February 2016 to 22 February 2066 respectively. Shundong Port has
completed the construction and commenced leasing of its Port and
Storage Facilities since 2017, with full commercial operation having
been achieved in May 2018. Approximately HK$193 million rental
income was generated during the Period.

In June 2020, two independent investors (the “Investors”) entered
into a funding agreement (the "Funding Agreement”) with Shundong
Port pursuant to which the Investors agreed to provide funding of
RMB360 million (approximately HK$426 million) to Shundong Port by
way of non-voting, fixed-interest preferred shares. As at the date of
this report, RMB270 million (approximately HK$320 million) has been
drawn down from the Investors pursuant to the Funding Agreement
and the remaining sum has yet to be drawn down. Since the Funding
Agreement involves no dilution of the Group’s voting right, profit
sharing and return of capital in Shundong Port and the funding
provided by the Investors are essentially by way of debt instrument in
nature. Shundong Port remains as a subsidiary of the Company and its
results continue to be consolidated in the Group’s financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$2,264 million (31 December 2019: HK$2,073 million), total
liabilities of approximately HK$1,099 million (31 December 2019:
HK$1,047 million), indicating a gearing ratio of 0.49 (31 December
2019: 0.51) on the basis of total liabilities over total assets. The current
ratio of the Group for the Period was 1.26 (31 December 2019: 0.50)

on basis of current assets over current liabilities.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had bank and other borrowings of
approximately HK$176 million and HK$23 million respectively (31
December 2019: HK$240 million and HK$158 million respectively).
The aggregate bank deposits and cash in hand of the Group were

approximately HK$14 million (31 December 2019: HK$125 million).

Loan receivables amounted to approximately HK$210 million mainly
represented certain funds advanced to an independent third party to
finance trading business of petrochemicals which bear fixed return
of 10% per annum. By the date of this report, loan receivables of
approximately RMB117 million (approximately HK$138 million) has

been subsequently recovered by the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the convertible bonds with outstanding
principal amounts of HK$449 million are due on 16 September 2020
(2018 CB"), carrying interest of 3% per annum, with right to convert
the convertible bonds into ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Shares”). The conversion price of 2018 CB is HK$0.255 per Share
(subject to adjustments) and a maximum number of 1,760,784,313
Shares may be allotted and issued upon exercise of 2018 CB attached
to the convertible bonds in full. During the Period, all 2018 CB were

converted into 1,760,784,310 Shares.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Capital and other commitments

The Group had capital and other commitments contracted but not
provided for of approximately HK$54 million (31 December 2019:
HK$40 million).

Charges on assets

As at 31 March 2021, entire investment properties of approximately
HK$1,574 million (31 December 2019: HK$1,442 million) and trade
receivables from rental income of approximately HK$16 million (31
December 2019: Nil) were pledged for the Group’s bank borrowings
and lease liabilities (31 December 2019: bank and other borrowings
and lease liabilities).

Exchange exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK$
and RMB exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market
trends have always been the concern of the Group. The policy of the
Group for its operating entities operates in their corresponding local
currencies to minimise currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its
exposure for the time being, did not enter into any derivative contracts
aimed at minimising exchange rate risks during the Period. However,
management will monitor foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure if necessary.

Employee information

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed 65 full-time employees (31
December 2019: 29). The Group’s emolument policies are formulated
on the performance of individual employees and are reviewed annually
in line with industry practice. The Group also provides provident fund
schemes (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the
location of such employees.

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends for the
Period (year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage
and logistics facilities business

Since the completion of the acquisition of 51% effective interest
in Shundong Port by the Group in December 2015, the Group had
been proactively promoting the continual construction of the Port
and Storage Facilities. The original design of the Port and Storage
Facilities anticipated four berths for chemical tankers of 10,000
tonnage and two berths for chemical tankers of 5,000 tonnage. The
construction was completed in late September 2017 and the terminal
had commenced partial operation in late September 2017 and full
operation in May 2018.

On 24 October 2016, Shundong Port entered into a lease agreement
(the “Lease Agreement”) to lease the Port and Storage Facilities to an
independent third party (the "“Original Lessee”). The rent payable by
the Original Lessee to Shundong Port for the Port and Storage Facilities
under the Lease Agreement including value-added tax is RMB125
million (approximately HK$148 million) per annum, which was payable
in twelve equal instalments on monthly basis in advance. The Lease
Agreement became effective in May 2018.

In December 2020, the Lease Agreement was terminated such that
the Original Lessee was released from the continual performance of
the Lease Agreement with effect from 1 January 2021 by the payment
of liquidated damages by Shundong Port to the Original Lessee.
Shundong Port entered into a new lease agreement (the “Novated
Port Lease Agreement”) with another independent third party (the
“New Lessee”) whereby Shundong Port continued to lease the Port
and Storage Facilities to the New Lessee with effect from 1 January
2021 and for the remainder of the lease period until 19 May 2023.
The gross annual rent (including value-added tax) has increased from
RMB125 million (approximately HK$148 million) to RMB140 million
(approximately HK$166 million) with effect from 1 January 2021
until 31 March 2022, and will further increase to RMB150 million
(approximately HK$178 million) with effect from 1 April 2022 until
19 May 2023. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Lease Agreement and the Novated Port Lease Agreement provided
an opportunity for the Company to generate a stable rental income
from the Port and Storage Facilities, which is expected to expedite
the Group’s recovery of investment costs and to deliver reasonable
return on capital to the Group on this project. In addition, the Novated
Port Lease Agreement is expected to improve the Group's asset and
liabilities position in the long run, and to further enhance the fund-
raising capabilities of Shundong Port in the short run. It is currently
expected that any cash derived from the rental income of the Novated
Port Lease Agreement will be retained by Shundong Port for its
settlement of indebtedness, ongoing expansion and development
plans.

Financial service business

Following the completion of the acquisition of an insurance brokerage
entity, the Group creates an independent business segment in August
2018. In November 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to acquire the entire
interest of certain companies (the “Acquisition”), including (i) a
company licensed to carry on type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO"”); and (ii) a company licensed to
carry on type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the SFO. The application of the Company
to become a substantial shareholder of these licensed companies has
been conditionally approved by the Securities and Futures Commission.
The Acquisition has not been completed up to the date of this report.

The Board believes that the Group can benefit from the diversification
of its operations into the financial service industry and through better
deployment of available resources, can bring values to the Group and
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole.
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Financial investment in Tai'an City

In 2019, the Group invested approximately RMB224 million in the
unlisted companies (the “Investment”) which is settled by way of
promissory notes. The principal asset of the Investment is a real
estate property project situated at Tai'an Daiyue District, Tai'an City,
Shandong Province, the PRC. This Investment is planned to be built
into six blocks of office towers and fifteen blocks of residential
apartments. With the pre-agreed dividend policy, it is considered that
the Investment should bring investment return to the Group upon
completion of its construction of the development.

Exploration and mining business

As disclosed in the Company’s 2015 annual report, the Board found
out that in 2010, the exploration licence held by Qinghai Forest Source
Mining Industry Developing Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) had been
transferred to Inner Mongolia Xiao Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining
Industry Company Limited (R &/NMIULRREZEFRAE) (“Yuen
Xian Company”) without the Company’'s knowledge, consent or
approval (the “Change of Exploration Right Agreement”).

Since then, the Group had commenced legal proceedings (the “Mining
Litigations”) against Yuen Xian Company with the view to invalidating
the Change of Exploration Right Agreement dated 11 November 2009
(which caused the loss of the exploration license by QHFSMI) and
seeking to regain the control of QHFSMI and the exploration license.
In the past few years, the Group suspended its exploration and mining
business pending the outcome of the Mining Litigations.

As announced by the Company on 11 June 2015, 12 June 2015 and 9
March 2016, the Higher People’s Court of Qinghai Province had made
a final judgment that the change of exploration right agreement was
between QHFSMI and Yuen Xian Company was invalid and the Qinghai
Province People’s Procuratorate had expressed its “no-support” as
to the review of the abovementioned final judgement, respectively.
Following the conclusion of the Mining Litigations, the Company has
appointed the legal advisers in the PRC to enforce the judgement to
uphold the Group’s right. In the event that the Group could regain the
control of QHFSMI, the Group will be in the position to have access to
the relevant exploration and mining license and thereafter the Group
will perform due diligence review on the mining site. The Group is
conducting regular re-assessment on the progress made by its legal
advisers and the prospect of the Group’s mining segment from time to
time.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lan Yonggiang, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in July 2014 and was re-designated as an executive
Director in December 2014. Mr. Lan was appointed as the Chairman
of the Board in March 2018. He holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from
Lanzhou University. Mr. Lan has extensive experience in investment,
mergers and acquisitions as well as in the business of public listing
laws. Mr. Lan was a director of Jinhui Liquor Co., Ltd. (stock code:
603919), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange from October
2012 to October 2020. Mr. Lan was a director and the chairman of
Guangdong Golden Dragon Development Inc. (stock code: 000712),
which is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from July 2016 to
June 2018; an independent director of Top Score Fashion Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 603608), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
from May 2015 to May 2018; and a director of Shenzhen Kangmei
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 835541), which is quoted on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations System (the New Third
Board) from May 2008 to May 2020.

Mr. Wang Feng, aged 40, was appointed as an executive Director
in August 2019 and the Vice Chairman of the Board in November
2019. Mr. Wang graduated from Beijing Economic and Technological
Research Institute (AEREFRAMTHERFT) in 2004 majoring in
Marketing. Mr. Wang has extensive management and investment
experiences in internet technology and corporate solution industries in
the PRC. Mr. Wang is currently a co-founder of an internet healthcare
solution company since 2015 and a director of a company engaged
in design and implementation of application solution services for
enterprises listed in Fortune Global 500 and is a subsidiary of a
company listed in the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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ESERHR

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2012 and was re-
designated as an executive Director in November 2013. He was also
appointed as the company secretary of the Company in November
2016. He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from City
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has extensive experience
in the accounting and auditing fields. Mr. Chan is an independent
non-executive director of each of SFund International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1367), Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (stock code:
1538), and China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855), all
of which are listed on the Main Board (“Main Board”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He was an
independent non-executive director of Carnival Group International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 996), which is listed on Main Board,
from December 2014 to April 2019; a non-executive director of China
Nonferrous Metals Company Limited (stock code: 8306), which was
listed on GEM (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange, from June 2017 to May
2019; and an independent non-executive director of Century Energy
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Oil Gangran
Energy Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8132), which is listed on
GEM, from March 2020 to August 2021.

Mr. Cao Sheng, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director in
March 2018. He graduated from Shandong Academy of Governance
in 1999 majoring in Economics and Management. Mr. Cao has many
years of management experience in China in the industries of vessel
and offshore platform engineering and business consultancy.

Mr. Yu Zhiyong, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director in
March 2018. He graduated from Shenyang Gold Institute (now part
of the Northeastern University, China) in 1994 majoring in Mining
and Engineering Surveying. Mr. Yu has many years of management
experience in China in the industries of logistics, system engineering
and business consultancy. Mr. Yu has been the president of Hong
Kong Dongying Chamber of Commerce since February 2017. Mr. Yu
has been appointed as a member of the Eighth Dongying Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
since March 2019.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Lei Liangzhen, aged 42, was appointed as an executive Director
in August 2019. Dr. Lei obtained a Doctoral degree in Applied
Mathematics from Université Clermont-Ferrand-Il in 2006 and Doctor
of Science majoring in Probability Theory and Mathematical Statistics
from Wuhan University in 2005. She is currently an associate professor
at the School of Mathematical Sciences Capital Normal University since
2008. She has published approximately 10 papers on periodicals in
overseas and in the PRC.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Qingbin, aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in January 2019. He holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree from Shandong Economics College. Mr. Tang is registered as
a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has over 20 years of experience in the accounting and auditing
field in China. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of Shandong Molong Petroleum Machinery Company Limited (stock
code:568), a company listed on Main Board. He is also an independent
director of Luxin Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600783).

Mr. Wang Jinghua, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in July 2011. He graduated from University of Exeter,
United Kingdom. He holds two Bachelor of Arts degrees with major in
Internet Computing and Economics & Finance and a Master of Science
degree with International Management. From 2009, Mr. Wang acted
as a General Manager Assistant in China Western Holdings Co., Ltd.
He has most experience in the investment program and contract in the
urban construction project.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEREHE

Mr. Fung Nam Shan, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non- BElEE Mo R E—AFELBRESEA
executive Director in May 2015. Mr. Fung holds a bachelor’s degree in BUFHTES  BSEERBFRARMEMAREKR
commerce awarded by the University of Newcastle, Australia. Mr. Fung BEHESELBAOSEEBISEZSFEAES
has become a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute SRGHMAG 2 HESHMMRBEIZEZ=F
of Certified Public Accountants since February 2010 and a Certified +RARARANGEMES I EEMEstEmo
Practising Accountant of CPA Australia since October 2003.

Currently, Mr. Fung is an independent non-executive director of JH BRERAZRABHEAERLE CRRER L
Educational Technology INC. (currently listed on the Main Board m(RMASE 1 1935)) BUFHTEE -HAR
(stock code: 1935)). He is the company secretary and authorised HgepehE (EE) BRAR RGEMLEHZ AR
representative of each of Seamless Green China (Holdings) Limited, (B SE £ 8150)) EAMM (FE) EKRE
a company listed on GEM (stock code: 8150) and Goal Rise Logistics RAS GRIEERLES BRGHALHE 1 1529)) 24
(China) Holdings Limited (currently listed on the Main Board (stock EIMERRERR RAERKEXEERERQAE

code: 1529)). He is the company secretary of Thelloy Development R ERETZ2AT BRDILSE 1 1546)) 22
Group Limited (currently listed on the Main Board (stock code: 1546)). BME-RZZEZ—FN\BEIZZ—FNAE
Mr. Fung was an independent non-executive director of China Fortune TEABPTH=EERE BER BRAE (BHRGEM
Investments (Holding) Limited, which was listed on GEM (stock code: i (B 5E 8116)) 2B IERITESE 1
8116), during the period from August 2021 to September 2021. He A E—RAF+—BEZ—ARE+AHEE
was the joint company secretary of Future Bright Mining Holdings FEBEEEERBRAR GRRER LT ZAF
Limited (currently listed on the Main Board (stock code: 2212)) (BB AREE:2212)) ZHBEATIMERR _-E
during the period from November 2015 to October 2016 and the —hFERAZ+HEZZE—tFRAB+/H

company secretary and authorised representative of each of China BiEETESFEEZRERAE RNGEME
Ocean Group Development Limited (currently listed on GEM (stock HmZAE BEPARIE:8047)) " RIEBE—REZ

code: 8047)) during the period from 20 May 2015 to 16 May 2017, BE_Z_—F \BHBEBEEZHFEREERS
MH Development Limited (formerly known as Camsing International RAR RIBAKEERERERAE RER
Holding Limited), which was listed on the Main Board (stock code: Emz e (BB 1 2662)) MR ZZE—X

2662), during the period from February 2016 to August 2021 and F=RBEET_—FtHHBETTEHEERE
China Supply Chain Holdings Limited (currently listed on the Main EXEEARAR CRRER L™ (BRMGBRE
Board (stock code: 3708)) during the period from March 2016 to July 3708)) 2 REIMERBEEREK

2021.

Mr. Fung was employed as financial controller and company secretary BEEBN _E2—F _AE_ZET—=FNA
of South China Assets Holdings Limited (currently listed on GEM (stock REMELEELERERAR CARGEMEMmZ A
code: 8155)) from February 2011 to April 2013. Mr. Fung served for B (R SE 1 8155)) 2 BB R ATME -
a reputable property development group as financial controller from BRESHR _ZEENEFE_T——FEL—K
2009 to 2011. He has worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers as an MAMEZREER M BRE - RENEIRK
audit manager for several years which he accumulated experience Bt EHMEREZLES T AEFRE
in auditing, accounting and taxation in Hong Kong and the PRC. He BERFPBEZEZ B AMBAHRBEEL
has been one of the marketing committee members of The Hong BoREZ R BERTIEEBERESH
Kong Youth Hostels Association and also a member of its charity walk EMGHEZEENERES S THBEZES
organising committee since 2012. 2B
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The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, holding the beliefs of transparency, honesty and
accountability. The Board considers that sound corporate management
and governance practices are essential to the Company’s healthy
growth under all business environments. Therefore, we continuously
review and improve our corporate governance standards to ensure
maximum compliance with the relevant laws and codes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board have applied the principles in the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) by adopting the code provisions of the CG Code.

During the Period, the Board has adopted and complied with the
code provisions of the CG Code in so far they are applicable with the
exception of the deviation from A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (the “CEQ") should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Since the position of the CEO is
vacated, the Company is still looking for a suitable candidate to fill the
vacancy of the CEO.

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. For the
period under review, all independent non-executive Directors have not
been appointed for a specific term but they are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the
Company'’s Articles of Association (the "Articles”).

Under Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors should attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Mr. Tang Qingbin
and Mr. Wang Jinghua, the independent non-executive Directors,
were unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company
(the "AGM") held on 28 September 2020 due to their other prior
engagements and/or public health measures.

Under Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board and the chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Lan
Yonggiang, the chairman of the Board, and Mr. Tang Qingbin, the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees of
the Company, were unable to attend the annual general meeting held
on 28 September 2020 due to their other prior engagements and/or
public health measures.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEERRS

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries with
all Directors and all of them confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board determines and keeps under review the objectives of the
Group. It makes decisions on overall strategies and actions necessary
for achieving these objectives, monitors and controls financial
and operating performance, formulates appropriate policies, and
identifies and ensures best practices of corporate governance. The
Board members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in
good faith to maximise the Shareholders’ value in the long run, and
have aligned the Group's goals and directions with the prevailing
economic and market conditions. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the management. It has given clear directions as
to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management should report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members, including six executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Board members during the Period and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lan Yongqgiang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Feng (Vice chairman)
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral
Mr. Cao Sheng

Mr. Yu Zhiyong

Dr. Lei Liangzhen
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Qingbin
Mr. Wang Jinghua
Mr. Fung Nam Shan

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual report
are set out in the "Biographical Details of Directors” section on pages
13 to 16 of this annual report. None of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships among
members of the Board.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation,
the Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Rotation of
Directors

All Directors were not appointed for any specific terms and they are
subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the AGM and at least
once every three years on a rotation basis in accordance with Article
108 of the Articles. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election
at the AGM and shall continue to act as a Director throughout
the meeting which he retires. Where vacancies arise at the Board,
candidates are proposed and put forward to the Board by the
nomination committee of the Company as more fully explained below
under the section headed “Nomination Committee”.

Directors’ Training

In compliance with the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the
Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge, skills and
understanding of the Group and its business or to update their skills
and knowledge on the latest development or changes in the relevant
regulations, the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices.
The Company will also update the Directors of any material changes
in the rules and regulations from time to time. According to the
confirmations provided by the Directors, all Directors have participated
in the continuous professional developments during the Period.
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Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set
out in the CG Code. The Company recognises that the Board diversity
is an essential element contributing to the sustainable development of
the Company. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational
background or professional experience. All Board appointments are
based on merits and considered against a variety of objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Nomination Policy

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board of directors
with a diversity of skills and experience. The selection and proposed
appointment of the Directors are submitted to the nomination
committee of the Company for consideration prior to Board approval,
and the re-election of Directors is conducted in accordance with the
Articles. The criteria of assessing a candidate include his/her ability
to devote sufficient time and attention to participate in the affairs
of the Company including the attendance of Board meetings and
serving on committees, to bring business experience to the Board
and to contribute to the Board diversity. If the candidate is proposed
to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director, his/her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules. The totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall be evaluated in assessing his/her
suitability.
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Board Meetings

During the Period, nine Board meetings and one general meeting were
held and details of attendance are set out as follows:

EEERHRS

EECEH

TR ARBETAREFEERZR—RKRR
RE BREFZHEBERFLNOT

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HESEREEEERE
Annual/
extraordinary
Board meetings general meetings
REREE
Exgga BHRIKE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Lan Yonggiang (Chairman) BEokSRME (F/E) 9/9 0/1
Mr. Wang Feng (Vice Chairman) T EHE (B F/F) 8/9 0/1
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral PRI 4 9/9 11
Mr. Cao Sheng BEREE 5/9 0/1
Mr. Yu Zhiyong FTEELRE 9/9 0/1
Dr. Lei Liangzhen EREEL 8/9 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIUERITES
Mr. Tang Qingbin BB E 9/9 0/1
Mr. Wang Jinghua FiEESE 5/9 0/1
Mr. Fung Nam Shan Sl E 9/9 1/1

Every Board member has full and timely access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

The Company has attached much importance to the risk management
about Directors’ liabilities and has arranged appropriate liability
insurance for the Directors and senior management of the Company.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee, established in compliance with the CG
Code, currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors
and one executive Director, is responsible for reviewing and evaluating
the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Company and making recommendations to the Board from time to
time.

The remuneration committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the remuneration committee has been uploaded to the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

During the Period, the remuneration committee held one meeting
to review and consider the remuneration package of the existing
Board members and the senior management. Composition of the
remuneration committee and details of the members’ attendance to
the committee are as follows:

FNEEE

KRB EREEERTHNIFHEES  HEF
REBR=-LBUFNTEFA—RATES
EEERAKNEERABEZTRSREERE 2
MEE TARREFgREERRS -

HWNEZEECHRARBEEE AT ZFRIF
XEBN2RFAAz BB EREMARZEE
BEEE -FNEE G 2HEEEC LHERT
PR 2N A B 48 Ik

TR FMEEERTT —RIH UET K
ETRARZEFENERSREEEZFNE
BoHNEEEZAMKEETHEZHFERBR
EES U I

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend

HE/&8%

HEGERHY

Mr. Tang Qingbin BB STE 1/1
Mr. Wang Jinghua FiFELLE 0/1
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BElkE 1/1
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral FRIZIE o 11
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee, established in compliance with the CG
Code, currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors
and one executive Director, is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and management of the
Board succession.

The nomination committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the nomination committee has been uploaded to the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

During the Period, one meeting of the nomination committee was
held. Details of the members’ attendance to the committee are as
follows:

- Rl R
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Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend

HE/ BE%

HEERERHY

Mr. Tang Qingbin EER Tt 1/1
Mr. Wang Jinghua FiFESLSE 0/1
Mr. Fung Nam Shan Bt 1/1
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral FREBIET Y 1/1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the suggested terms of reference stated under the Code Provision
C.3 of the CG Code. The audit committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Tang
Qingbin. The audit committee is responsible for review of the Group's
accounting principles, practices internal control procedures and
financial reporting matters including the review of the interim and final
results of the Group prior to recommending to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the audit committee has been uploaded to
the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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Three meetings of the audit committee were held during the Period
to review and approve the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019, for the six months period ended
30 June 2020 and for the twelve months period ended 31 December
2020, and to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The attendances at these meetings are as
follows:

FHBBEZEZEEGERT=ZRgE UFHRELR
BAHE_E-NFE+B=+—HLEEE -#ZE
TEIEFRA-tHLERNERREEZZSC
ZEA+ "B =+—HIE+ZERZ#HHERK I
B AEERIEEIENNEEIER AN %
EFHEHFEBERIIEUWT ¢

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend

HEEER

HEGERHY

Mr. Tang Qingbin EEBWRSTE 3/3
Mr. Wang Jinghua FiFELLE 0/3
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BElkE 3/3

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit committee reviews and monitors the independent auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process.
It holds meetings with representatives of the independent auditor to
consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The
audit committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the independent auditor.

Subsequent to the end of the Period, to fill the causal vacancy
following the resignation of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
(“Zhonghui”) as the auditor of the Company, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
(“Crowe") was appointed as the auditor of the Company and to hold
office until the conclusion of the next AGM.

Auditor’s remuneration payable for the Period in relation to (i) audit
services rendered by Zhonghui and Crowe amounted to HK$590,000
and HK$950,000 respectively; and (ii) non-audit services rendered by
Crowe amounted to HK$50,000. No non-audit services are rendered by
Zhonghui for the Period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities of (i) reviewing risk
management and internal control to the audit committee; and (ii)
designing, implementing and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems to the management. The Group’s internal
audit staff is responsible for analysing and appraising the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The Board, through the audit committee, has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group for the Period, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management function.

The management shall report to the Board as soon as practicable for
any event which may constitute inside information, and the Board shall
decide to make relevant disclosure in a timely manner, if required.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral, the executive Director, was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company in November 2016. Mr.
Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Chan had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the Period.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The rights of the Shareholders and the procedures for them to demand
a poll on resolutions at the Shareholders’ meetings are contained
in the Articles. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll
procedures are included in all circulars to the Shareholders and will
be explained during the proceedings of meetings. Poll results, if any,
will be posted on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and of
the Company on or before the next business day of the Shareholders’
meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM")

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, an EGM shall be convened on
the written requisition of one or more Shareholders for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company.

The written requisition shall specify the purpose of requiring the EGM
and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionist(s)
held as at the date of deposit of the written requisition not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed
to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a retiring
Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting,
unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head office or
at the registration office at least seven clear days before the date of
the general meeting.
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Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand
for election as a Director at the AGM, the following documents must
be validly served at the Company’'s head office or the registration
office within the period specified in Article 113 of the Articles, namely,
(1) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution to elect a
nominated candidate as a Director at the AGM; (2) a notice signed by
the nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness to be elected;
(3) the nominated candidate’s information as required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (4) the nominated
candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her personal data.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Our
Directors are available at the Shareholders’ meetings to answer
questions and provide information which the Shareholders may
enquire. The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

Taking advantages of various resources, the Company keeps
communicating with its shareholders regularly and properly to ensure
that the Shareholders are adequately aware of any important issues
during the course of the Company's operations, and then exercise their
rights as the Shareholders with sufficient knowledge. Investors are
welcome to write directly to the Company at its Hong Kong registered
office for any inquiries.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopts a dividend policy. The Board shall consider the
following factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

o current and prospective financial performance of the Company;

° growth and investment opportunities;

other macro and micro economic factors; and

other factors/events that the Board may deem as relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Articles.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and for ensuring that
the financial statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Board also
ensures the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Crowe, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 42 to 49 of
this annual report.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. As such, all the resolutions
set out in the notice of the forthcoming AGM will be voted by poll.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the leasing of oil and liquefied
chemical terminal together with its storage and logistics facilities,
provision of agency services on trading of oil and liquefied chemical
products and insurance brokerage service. Details of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021 are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future development in the Group's business,
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 4 to 5 and
pages 6 to 12 respectively of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Period are set out in the Consolidated
Income Statement and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income on pages 50 to 51 and 52 respectively.

The state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2021 is set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 53 to 54.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends in
respect of the Period.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

Pursuant to a resolution of the Board dated 30 December 2020,
the Company's financial year end date has been changed from 31
December to 31 March. Accordingly, the audited financial statements
of the Group contained in this annual report cover a fifteen months
ended from 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2021 and the comparative
figures presented for the consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and related
notes, which were prepared for the year ended 31 December 2019, are
not comparable with those of the Period.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION HBERBE
The following is a summary of the published consolidated results of the TXHELEEER _Z—RF-_E—tHF - ZZ
Group for years 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019 and the fifteen months —NEFERIZB-—NAFEEURBEZZEZ—F=
ended 31 March 2021, and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling B=+—HIE+RHEBZEFEBGEEEUKRK
interests of the Group as at each of the reporting dates. EENESBREAHZEE - BBRIFERER
Results e}
Fifteen
months ended Year ended 31 December
31 March HE+-_B=+—-HILEE
2021 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEZS--%
=ZA=+-H
IE+HEER “T-hE “T-N\E “E—tE “T-RE
THET TER FHET THT THET
Revenue e 193,148 129,838 115,081 30,338 40,926
Profit/(loss) attribute to: FEERF/ (B518) -
Owners of the Company ARAEBA 6,726 31,310 (76,478) (187,121) (189,971)
Non-controlling interests FERER 52,133 15,545 2,631 (14,309) (10,993)
58,859 46,855 (73,847) (201,430) (200,964)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests BEE -BRERIEERER
As at As at 31 December
31 March B+ZB=+—H
2021 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEZ—%
=A=+—-A | ZB-hE ZB-NFE _B—+tF C"E—RE
FHET FET FEx FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,832,565 1,779,158 1,687,493 1,843,919 1,483,549
Current assets RBEE 431,568 294,318 529,038 149,327 362,881
Total assets BERE 2,264,133 2,073,476 2,216,531 1,993,246 1,846,430
Current liabilities RBaE 342,254 583,701 757,964 1,225,104 716,008
Non-current liabilities FERBERE 756,550 463,398 529,296 397,402 665,140
Total liabilities BEE%H 1,098,804 1,047,099 1,287,260 1,622,506 1,381,148
Net assets BEZE 1,165,329 1,026,377 929,271 370,740 465,282
Non-controlling interests JEERER 300,532 238,743 165,946 167,210 115,494
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Period are set out in note 19(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the Period in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital during the Period are set out in note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Period.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the Period are set out in note 40(b) to the consolidated
financial statements and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity respectively. The Company had no reserve available for
distribution to the Shareholders as at 31 March 2021.

ME- B EKR&E

AEENE BERBERANEZEDHER
RS EREME19@)

REWFE
AEEREVENSHB LD HBERNES
PRSI ARMI 520 ©

AR 7

THBRAEZ FBEIN GG M B RARMEE38 -

BEBEEE

MBS A AR EMRIIZE A EERER SR
%&MEM%F@%%E&ZWY‘EK NSP-|
ZEPIRRERRIEZEHENR-

gﬁ~&%ﬁﬁ@¢ﬁ%2t$%

AABHEEFMBE LR N AMBLEREE B
ERERIAABERN LEHES

EE R RS kR

TR AR B RAEBRZ REESFBEDHE
\ﬁé%$ﬁ§W£m()ﬁé&Eﬁ§§°
N TEC—E=-RA=t+—H ARBALERE]
MK TFARR

RERBERKEERERAR / -2 /" —FF% 31



a0

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Period, the sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 100% of the Group's total sales for the Period and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to 99.7%.

During the Period, none of the Group’s supplier accounted for more
than 5% of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, any of their associates or Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital), had any beneficial interests in the
Group's five largest customers and/or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company Board members during the Period and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lan Yonggiang (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Feng (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral
Mr. Cao Sheng

Mr. Yu Zhiyong

Dr. Lei Liangzhen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Qingbin
Mr. Wang Jinghua
Mr. Fung Nam Shan

Pursuant to the Articles, Directors retiring at the upcoming AGM will
be eligible for re-election. Further details of the Directors’ retirement
and re-election will be set out in a circular of the Company dispatched
together with the notice of the AGM.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to 16 of
the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the Directors during the Period are set
out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by Directors and officers of the Group is currently in
force and was in force throughout the Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no Director had
a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the Period.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the Period.

EXEHRS

EFEREFE

EFEEFBHNEAFREIZEES168 -

EFZRBEL

MEEERELGNRARTIRBTZRIESF
ARG LEE TRARTFTILEMERTFER
—FRRMEE CEEBERN MFULLEZ
BRFS & 4] o

EFME

rHPBEZETMEF BN FES M BRRMEE
17 ¢

EESFBERX
RERSEEESRBRBSELE 2 S RIER
1 BT BT O SRR B M B B A
B—EE%-

EENRH RHHGHOZER
BAEREMBAMREEI EEHEREA
SR HE AN B AR AP I RSEE
EBEEAMGZEARS LHAAHTER
RS EAR E R

EESH

RARBIE ST INEFETERERBRENE
AEREDEHB 2 EERTHEL -

BERBERKEERERAR / 22 /" —FFR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

33



S s AN S =l
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register
referred to therein pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, are set out below:
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Mr. Cao Sheng (“Mr. Cao”) Interest of controlled corporation 2,154,313,725* 29.90%
EREE (&ExE)) RPEEE S

Mr. Yu Zhiyong (“Mr. Yu") Interest of controlled corporation 2,154,313,725* 29.90%
FEBRE (F5RED) RELEER

* According to the filings under Disclosure of Interest (the “DI Filings"”) * BEEAATDINRAHIEHERNEZHERAERK

under Part XV of the SFO retrieved by the Company from public records,
these 2,154,313,725 Shares were held by Giant Crystal. Giant Crystal
is 100% legally and beneficially owned by Cosmic Shine International
Limited (“Cosmic Shine”), which is in turn legally and beneficially
owned as to 50% by Mr. Cao and as to the other 50% by Mr. Yu, both
being executive Directors. Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal are regarded
as controlled corporations of Mr. Cao and Mr. Yu and therefore, Mr.
Cao and Mr. Yu are deemed to be interested in 2,154,313,725 Shares
interested in by Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal. The deemed interest
under Part XV of the SFO of Mr. Cao and Mr. Yu duplicate with each
others completely.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Period were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, so far as any Directors are aware based on the
DI Filings, persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) who have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required
to be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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* Based on the DI Filings, Giant Crystal is 100% legally and beneficially
owned by Cosmic Shine. Giant Crystal is regarded as controlled
corporation of Cosmis Shine and therefore, Cosmic Shine is deemed to
be interested in 2,154,313,725 Shares interested in by Giant Crystal.
The deemed interest under Part XV of the SFO of Cosmic Shine and
Giant Crystal duplicate with each others completely.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the Shares.
As at 31 March 2021, no short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware up to 31
March 2021, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which was recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 24 June 2013, the Company adopted its current
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and rewards to Director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of
or contractor of the Group or an affiliate corporation, or trustee of
trust related to or controlled corporation of any of the foregoing (the
“Eligible Participants”) and providing the Eligible Participants with an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view
to achieving the following objectives, namely: (i) motivate the Eligible
Persons to optimise their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Persons whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group. A summary
of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme can be founded on
pages 7 to 16 of the Company’s circular dated 28 May 2013.

36 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020/21

* RIEERHERR  ERMBCosmic Shined
FERBEmER100%# m o # & W R A Cosmic
Shinez & 15%E > Cosmic Shinet 184X $E &
Fr¥EE R 22,154,313,725 RN R ER 1
% o Cosmic Shine3E &N e85 M EEKEAISE
XVERIE TR AEE R Rt EE-

LA ERERNZER - R T -_—F=A
=+ —H REARFRERFMMERDIE336
BEEzELMPLENRaLCE-

PR EFriREEE SN MEEMAN EE T " —
F=ZB=+—8 ' BEEMALRRM FERER
PR RREES REFRIIEXVEE2K3
DEZ R A AR B WEH AL HENERER
BREFMAERAEBHEFEEZELMT ZE

HEHE
fERe St A

BER_E—=FE,"B_+NAETRE
MAG BBz ZERAER AR ERMNEE
BIAVREAR e st 8 (TRERRMERT 21)) o BERR M ot &
DEEREREEAEENEH IEZEE B
E-BHA TR -HED REB 2B A B
MR B iR E M — BB AN EESRT
ANEZEEE (T6EK2HE) TAGEKS
HERHEARTPHEEAARDNEE  UE
HEUTEZ: WABaERATUELHEEN
B ZE EAEES R ; KRS REEIUE
AR EFEEERA T ZEZRKBG MZES
BEATZEREAEERRRIEREF AR
BREAHTERIRZBE FL2REAQBEHH
BZE—="FAAZH+/\HHNBRETEESE16
Eo



The Share Option Scheme had a life span of ten years running from
24 June 2013 to 23 June 2023. Under the terms of the Share Option
Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, grant options to the Eligible
Participants to subscribe for Shares. Initially, the maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) was 174,684,921 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme on 24 June
2013 but adjusted for the ten-to-one share consolidation which
became effective on 8 October 2014. The maximum entitlement of
each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the Shares in issue, provided that the maximum entitlement for
any grantee being a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or their associates shall be capped at 0.1% of the
Shares in issue (or HK$5 million in value based on the closing price
of the Shares underlying the options, whichever is higher). Any grant
exceeding these individual limits shall be subject to Shareholders’
approval, with the relevant grantees and their associates abstaining
from voting. The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at their sole discretion,
there is no general requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held or any performance target which must be satisfied
or achieved before such an option can be exercised. An option shall
be exercisable at any time during an exercise period to be notified by
the Board to each grantee, provided that no option shall be exercisable
later than ten years after its date of grant. The subscription price of
the options must be at least the highest of: (a) the closing price of a
Share as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant which must be a business day; (b) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as shown on the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a Share. HK$1.00 is
payable by each Eligible Participant to the Company on acceptance of
an offer of an option, which shall be paid within 14 days from the date
of offer.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
period under review and there was no outstanding share option as at
31 March 2021 and 31 December 2019. No share option grant was
effectively made and accepted under the Share Option Scheme since
its adoption on 24 June 2013, nor has the Scheme Mandate Limit has
ever been refreshed. As at the date of this report, options to subscribe
for 174,684,921 Shares (representing 2.42% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company) are available for grant under the Share
Option Scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the Period, save for the Share Option Scheme as previously
mentioned, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreements, and there did not subsist any equity-linked agreement
entered into by the Company as at 31 March 2021.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Period, there were no transactions required to be disclosed
as connected or continuing connected transactions in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Period and up to the date of this report, no Directors are
considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined by the Listing Rules, other than those businesses of
which the Directors have been appointed as Directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff, and
contributes to the community in which we conduct our businesses and
creating a sustainable return to the Group.

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices and
principles are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17
to 28 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the Period.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

No significant event of the Group occurred after the end of the
reporting period.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including customers,
suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder engagement
via different channels, the stakeholders are encouraged to give their
opinions regarding the environmental, social and governance policies
of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its suppliers,
and offering competitive remuneration package with safety working
environments to employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which will be issued in
due course.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in information of the Directors pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules are disclosed below:

EFENEY

RIEEHRAWEIZSIBMFKENEETER S
E I

Name of Directors Details of changes

EEHS 2B

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral - Resigned as an independent non-executive director of Century Energy

BREELEY International Holdings Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8132) in August
2021.

— RZBEZ—F/\BREAEEKRERERARAE (RGEMLET » RMH A
5% 18132) WBIIIFHITESR-

Fung Nam Shan - Acted as an independent non-executive director of China Fortune
SR LA Investments (Holding) Limited, which was listed on GEM (stock code:
8116), from August 2021 to September 2021.

— W_E-_—FNAZE
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(RGEM_E™ > B1A U5 : 8116) WIBILIFHMITES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including
a review of the audited financial statements of the Company for
the Period. The audit committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive Directors.
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AUDITOR

On 17 December 2019, BDO Limited resigned as auditor of the
Company. The Board has appointed Zhonghui as the auditor of
the Company to fill the vacancy following the resignation of BDO
Limited. On 20 August 2021, Zhonghui resigned as the auditor of the
Company. The Board has appointed Crowe to fill the causal vacancy
following the resignation of Zhonghui on 14 September 2021.

Saved as disclosed above, there was no other change in auditor of the
Company during the past three years.

The financial statements for the Period were audited by Crowe. Crowe
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A
resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company

to re-appoint Crowe as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lan Yongqiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 November 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZHENR S

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ENERGY INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
50 to 208, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2021
(the “Period”), and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the Period in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "“Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

42 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020721

BEEEE GED SMEBMERAR
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

EH RS TEIEETTR 1SE 008
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

R RERREERARABDRKRRNBIZE
EMER S
(S8 SZMATEIE R E])

R

HMBESEZIE N F508E208E HAEREEEK
BEERBRAE (B8R REWB AR (M4
% BEEH) NEEUBERE LR BRE
BER_E_—S=ZRA=+—HNEETHR
MREZEZTEF—HF—HE_Z”-_—F=A8
=+—HEE (TAEE) NiREsEER G2
ABAR - GeaEREHREGaRERER
URGEEMBHRRWT  BETZ G5 BHER
go

HPRBR ZERGMERRERESE G
fiog (TERGSEAE)) RGNERMBR
SRR ((ERMBREEL) AEMAFHR
iR EEER_Z-_—F=ZRA=+—HNKS
MBR RERAHENGEMBRRERGS
Beng TEEREBEARAFRAKREREZS
R

ERMNER

HMERBEEBGHMAGEMNEBEER
(TEBBTER)) ETER - HMEZFTER
THEEF RN ERE (B FECF ST
HRAFRENEE) - RIBEB G RGRM
W ITRESapEZFA (TSR - I\
B EEE YEETTRRNHEMERERS
FoRMIEE RPESHEZLEREERD RE
EMBAMANEZEREMHER-



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in note 4(e) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter

MEEZEE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit

matter due to the key source of estimation uncertainty and the

significant assumptions and judgements involved in the valuation.

RMBREME L HERHNSHAREZEE RERGE S HEE MR
BRI ERBRR A R (EE

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group’s investment properties amounted to HK$1,574,454,000 as at
31 March 2021. Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties
of HK$33,600,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the Period.

iR MBRRT20EE R -2 -_—F=B=+—8"
EEMNREYESR1,574,454,0008 T - REYWELNFEEH Z NE
33,600,000 T X AN BRI I 4R & W 2 2R O BEET 0

Il

\
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REMEZEE

FLRGEEHMBRERMEF20RGEEMBHREN
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BANERNAREMREZEE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the carrying values of the
investment properties included:
BMTEREVEROECBELE 2 EHRER
i 2EC

- Reviewing the valuation report from
the Valuer and holding discussion
with management and the Valuer
to understand the valuation basis,
methodology used and underlying
assumptions applied;

- BRLEMAERSTREERE R
BERMETN U TREEEE -FIRA
5T P FE FR 2 AE R RS

- Evaluating management’s process in
respect of reviewing the valuation
performed by the Valuer;

- A EEEERAGEMET ZAEZ
BrF;

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the Valuer;

- SHAEGEMZER - ENRERNE ;

- Obtaining the underlying data used by
the Valuer and assessing whether they are

appropriate;
- WEHEMMAZ BB T EZE
HEESEA
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Key audit matter

MEEZER

The fair value of the Group's investment properties was determined
by adopting the valuation techniques with significant unobservable
inputs, assumptions of market conditions and judgements. The
Group also worked closely with the independent qualified valuers
(the “Valuer”) to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques.
EERREMENRTFENRAREAERTIBREHASEBENGEER
fii-mRBRRAEGET . EERTEBEISERGEEM (MEER)
RG> UHIEREE B ERN -

Fair value measurement of preferred shares
classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Refer to note 33 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in note 4(h) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter

MEBEZEE

Shandong Shungdong Port Services Company Limited (“Shungdong
Port”), an indirect-owned subsidiary of the Company, has issued a
series of preferred shares to two independent third parties during the
Period. In accordance with HKFRS 9, they are accounted for as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“"FVTPL").

RAE AR EEEZEL2EWNBABLURIEREZERLE (NNERE
B ERAMSBLIE=AET—RINEBER - BRESEBMBRSEL
B HURATES ABm ((RATES ARG 2HBEEA
IRo

As of 31 March 2021, the fair values of the preferred shares are
HK$333,832,000. Loss on changes in fair value of the preferred
shares of HK$13,655,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the Period.

B —F=ZA=+—H > BERZRFER333,832,00087T &
SRR AFEEE 2 E813,655,0008 TN AHB N GRE R RARE

N
90
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BANEZNAREERREZER

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the
valuation model, and

- BELEREEH EREREL &

- Performing market research and analysis
to assess whether the changes in fair
value of investment properties resulted
from the valuation was reasonable and
consistent with market trends to our
knowledge.

— ETHIBME RS T EEEMMES
NEEMEZHERSEERFTEHM
FRAIBY T35 8 5 o

FBAHBATES AR ZHBAE
ZBERHATENE

FLRGEEMBRERNEIBIRGEEYHREM
R4V E TR -

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BANERNAREMREXRER

Our procedures in relation to the fair value
measurement of preferred shares classified as
financial liabilities at FVTPL included:

AT EREATES ABRZMBAR
ZEBERNATENEZEBREFEE !

- Understanding the key controls over the
fair value measurements and evaluating
the design and implementation of these
controls;

- TRRH N TESENVRRES > W%
FEHNORSARER

- Reading relevant agreements and
documentations, including but not
limited to investment agreements, and
Shungdong Port’'s memorandum of
association;

— REERABZR R BIEEFRNEE
E A EENE T EE N



Key audit matter

MBELEE

The determination of the fair value of these financial liabilities at FVTPL
involves significant estimates made by management.
EEZERATESABGZZUBARZATESIRAEEREFLEN
EPNCTE

Therefore, we identify the fair value measurement of these financial
liabilities at reporting date as a key audit matter.
A KM ZEMBEERREBHAZ AFTEFEMNN ABAREZ

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unqualified opinion on those statements on 31 August 2020.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

"y i

BN S

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN ERNFAREMBEZER

- Assessing the objectivity, independence
and competence of the Valuer;

- SHEEEMRNZRLE B RED

- With the assistance of our internal
valuation specialists, evaluating the
valuation techniques and methodologies
applied in the circumstances, reviewing
management’'s key inputs with
supporting evidence such as market data
obtained independently; and

— ERBEEERNHEIT > T EERER
TRIEANGERN AL BREIERE
BEEXFURENTE20AEE (BII0E
TEENTISEE ; &

- Examining the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosures on the
fair value measurements of the financial
liabilities at FVTPL.

— BMERANTESABGZHFEEEATF
B EZRENADERBEL -

HthE1\

AEEBEE_T-AF+A=T—HLEFE
ZIEREMBRREHS - REmEZ HiN
TTEENA=+—HUZERRHAERE
BER-

AT 5 1 5 R R B A BB 4R S LA b
HYE &

EFFHHMENEBT HMEHNEER 82
BFERTANMEER EFBERIEERN
FREMBRERRRMANZEMES -

BMHGEEMBRENERINREAMEL
BERMAEHZEEHMENEREATANE

24t 1A
EH:%EI o ©

RERBERKEEERERAR / 2T /" —FF%K 45

4 e i T
H' i



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BWILZBEN RS

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

46 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020/21

REMBZEEMBREMS > RANEEHE
BHMER ZLBRET TEEMENEEH
FEMBREANKMEBTZERET TEHNBER
FHEEANEBAUFTFEERERBRANBER

ERHEMABETHNIE HRMADSEMERE
AERERRM HABBREZFE UM
= RABAFHERNERS

%%Eﬁﬁéﬂ?ﬁ‘%iﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ(%ﬂ@ﬁ
T

EFRACERBEEBEHNRATRMNEBM
BREZEMREBRAGANKERERRE
EMATHGREV BRSNS THERIRB/RES
MBERENBRAGFEARNFNHERMER
WERERRA TR EZEES-

ERBEGEVHRRE EFAEENE 85
BEFECENEN TEBERBR TIRERFE
RERAMNER MER) > UREAFEEE R
B AR BRIFEFEER ESEEBEIFL
e FpEAMERNEASZE-

EXRELZEERMETREEE BE£H
MHBEBRESREFZEE



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of agreements, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

"y i

BN S

ZHBEMRL B AR & M B R AKX
EHEE

BMVERRAERIEER LG OMBTRER
BRFEARMFRNERMENNERERR
gt> ¥ 3 HFHH R M B RORBENRE - AR E
ERBRMAGZIHBENET (FAEED B
TEH BEEEMEN - RMATETMARENN
BREMEMALTE ESEEEASE-

GEREBSEXRNRE ETERFERRESS
B RN ETHERERE —BERBERRLAEE
Ry A8 AE 3L IR o SRR P LU R EREF S ER 5| B
HENNERESERMABATIZEERE
REBGEEVBREFENEIRER  RER/E
R ERMRAL

ERHEMREBEEBEFEIFE ZEZN—I
7 BRETEREAET R EEESZABESE
RIREERCE - HAFITF -

. H SRR FNERMER RS
MHEBRRFEERERRANER > R&T
RATEZEFUEHZERME  UKkE
DRERBENEZER FARMER
BOERE - N ERFFRIBE S e R R ~ R4
BRER BRI OB A ERESR
Z £ AL RAEHRAMGFMERNHIRE
ARERBRA AR SR AREZERREER
MERHIRERBREALIER

. THREZRZABOABSES URFAER
MERTEBEENEZEF EENILIF
H EEEABEFNERMEERTER

BERBERKEERERAR / -2 /" —FF% 47

i e -
gl ol



30T | Sk '- o
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3L 1% BT ¥R

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 November 2021

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P07327
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
BEZZ-_—F | &EZZ—NF
=HA=+—H | +ZA=+—H
IE+HEA EFE
I FET TFHET
Continuing operations FHBIREER
Revenue U % 8 193,148 129,838
Cost of sales and services rendered THE RIEMRFEBI AR A (3.164) (2,327)
Gross profit EF 189,984 127,511
Interest revenue ISV ON 9(a) 23,704 10,870
Other income and other (losses)/gains, net Efthlig A &
Hith (5518) W= F 48 9(b) (38,806) 18,144
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RIS (8,099) (9,654)
Administrative expenses THRHX (55,518) (42,097)
Fair value gain on investment properties R &Y A FEIWE 20 33,600 5,196
Loss on early redemption of EAIBRIAREEKR B8
promissory notes 36 (1,788) (6,459)
Finance costs E RN 11 (47,495) (45,028)
Profit before income tax PREFS IR AT 95,582 58,483
Income tax expenses iSRRIz 12 (36,723) (23,124)
Profit for the period/year from FEREEH2
continuing operations HA,EAE T 13 58,859 35,359
Discontinued operation EBRIEREER
Profit for the period/year from BRIEKEER
discontinued operation A EREF) 14 - 11,496
Profit for the period/year R ERiET 13 58,859 46,855
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
Note HK$000 HK$'000
BHE_E_—F | BEZZ—NF
=A=+—H8 | T*TA=+—H
LE+HEAR IFFE
M 5E FAET FHET
Attributable to: TS EREM -
Owners of the Company EN/NEIEZE =N
— Profit from continuing operations —FEREEB RN 6,726 19,814
— Profit from discontinued operation — BRI E = mF] = 11,496
Profit attributable to owners TATEE NG EF
of the Company 6,726 31,310
Non-controlling interests JEER R
— Profit from continuing operations —FBREER 2w 52,133 15,545
Profit attributable to FEFE G 1 2 FE (G 7
non-controlling interests 52,133 15,545
58,859 46,855
HK cent HK cent
AL AL
Earnings per share sREA 16
Basic and diluted BEARRE#E
— from continuing and discontinued —FHEREEB R
operations BRIEREET 0.09 0.44
— from continuing operations —FHEREER 0.09 0.28
— from discontinued operation —ERIEKEER - 0.16
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SEEEBRAR

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE_ZT_—& BE_ZT—NF
=A=+—H |+t=ZBA=+—H
WE+HEA EFE
FHET FHETT
Profit for the period/year iR FERER 58,859 46,855
Other comprehensive income/ Hthz2ml A FExX)
(expenses), net of tax NI IAE
Items that may be reclassified HEAEMSHEERR
subsequently to profit or loss: EA
Exchange differences on translation MEBINEBUBRERZ
of financial statements of foreign & = RE
operations 56,801 (16,422)
Release of exchange reserve upon HE B R B B AR
disposal of subsidiaries PE R = (10,327)
Items that will not be reclassified to RERTEEN 7HEE
profit or loss: EmbIEE
Fair value changes of equity BAFEFARMET
instruments at fair value through other WA R TE
comprehensive income REEEE) (3.648) -
Other comprehensive income/ R EREMEE
(expenses) for the period/year, WA (Fx) >
net of tax NpMIE 53,153 (26,749)
Total comprehensive income R/ EFREEBAELE
for the period/year 112,012 20,106
Attributable to: THZERES :
Owners of the Company FN/NETEZ T =N
— continuing operations —FBIREER 50,268 4,349
— discontinued operation —BRIEKESER - 1,172
Total comprehensive income attributable  ZxA T %A AFELL
to owners of the Company 2EWA4EZE 50,268 5,521
Non-controlling interests e RE =
— continuing operations —FFEREET 61,744 14,585
Total comprehensive income attributable  FEIEREHE TR FE(E
to non-controlling interests 2EWALLEE 61,744 14,585
112,012 20,106
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEMBIRRAR

At 31 March 2021 -2 —F=F=+—H

At 31 March At 31 December
2021 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEZ—%F RIZE—NHF
=A=+—H8 |+t=ZB=+—4H
B 5% F#ET FHET
Non-current assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-WEREE 19(a) 1,715 4,470
Right-of-use assets CRESE 19(b) 6,850 11,052
Investment properties KEYE 20 1,574,454 1,441,575
Goodwill GRS 21(a) = -
Investment in an associate R—EBER B 2 RE 22 - 2,805
Equity instruments at fair value through AT EsF AHMEEWA
other comprehensive income HEDZTE 23 222,412 226,060
Deposits and other receivables & R B E W RIS 25 27,134 93,196
1,832,565 1,779,158
Current assets BB E
Trade receivables B 5 EWARER 24 15,981 -
Amount due from an associate FE WL B & A Bl 7018 22 2,368 5,588
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE RS R
other receivables HuihEUIE 25 176,529 95,968
Loan receivables FEUW B R 26 209,844 39,096
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBRZZ
profit or loss HFEEE 27 13,166 28,314
Cash and bank balances RERIBITEE 28 13,680 125,352
431,568 294,318
Current liabilities mEmaE
Other payables and accruals H i fE A TRIE K FE ST IR 29 159,470 204,882
Amounts due to non-controlling JE 1 JE 2 B& AR B Fn 1B
shareholders 30 = 3,817
Bank borrowings RITRERR 31 155,079 177,012
Other borrowings H &R 32 12,317 147,901
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 3,109 6,134
Convertible bonds AR ES 35 = 26,221
Promissory notes AR ER 36 12,279 17,734
342,254 583,701
Net current assets/(liabilities) TRENEE (8E) FE 89,314 (289,383)
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRESAERE 1,921,879 1,489,775
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SEMBIRKRAR

At 31 March 2021 =2 —F=F=+—H

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 March At 31 December
2021 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RIEZ—F RIZZE—h%F
=B=+—H8 |t=-B=+—H
B 5 FET FET
Non-current liabilities JERBEE
Amounts due to non-controlling FET IEIERG RG B TR IE
shareholders 30 120,541 144,641
Bank borrowings RITIER 31 21,308 63,251
Other borrowings H A& 32 10,652 10,479
Preferred shares BER 33 333,832 -
Lease liabilities HEERE 34 6,105 7,523
Promissory notes AR 2R 36 117,123 134,811
Deferred tax liabilities FEEMIEEE 37 146,989 102,693
756,550 463,398
Net Assets BEFE 1,165,329 1,026,377
Capital and reserves BERRE#E
Share capital %N 38 720,563 544,484
Reserves G 41 144,234 243,150
Equity attributable to owners EATEEANELEDS
of the Company 864,797 787,634
Non-controlling interests e S 300,532 238,743
Total Equity ErER 1,165,329 1,026,377

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 208 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors (the
“Directors”) on 29 November 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lan Yongqgiang
k38
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEDZER

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FRARAARG RS
Fair value
Convertible through other
bond comprehensive Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange equity  Revaluation income Other  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BATE
WHRRES HARMRE
[ i ER BN ERHE REEE EfbfEfE WARE EthEE RitH 3 FERER BiEE
T FhEn TFhEn T FhEn ThEn TFhEn ThEn ThEn ThEn ThEn ThEn
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-BiEH 544,484 2,820,152 177,007 (10,470) 416,628 33,865 - - (3,218,361) 763,325 165,946 929,211
Changes in equity for the year: EREERE:
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - - - 31310 31310 15,545 46,855
Other comprehensive expenses EREMRERS
for the year
Exchange differences on translation BEEINERHBRRL
of financial statements of foreign ERER
operations - - - (15,462) - - - - = (15,462) (960) (16,422)
Release of exchange reserve upon HENBLAEER
disposal of subsidiaries ERRE - - - (10,327) - - - - - (10,327) - (10327)
Total comprehensive income ERREUAEE
for the year - - - (25,789) - - - - 31310 5521 14,585 20,106
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W ERER - - - - - - - (54) - (54) 54 -
Capital injection by non-controlling FERRRITE (Hii4a)
interests (note 47a) - - - - - - - 18,842 - 18,842 58,158 77,000
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-A%E+ZA=+-H
& 544,484 2,820,152 177,027 (36,259) 416,628 33,865 - 18,788 (3,187,051) 787,634 238,743 1,026,377
Balance at 1 January 2020 RIZ-EE-F-BEE 544,484 2,820,152 177,027 (36,259) 416,628 33,865 - 18,788 (3,187,051) 781,634 238,743 1,026,377
Changes in equity for the period: BhEngd:
Profit for the period bt - - - - - - - - 6,726 6,726 5,133 58,859
Other comprehensive income/ BAEM2ERA/ (BR)
(expenses) for the period
Exchange differences on translation BEEMNEHBRR
of financial statements of foreign EREE
operations - - - 47,190 - - - - - 47,190 9,611 56,801
Fair value changes of equity instruments ~ BATEt AHH2RERAK
at fair value through other REIENATERD
comprehensive income - - - - - - (3,648) - - (3,648) = (3,648)
Total comprehensive income BRREUALE
for the period - - - 47,19 - - (3,648) = 6,726 50,268 61,744 112,012
Acquisition of non-controlling interests  WESEIEHI R - - - - - - - (45) - (45) 4 =
Issuance of shares upon conversion RagTRRESRETRG
of convertible bonds (note 35) (B5£35) 176,079 267,489 - - (#16,628) - - - - 26,940 - 26,940
Balance at 31 March 2021 RIBZ-£ZB=+-BEH 720,563 3,087,641 177,027 10,931 - 33,865 (3,648) 18,743 (3,180,325) 864,797 300,532 1,165,329
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Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BEZE_—F | #E"F-NF
=A=+-8 | +-BA=+-6H
IE+HEAR IEFE
B 5 FET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBRERNE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax PRPTIS AT & F)
From continuing operations FREREER 95,582 58,483
From discontinued operation ERIEKEER - 13,498
Adjustments for: FTIIEEFHAE
Depreciation of property, ME B RREHITE
plant and equipment 13, 19(a) 2,294 2,056
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEETE 13, 19(b) 7,381 6,567
Amortisation of intangible assets W B E 13, 21(b) = 287
Impairment loss of goodwill e RERE 13, 21(a) = 1,440
Impairment loss under expected credit FEWERNTEMEEEE
loss model on loan receivables ﬁ‘t—l:zﬁfﬁiéﬂﬁ 9(b), 26 6,962 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE MEMRERIE
plant and equipment 9(b) 445 -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of financial HER AT EFAER
assets at fair value through profit or 2 BEENEE/
loss (e z) 9(b) 14 (2,460)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR ZWa 14 - (11,041)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BAFEFAEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEEZAFEER
(W zk) 9(b) 14,991 (15,992)
Fair value gain on investment BEME AT EW D
properties 20 (33,600) (5,196)
Fair value loss on promissory notes AREBEANTEEE 9(b), 36 5,139 -
Fair value loss on preferred shares BRERATEEE 9(b) 13,655 -
Loss on early redemption of IRAIER AR RIENEIE
promissory notes 36 1,788 6,459
Gain on termination of lease HKIEER KRG (100) -
Share of results of an associate T E N B EE 13 2,857 1,123
Interest income A E WA 9(a) (23,704) (10,871)
Interest expenses FMERZ 11 47,495 45,193
Operating profit before working EEESEHZKE RN
capital changes 141,199 89,546
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B RUR=R Ggm)
N (15,362) 9,847
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, FENRIBEEE &
deposits and other receivables HMEWRIEZ (8m)
e % (50,605) 14,503
Decrease in other payables and accruals — Efth & {3 718 & FE 5t 3118
pEAA (71,965) (104,717)
Net cash generated from REEBMBZRAEFE
operating activities 3,267 9,179




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘7|'\ EE%IMLE%

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 EZE —

T —F=-A=+—HIL+HEA

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BHE_ZT-_—F | #E°2—hF
=B=+—H8 | +=ZB=+—H
IE+A@EA IEEE
iz FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM BRETSRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BEWME -BEREZE
equipment 19(a) (347) (1,236)
Payments for right-of-use assets EREEEMNR (193) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE - BERREZ
plant and equipment P8k IE 435 57
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HE&EZAFEAERZZ
at fair value through profit or loss MEEEZFIENIE 143 4,545
Net cash outflow from disposal WHENB AR
of subsidiaries BE&m FE5E 14 - (270)
Capital injection in an associate mEEREEE 22 - (3,990)
Refund of refundable deposits of BREMRERERS
an investment 55,875 -
Loans advanced to third parties ME=ZATENHNER (196,310) -
Repayment of loans from third parties E=-HEBEEM 30,723 42,796
Repayment from/(advance to) an BeEATER
associate (BHTHENT) 3,414 (5,588)
Interest received BWFE 8,107 1,887
Net cash (used in)/generated from ®EES FTA) /FrisZ
investing activities REFEE (98,153) 38,201
CASH FLOWS FROM MEEHHRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised MEEZIRITER 122,893 344,190
New other borrowings raised HmESE T HMER 2,269 110,786
New non-controlling shareholder’s loans ¥ & &7 JEIEREBREEXR
raised 86,765 -
Proceeds from issue of preferred shares  Z1TE R ZFrISIE 307,233 -
Repayments of bank borrowings EEIRITER (197,995) (334,132)
Repayments of other borrowings TE’/EHTWTE E (140,773) (67,396)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEREaE (7,460) (7,217)
Repayments of non-controlling BEFERRERER
shareholders’ loans (127,477) (122,536)
Repayment of promissory notes EBEXKRIZE 36 (33,833) (98,166)
Interest paid BERFE (29,786) (25,453)
Net cash used in financing activities FIEEBIFMAZREFEE (18,164) (199,924)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HEkFAEEFEEEZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS AR ER (113,050) (152,544)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — EEXEH) > g & 1,378 1,365
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B/ FNHRER
AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD/YEAR HE&EEEER 125,352 276,531
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B/ EXRHEER
AT END OF PERIOD/YEAR RE%EER 28 13,680 125,352
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated and
domiciled in the Cayman Islands. Its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is
Units 4307-08, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company's shares are listed
on the The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, the principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the "Group”) include:

- Oil and liquefied chemical terminal (the "Qil and
Liquefied Chemical Terminal”) representing the business
of leasing of oil and liquefied chemical terminal,
together with its storage and logistics facilities (the
"Port and Storage Facilities”), and provision of agency
services on trading of oil and liquefied chemical
products;

- Insurance brokerage service (the “Insurance Brokerage
Service”) representing the business of provision of
insurance brokerage service; and

- Oil Production representing the business of oil
production (discontinued on 28 June 2019 in
connection with the disposal of subsidiaries).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B EZ —Z—

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current accounting period reflected in
these financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (“HK$'000") except when otherwise
stated.
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2. REEE

(a)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HEA

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Loss of controls over assets of
Qinghai Forest Source Mining
Industry Developing Company Limited
("QHFSMI”) and Inner Mongolia Forest
Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“IMFSMI”) and
deconsolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

Ms Leung Lai Ching (” Ms Leung”)’s legal status as
director and legal representative in QHFSMI and
IMFSMI remained unchanged in the absence of her
cooperation

Ms Leung was a director and legal representative of
both QHFSMI and IMFSMI. In September 2009, the
sole shareholder of QHFSMI and IMFSMI (i.e. a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) resolved to remove
Ms Leung'’s capacity as director and legal representative
of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI with immediate effect.
However, the respective members of the board of
directors and legal representative of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI were not officially changed up to the date
of authorisation for issue of the Group’s financial
statements as Ms Leung, being the legal representative,
was not cooperative and failed to provide the requested
documents and corporate seals.

Transfer of exploration licence without the
Company’s knowledge, consent or approval

The Group acquired QHFSMI from Ms Leung in 2007.
QHFSMI was the holder of an exploration licence, which
conferred QHFSMI the rights to conduct exploration
work for the mineral resources in the titanium mine
at Xiao Hong Shan in Inner Mongolia, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). In 2010, the board
of directors discovered that the exploration licence
held by QHFSMI was transferred to a company known
as REH/NAWBEHREZEERASE (in English, for
identification purpose only, Inner Mongolia Xiao Hong
Shan Yuen Xian Mining Industry Company Limited)
("Yuen Xian Company”) at a consideration of Renminbi
("RMB") 8,000,000 (the “Change of Exploration Right
Agreement”) without the Company’s acknowledgment,
consent or approval. Ms Leung is one of the directors
and the legal representative of Yuen Xian Company.
Without the exploration licence, QHFSMI no longer had
the rights to, among other things, carry out exploration
of the mineral resources of the titanium mine, access to
the titanium mine and neighbouring areas and has no
priority in obtaining the mining rights of the titanium
mine.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2. REEE

(b)

Loss of controls over assets of QHFSMI (b) REHEBHRERATS

and IMFSMI and deconsolidating
QHFSMI and IMFSMI (Continued)

Final decision on the Change of Exploration Right
Agreement

As soon as the Group had discovered the loss of
QHFSMI's exploration licence, the Group commenced
the legal proceedings against Ms Leung for getting back
the exploration licence. In March 2016, the Company
received the final decision letter from the Qinghai
Procuratorate that the Change of Exploration Right
Agreement was invalid. As Yuen Xian Company had
already obtained the mining licence on the titanium
mine at Xiao Hong Shan in Inner Mongolia, the PRC, the
Group is now seeking for the legal advices to resolve
this matter.

De-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

Given that (i) the discovery of the loss of significant
assets of QHFSMI; (ii) Ms Leung’ s legal status as
director and legal representative in QHFSMI and IMFSMI
remained unchanged; and (iii) the Group was unable
to obtain the financial information of QHFSMI and
IMFSMI, the Directors considered that the Group had no
power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from QHFSMI and IMFSMI and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
The Group appointed the PRC lawyers to handle the
matters in regaining its controlling power over QHFSMI
and IMFSMI. In the opinion of the Directors, the
aforesaid legal proceedings have no material impact
on the financial position and operations of the Group
as the Group is still in the process of regaining the
controlling power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI which had
already been deconsolidated since 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MBS RRM S

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 BE_—_Z - —F=A=+—HI-+AES

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the board of
Directors dated 30 December 2020, the Company’s
financial year end date has been changed from 31
December to 31 March. Accordingly, the current
financial period will cover a period of fifteen months
from 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2021. The
comparative figures (which cover the financial year
from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019) for the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows and related notes are not
comparable with those of the current period.

The consolidated financial statements for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group's interest in an
associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below:

- investment properties;
- equity instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income ("FVOCI");

- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"); and

- financial liabilities at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

2. REEZE )

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(c)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs

(a)

Changes in accounting policies

In the current period, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current period had
no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance for the current period and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B EZ —Z—

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments’

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions*

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021¢ (Issued on
9 April 2021)

e MBRRMEE
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3. FEREAVMBRSENZE
HNE ),

(b)

EEMEREKRERZHET
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7 8 [ 30 442 5 FE A T 5 S A
B RERZHTEBUBRS
R RAEETA

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2°
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
and related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)’

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1
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AE M BIRRMEE
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 &2 — &£ - —F=A=+—HI-+HEA

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HKFRSs (continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies'
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates’

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to
HKAS 12 Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single
Transaction’

Amendments to Property, Plant and
HKAS 16 Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2018-2020?

—

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
June 2020

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
April 2021

The Directors anticipate that the application of all the
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’'s proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to owners
of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the period between non-controlling interests and
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these holders
are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to

goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 4(i)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group's equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the period are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated income statement and statement of other
comprehensive income.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest
is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method, together with any other long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate (after applying the expected
credit loss ("ECL") model to such other long-term
interests where applicable (see note 4(i)(i)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group'’s
previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each cash-
generating unit, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 4(i)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities
is capitalised if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and
the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the costs of
materials, direct labour, and an appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs,
where applicable(see note 4(w)). Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see note 4(i)). Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which
itis incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (see note 4(i)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and
brands is recognised as an expense in the period
in which it is incurred.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on
astraight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated
useful lives are as follows:

based on unit of
production method

based on unit of
production method

— exploration and
evaluation assets

— interests in oil
production sharing
contract

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the
change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively
from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

4.

(c)

™. '.-\_

L STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

BEAREHEE ®

BEE @
(i) EEE BERIL) ()

BEERERIERENZE
WEE#BENEEMS
FIEREMRNUEGREE
Bm Pk TIABAR
REERERzEBTLEE
BEHEAHSAEZAES
85 M E fh 5t B £ A 5 81
mE

- HWRKkEM EREE
BE BAE
- REREE BEREE
BT BDF

SEAER HAE K
ke

A ERAFHTERERY
BNEETFHBE -EE
BETEECHRFHRASER
BEFAERER S EFL
e UEERESREEMN
KB RME B I EET
EENERFEMARERD
FE-EERFRRER
BT E R AIEAE
HmERAEBE S AR
iR 5B H HARE IR | SRR
HHARPEBETLEENE
HHRARR

RERBERKEZERERAR / 2T /" —FF%K 73




- § "
i .rs f“

74

NOTES TO THE CON

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries and associates,
are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at FVTPL for which transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 7. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification.

(i) Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held
for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments
of principal and interest. Interest income
from the investment is calculated using
the effective interest method (see note

4Au)(iii)).
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Other investments in equity securities

(Continued)

(i) Investments other than equity investments
(Continued)

FVOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and
the investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by
both the collection of contractual cash
flows and sale. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses,
interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from equity to profit or
loss.

FVTPL if the investment does not meet
the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d)

Other investments in equity securities
(Continued)

(ii)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an irrevocable
election to designate the investment at FVOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to accumulated
losses. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVTPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss
as other income.

76 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020/21

4.

SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAGHEE @

(d)

HthEmEHRE @

(ii)

B RE

REDESFZREDER
BAFEFAED FRIF
BokETIFFEEER
&> AR RERRER
AEE TR HMIEER
ERERBRAFEFAH
fhE2mWBA (ReJ&EE) »
U ATEZREZHN
Hth2Em KRS ER B [
EETIRERN TR
MEEHTARBREN
GRmERFHPIFL-
RIEELARMEER IH
themEmlE Rt 228 E
BREN QT ERE CRH
B8O EERARLER
Lo HER  RATE#E
(FEIEE) Rtz 28RS
BERFEE MIFEB
BmBEb-NEDEFZ
REZKRE TwmoERE
AFEFABRIIEAT
Bt AREMEESA) F5
BmERDEAMMUA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlI

NANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

4. FARGFHEEK ®

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 4(g)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction or
development at the end of the reporting period and
their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value
or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 4(u)(ii).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 4(i)(ii)) to the consolidated financial
statements:

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying plant
and equipment (see note 4(g)).

Other than oil properties, depreciation is calculated
to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives.

(e)

(f)

BERBERKEERERAR / -2 /" —FF% 77

REME

REVMEERABRDESRAR
REXEEMESARBFEER
m (R F4()F AN LR, =
BT B EETHEREERRK
ARFANIMUKREERER
MENHBRBIFREMENY
2,

REMER AT EIR FRIFR
BERRDEREAFAEBRE
FoMERFER EMEFERT
B-REVEATELISHRE
HHEREMEMEE T[T
HREBERPER -REREYHE
BYTE & WL A SR B 5E4(u) (i) PR At 75
AN

ME--BER=RE

TIME - -BERRHEEE (TR
TA2BRIN) 2B AR R 5117 EE Koot
BEE (REaHBHREANEEALI)
(ii)) #F :

- HAEEIL Y ERTRN
AEfMEEAZEEMEZ
HEEENEREEE ;
)4

- WmERKZEBEER ©1FH
HEERMBEERREE
FNERAEEE (R
4(g)) °

BRI ESN TETRYE K
ERRHEEENMGSEIEAER
W REBBEGEM R A BE
H&GsHRIEREE WA) st8 -



R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation on oil properties is provided to write
off the cost of oil properties using unit of production
method utilising only proved developed oil reserves as
the depletion base.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not
included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract ("lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are any rent concessions which
arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16, Leases.
In such cases, the Group took advantage of
the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change
in consideration as if it were not a lease
modification.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting date.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not
the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases is
recognised in accordance with note 4(u)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as
an operating lease with reference to the right-of-
use asset arising from the head lease. If the head
lease is a short-term lease to which the Group
applies the exemption described in note 4(g)
(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i E S ER R M EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EBEKXREHEE @
(Continued)
(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities (h) MBEERMBEE
(i) Recognition and initial measurement (i) R ERAE
The Group classifies its financial assets into the FEBBEMBEEDSE
following measurement categories: amortised BUTHENDE | B#H
cost; FVOCI and FVTPL. When financial assets B mAFESAEM
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair TEBARZERFESA
value plus transaction costs that are attributable HEm HBEER RESR
to the acquisition of the financial assets, except B2 A T ESMUER
in the case of financial assets recorded at FVTPL BEERMGNR S KA
for which transaction costs are recognised EEEBEREATYE
directly in profit or loss. TR Z B EERRI > Z
EEEZRZHRARERE

B FESD

All regular way purchases and sales of financial FrEUIES B N ETHE
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, HEEBENRXZ B B
the date that the Group commits to purchase or AEBREEBERHERZ
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are EENBH BR-EBH
purchases or sales of financial assets that require AEEERRBR—KTIHR
delivery of assets within the period generally B 818 41 5T B9 HA RS A9 &2
established by regulation or convention in the NEENMBEEEE -

marketplace.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially FFrEMBREEERRAR
at its fair value net of directly attributable FEINFEZERGERZZ R
transaction costs. A ©
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)
(ii) Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI
or FVTPL.

Financial asset measured at amortised cost or at
FVOocC!

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost
if it has contractual terms that give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI characteristics”).
is the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition but this may change over the life of
the instrument as amounts are repaid. Interest
consists of consideration for the time value of
money, for the credit risk associated with the
principal amount outstanding during a particular
period and for other basic lending risks and
costs, as well as profit margin.

Principal
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(i) Classification (Continued)

Financial asset measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI (Continued)

Whether financial assets are held at amortised
cost or at FVOCI depend on the objectives of
the business models under which the assets are
held. A business model refers to how the Group
manages financial assets to generate cash flows.
The Group makes an assessment of the objective
of a business model in which an asset is held at
a portfolio level because this best reflects the
way the business is managed and information
is provided to management. The information
considered includes:

- how the performance of the portfolio is
evaluated and reported to the Group's
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of
the business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model)
and its strategy for how those risks are
managed;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(ii)

Classification (Continued)

Financial asset measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI (Continued)

- how managers of the business are
compensated (e.g. whether compensation
is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows
collected); and

- the frequency, volume and timing of
sales in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and its expectations about
future sales activity. However, information
about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall
assessment of how the Group's stated
objective for managing the financial
assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.

Financial assets which have SPPI characteristics
and that are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows (“hold to collect”) are
recorded at amortised cost. Conversely, financial
assets which have SPPI characteristics but are
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets (“hold to collect
and sell”) are classified as held at FVOCI.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(i) Classification (Continued)

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows
are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’
is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and
for the credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period
of time and for other basic lending risks and
costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative
costs), as well as profit margin. In assessing
whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI,
the Group considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether
the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making the assessment,
the Group considers:

- contingent events that would change the
amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Group's claim to cash
flows from specified assets; and

- features that modify consideration of the
time value of money (e.g. periodical reset
of interest rate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlI

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(ii)

Classification (Continued)

Financial asset measured at FVTPL

Financial assets which are not held at amortised
cost or not held at FVOCI are held at FVTPL.
Financial assets and financial liabilities held at
FVTPL are either mandatorily classified as FVTPL
or irrevocably designated at FVTPL at initial
recognition.

Financial assets and financial liabilities which are
mandatorily held at FVTPL are split between two
sub-categories as follows:

- Trading, including financial assets
and liabilities held for trading, which
are those acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term and
derivatives.

- Non-trading mandatorily at FVTPL,
including instruments (other than trading
or derivatives) in a business which has
a fair value business model, hybrid
financial assets that contain one or
more embedded derivatives, financial
asset that would otherwise be measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI but which
do not have SPPI characteristics and
equity instruments that have not been
designated as held at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MBS RRM S

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 HZEZ_—%

——F=B=+—HLt+HEAR

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(ii)

Classification (Continued)

Financial asset measured at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities may
be designated at FVTPL when the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities on a different basis.

Financial liabilities that are not financial
guarantees or loan commitments and that
are not classified as financial liabilities held at
FVTPL are classified as financial liabilities held at
amortised cost.

The Group's financial liabilities include other
payables and accruals, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders,
borrowings,
preferred shares and promissory notes. The
Group classified its financial liabilities as
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

bank and other
lease liabilities, convertible bonds,

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent
to their initial recognition, except in the period
after the Group changes its business model for
managing financial assets.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities held
at amortised cost are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Financial assets and liabilities mandatorily held at
FVTPL and financial assets designated at FVTPL
are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recorded in revenue from other sources line in
income statement unless the instrument is part
of a cash flow hedging relationship. Contractual
interest income on financial assets held at FVTPL
is recognised as interest income in the income
statement.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or it transfers the
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain
control of the financial asset.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(iv)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the carrying amount of
the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to
the portion of the asset derecognised) and the
sum of (i) the consideration received (including
any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (i) any cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group enters into transactions whereby
it transfers assets recognised on its statement
of financial position, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the transferred assets or a portion of them.
In such cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognised. Examples of such transactions
are securities lending and sale-and-repurchase
transactions.

In transactions in which the Group neither
retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of a financial asset
and it retains control over the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of
its continuing involvement, determined by the
extent to which it is exposed to changes in the
value of the transferred asset.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged or
expired.

90 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020/21

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAGHEE @

(h)

MBEEERMBRE @

(iv)

AR IEFEST ()

MBEERIERAR &
EREE (DB F &I
REEE D ZREE) H()
BEWRERAE (BEEAE
BISHE ERE M ERE
wad RPN EMEEE
AR ZERRET U
FIRBMZ ZRNIE M

=]
o ©

AEFTURS  BIESE
BREFBIRRERERZ
EE - ERECEEEE
HNEDEREEZFIAN
KR AR BB K B4R o 10
EEBRT EBEEE
TEREILERB - AEAX
Bz FRBESBEUR
HEREIERRS -

HRRZ 5 AEEET
BT EBYHEEER
B RARBERE D ER
KEH BfREHEERE
Il - Bl 7 & [ A A R AT
ZEE EUHEES R
BERR MEBSHEE
ERREAREBREES
BEEHNEEEE-

AERRGHNEEERN
EmRRLEEIFEE

& o



4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL
on the financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and bank balances, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, loan
receivables and amount due from an associate);

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVTPL
and equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-
recycling), are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

In measuring ECL, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

ECL are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECL: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECL: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

92 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020/21

4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAGHEE @

()

SEBEERREERE @

(i)

KEMBIRZISERE
(&)

FEFHIEEER (B

LS THACEEEEEERE
zREHABATEREER
EERRBzZEREOH
fi o

REtERBAEEBERR
FEREEREERMY
BE R A TR T R A
BZzeEMEEREREZFH
B BEAREBESEMA
IR 55 AR 500 e R SR AT R
TERIR B # o

RREEEREBUTE

A

- 128 B RHEER
BiERAERS
BEEERI12EA RN
FEREZENEN
MERZEKR, &

- EHEREERB
B IERERER
FEEBERELE A
B2 FE AR
ERREENEMNM
BRZEXR-



4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECL unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since
initial recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECL.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk
of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B EZ —Z—

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past
due status and credit risk ratings.

ECL is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a
loss allowance account.

e MBRRMEE

—F=R=+—HILL+HEAR

BAXEHEE @
(i) EEEBEKREERE @

() KEHMBELIRZIFEER
(&)

EERBEAE LA (B

- BEHEALEREEZ
BERSNARREE
= &

- (RE AN TR /=1
ERERB R
BAZEHHEEA
BOTHEAEERE
EZENBERER
R F &

HVEMBITAEZEE
EERE AR LA ZF >
Th¥z @R B E R %
ET BREREEET
T ER BB T AL EH
RS E R R E Gnm iR
NEREERETR) D48

REERERS AHEMR
AEEHEERRE UK
BRi 5 T H BT
RZEEREREF - FAH
SEERTRZEMNEH
Th 148 o BE 5T A BB I
HER - AEBMBATE M
% T AMDAE R HNE
50 Ak 38 38 48 5K B 1 PR AE
BABRZETAZEREA
BEe

RERBERKEEZERERAR / -2/ "—FF% 95



- § "
i .rs f“

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with
note 4(u)(iii) is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower

will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g k-
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- right-of-use assets;

- interests in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position; and

- Goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M aE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying amount of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 4(i)(i) and

(if)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(k)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 4(u)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 4(k)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see note
4(u)).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 4(i)(i)).
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

(m)

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in
note 4(i)(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expenses are recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
4(w)) to the consolidated financial statements.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Preferred shares

Preferred shares are classified as equity if it is non-
redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s
option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends
on preferred shares classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Preferred shares (Continued)

Preferred shares are classified as a liability if it is
redeemable on a specific date or at the option of
the shareholders, or if dividend payments are not
discretionary. The liability is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policy for interest-bearing borrowings
set out in note 4(m) and accordingly dividends thereon
are recognised on an accrual basis in profit or loss as
part of finance costs.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted into ordinary
shares at the option of the holder, where the number
of shares to be issued is fixed, are accounted for as
compound financial instruments, i.e. they contain both a
liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds are measured at fair value based on
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the prevailing market rate of interest for similar
non-convertible instruments. The equity component
is the difference between the initial fair value of the
convertible bonds as a whole and the initial fair value
of the liability component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of a compound financial instrument are
allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. Interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible bond equity reserve until
either the bonds are converted or redeemed.

If the bonds are converted, the capital reserve, together
with the carrying amount of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital
and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the bonds are redeemed, the convertible bond
equity reserve is released directly to accumulated losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(q)

(r)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including conditional promissory notes at
fair value) are initially recognise at fair value. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.

The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is

recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where

the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting

or hedges of net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case recognition of any resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company's shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the period/year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
loses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it
is probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 4(e) to the consolidated financial statements,
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group's assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the customer for more than 12 months,
measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. The Group takes advantage
of the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15
and does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

revenue is

(i) Trading business:

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period in
which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see
note 4(i)(i)).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(iv)  Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign
operation which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items,
including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill arising on
consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MBS RRM S

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 HZEZ_—%

4.

——F=B=+—HLt+HEAR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(y)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above), if earlier. It also
occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the statement
of profit or loss, which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group(s)
constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the Group's
parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 HEZE—Z - —F=H=+—HILt+AEA

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

4. FARGFHEEK ®

(y) FAEAL @

(b)  EFFE TIERMEE —
BEERALERER :

(i) ZEREKNERR
B—E£EZMER
B (EEE—8
NE B RAR K
FRBBATHE
HHRAE) o

(ii) —BEEAS—F
BBEATRE
B (REER
BABZHENE
REERE HMh
HUMEEAMEND
7)) o

(i) MEEEHBER
k’V — Tj_ E’J AN éé N

%o

FI'

v —MREAE=F
BEZAECE
M8 —HEAA%

BFEZHEBEZHE
AT

v) ZBERAEEERK
RrEEAREZ
ERMEESMN DR
3oz BE B R R St

"

(vi)  EEHi(a)PraEnlz
ANTER HHFEE
flzERE-

(viiy R Frs#pl 2z A
THZERBEK
EEHABZER

(HZEEZFRQ
S ZITEEERE
ipA=K

(viip —EER > HEE
EEFAREABH
m— B M
FAERNAER
B REAITEEE
ANERF -

BERBERKEERERAR / 22 /" —FFR

115



Y

Yl

NOTES TO THE CON

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y)

(2)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, the Directors have made the following
accounting judgement:

(i)

(ii)

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties
that are determining using the fair value
model, the Directors have reviewed the Group's
investment properties portfolios and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties are
held under a business model which objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that carrying
amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted. Deferred taxation
on fair value gain on investment properties is
calculated at the Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
rate in the PRC of 25%.

Control over Shandong Shundong Port
Services Company Limited (“Shundong
Port”)

Note 46 describes that Shundong Port is a
subsidiary of the Group although the Group has
only 46.67% equity proportion in Shundong
Port. The remaining shareholdings are owned by
several shareholders that are unrelated to the
Group. Details of Shundong Port are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Control over Shundong Port (Continued)

The Directors assessed whether the Group has
control over Shundong Port based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of Shundong Port unilaterally.
A concert party agreement was entered between
a subsidiary of the Group and one of the
shareholders of Shungdong Port, pursuant to
which this shareholder irrevocably undertook to
vote in accordance with the Group’s decisions
at shareholders’ meetings of Shundong Port. In
addition, with 66.67% voting right in Shundong
Port’s board of directors, the Directors concluded
that the Group has sufficiently dominant voting
interest to direct the relevant activities of
Shundong Port and therefore the Group has
control over Shundong Port.

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Note 23 describes that investment on Tai'an
Wanyue Real Estate Company Limited (“Tai’an
Wanyue") is treated as an equity instruments at
FVOCI although the Group has 40% ownership
interest in Supreme Success Company Holdings
Limited (“Supreme Success”) and indirectly
through Supreme Success to hold 28% effective
ownership interest in Tai'an Wanyue.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements
(Continued)

(iii)

Equity instruments at FVYOCI (Continued)

The Directors assessed whether the Group has
significant influence over Supreme Success and
Tai'an Wanyue based on whether the Group
has the practical ability to participate in policy-
making processes and the relevant activities of
Supreme Success and Tai‘an Wanyue. Pursuant to
a shareholder agreement entered with another
shareholder of Supreme Success, the Directors
concluded that the Group has no representative
on the board of directors of Supreme Success
and Tai'an Wanyue and hence not participate
in policy-making processes and other relevant
activities of Supreme Success and Tai'an Wanyue.
Therefore, the Group has no significant influence
over Supreme Success and Tai‘an Wanyue and
accordingly, the investment is classified as equity
instruments at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MBS RRM S

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 5. GEtFET RSt @
ESTIMATES (cContinued)
(a) Critical accounting judgements (a) FARGETHE @
(Continued)
(iv)  Principal versus agent consideration (agent) (iv) ZEFABEARBAZZEZE (t
2EA)
The Group is considered as an agent for its HRAEEREXEFA
contracts with customers relating to the sales T AREAS H R R As 15T
of oil and liquefied chemical products as the mERE KEBRHE
Group did not obtain the control over oil and MEFABEEHRRR
liquefied chemical products before passing on to BEImzaPRLAEE
customers taking into consideration indicators REAN BEFRSFTREAEER
such as the Group is not primarily responsible FEREBTEAENETES
for fulfilling the promise and not exposed to ARAEBTFERKEES
inventory risk. When the Group satisfies the B BAREBRERBNE
performance obligation, the Group recognises AR REBMUREHNET
an agency income in the amount it expects to be FREFRIAAEWE £ 88
entitled as specified in the contracts. HERRIEUA ©
During the fifteen months ended 31 March REE-_Z-_—4F=H
2021, the Group recognised agency income =E+—HLEFHE@AA K
relating to sales of oil and liquefied chemical EEBEIBHEEEHRRR
products amounted to HK$526,000 (year ended BEIREMNMAERA
31 December 2019: Nil). 526,000 T (BRE_-Z
—hE+ZB=+—081
FE &) -

120 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020721



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 7 to the consolidated financial statements contain
information about the assumptions and their risk factors
relating to valuation of investment properties, fair value
of equity instruments at FVTOCI and fair value of certain
financial liabilities at FVTPL. Other significant sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 March 2021 at their fair value of
HK$1,574,454,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$1,441,575,000). The fair value was based
on valuations conducted by an independent
qualified valuer using property valuation
techniques which involve certain assumptions of
market conditions including estimates of future
rental income from investment properties using
current market rentals and yields as inputs.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the
fair value of the Group’s investment properties
and corresponding adjustments to the amount
of gain or loss reported in the consolidated
income statement. Details of the fair value
measurements of investment properties are
set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(ii)

Estimation of the fair value of financial
assets and financial liabilities

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities
are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period as disclosed in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of financial investments that are
not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation techniques. The Group uses
its judgement to select methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in these assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the respective
fair value of these financial assets. Further
details are included in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The preferred shares issued by the Shundong
Port are not traded in an active market and
the respective fair value is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group applied the
discounted cash flow method to determine
the underlying equity value of Shundong Port
and the fair value of the preferred shares.
Key assumptions such as the timing of the
declarations of dividends were based on the
Group’s best estimation. Further details are
included in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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L STATEMENTS
GRBHRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iii)  Expected ECL of receivables

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash
shortfalls) over the expected life of receivables.
Receivables are categorised by individual
characteristics of each customer. The Group
estimates the loss allowance at an amount equal
to lifetime expected credit losses for receivables
based on the ageing of overdue balances,
repayment history of individual debtors, debtor
creditworthiness, historical write-off experience,
existing customer-specific and market conditions

and forward-looking information.

The Group considers the following indicators
when assessing the credit risks, such as
the changes in macroeconomic conditions,
probabilities of default and internal or
external credit ratings, or expected operating
performance of the customer, etc. At every
reporting date the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward
looking information are analysed. Such
assessment involves a significant degree of

judgement by the Directors.

Further details are included in note 6(a) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iv)

Impairment losses of non-financial assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a non-financial asset may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised. The carrying amounts of non-
financial assets are reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. These
assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their recorded carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Goodwill is tested annually for
impairment. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit containing goodwill is the
greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
selling price because quoted market prices for
these assets or cash-generating units are not
readily available. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
or the cash-generating unit are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Directors use all
readily available information in determining an
amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating
costs.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Directors carefully evaluate tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
these transactions is reconsidered periodically
to take into account changes in tax legislations.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible
temporary differences and cumulative tax losses.

As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which they can be utilised, Directors’ judgement
are required to assess the probability of future
taxable profits. The Directors assessment are
constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

SOLID

ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. MBEREERMHBIAZ

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL YNSRI
INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments MFEITAESE
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
NZZT=——%F RIE—Nn%F
=HA=+—H |+t=ZBA=+—H
FHET FET
Financial assets: MBEEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BRNFEFFAERZ
MHEE 13,166 28,314
Equity instruments at FVOCI BAFESAEMEZEBA
ZHE@mTA 222,412 226,060
Financial assets at amortised cost TR R AR Y BRI BB &
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BEReEMRRSEE
EE) 317,834 294,853
Financial liabilities: HMHEaE:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT ESAER
ZHBasE 376,186 70,455
Financial liabilities at amortised cost PR R AR RN B & 511,293 870,778
Financial risk management objectives and MEREMEEEBRREBR

policies

The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and currency risk. In addition, the Group also exposed
to equity price risk arising from its investments in other equity.
The exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks

are described below.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

MEEREERMBFIAZ

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to investments, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan receivables and
amount due from an associate. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are normally due
within 30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 30 days past due are
requested to settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in industries or countries in which the customers
operate. Significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, entire trade receivables of approximately
HK$15,981,000 (31 December 2019: Nil) was due from
the Group's single largest customer within the Oil and
Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment.

6.

NEE @)

(a)

EERR

EERBEHTFHIAEITEGY
BERGAERBRMBHEEZR
o AEENEERBRIERE
REE-BHRWRN - REKRE
th P& Uk TR ~ B LU A R L
ERAME - AEBEEKB R
ERIRITEHNEERARER
RRBEFAHDBEIEEEET
REBEHSEETRIERITR
TREB FEERREBEREE
N

B 5 EWRRZ

FEBCRUGEERARBEER
ROBIL AEEHABEERBR
—EEEZENTRETENE
Bt -ZEHEETREFAB
ERRBEIRENEMGCERRE
ATNEREN T ERBE RN
EBER MUK P EET R QIR
H-BRERERERBEERERH
EE30AREIH - RE B3
30AMEHBABRRINABERB
HEREER > DR EREMEINE
Be—RME  cEETERER
RHIERmR -

NEBRELKLEFRENITER
ERIESEAEFEERK B
REFEERBTIENAERY
BAEREENARREE P
REHR 2HEZERERY
15,981,000 (ZE—H5F | )
AEBHRRERBCTIREED
ERAEEE-—RAFS -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (cContinued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group's different customer bases.

At 31 March 2021 and 31 December 2019, there were
no trade receivables that were individually determined
to be impaired.

Deposits, other receivables and loan receivables

For deposits, other receivables and loan receivables,
the Directors make periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of deposits and other receivables
and loan receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The Directors believe
that there are no significant increase in credit risk of
these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-months ECL. For the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, an additional
impairment loss of approximately HK$6,962,000 (year
ended 31 December 2019: Nil) on loan receivables was
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B EZ —Z—

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Deposits, other receivables and loan receivables
(Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect

e MBRRMEE

—F=A=+—HIE+HEAS
HERGEERMFIAZ
YNSS-WE )]

(a) EERK @

#E - B FEURERE
- (n#ﬁ)

N ARk E i ERRRIE

of deposits and other receivables and loan receivables Uk EWERNEIBRERES
during the period is as follows: Lo(I
HK$'000
FHET
Balance at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 HWZZ—hFE—HB—HB-ZZ—N%F
and 1 January 2020 +ZA=+—BRZZEZEHF
—B—H# -
Impairment loss recognised during the period — HIFES L/WTEEB?E 6,962
Balance at 31 March 2021 RIZZ—&H£=RA=+—B#&% 6,962

Amount due from an associate

For amount due from an associate, in order to minimise
the credit risk, the Directors continuously monitor the
settlement status and the level of exposure to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In the opinion of the Directors, the risk of default
by this counterparty is not significant and the Group
assessed that the 12-months ECL on these balances was
insignificant for the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021 and for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
thus no impairment loss was recognised.

BB E LB E

?fﬁéuﬂ ERBIMEMS  »E
FEREEERRE EF—EH&
%i,\u%#{k’ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ RE > UERF
LU B8 B R 5 IR AR ER E 22 HF o
EERR aNBZENRRL
TREZB - FEBRFGEERE_F
——F=ZR=+—HL&k+naEA
RBE_Z-—AF+ZA=+—
HIEFEZFEFHN12E8 BN
EEBETER BT E5ERD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G B HRRM

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

n‘7|'\

6.

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBRABEERMBIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL NS SR 7]
INSTRUMENTS (cContinued)
Liquidity risk (b) mEIEEZRME
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEBZEINCESEBEEHEL
responsible for their own cash management, including BHReEE B8EREBHZ
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the %E,Hﬂ?ﬁiéb(&g“,\muﬁ%/@ﬁ
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject HRERFR EELKIABE
to the parent company’s board approval. The Group’s EgHE - AEBZHEKXATH
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements miﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬁaﬁﬁ&ELﬁﬁ
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure HEIENR BIRE T B
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and fﬁ%ﬁ{%&ﬁﬂ?x%nﬁ&ﬁﬁfﬁ
adequate committed lines of funding from major REZRENESREE  UEMNE
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in AREARBEESERK.
the short and longer term.
The following table sets out the remaining contractual TREFAEBIFETEMBAR
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the REREMARZBFE TENEHIEBE
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are o BIRBERBRGHORERE
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including (BREEAENFEAFENF BN
interest payments computed using contractual rates ;o EEY R AR ERARNIR
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the TR EAR) RAEEBNRNER
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be FHEE
required to pay.
Total
Within ~ More than contractual
6 months or 6 months to 1 year Over undiscounted Carrying
ondemand 12 months  to5 years 5 years cash flow amounts
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
6EARE  6ERMNE BHRER
ED E12(88 1EE5E SENE RERBLH REfE
FHE FHEr FEn FEn FEr FHET
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-£=R=+-H
Other payables and accruals E1W§ ]‘?’A’IEWE&H 95,134 - - - 95,134 95,134
Amounts due to non-controlling  FE{IFEREIRIRE T
shareholders 3,902 3,881 125,104 - 132,887 120,541
Bank borrowings RITER 134,379 23,033 23,754 - 181,166 176,387
Other borrowings Hifaz 2,187 11,576 12,100 - 25,863 22,969
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,715 1,715 10,202 - 13,632 9,214
Promissory notes RRER 15,087 2,593 120,855 - 138,535 129,402
Preferred shares (note) B (Hz) - - - - - 333,832
252,404 42,798 292,015 - 587,217 887,479
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M aE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBRARBEERMBFEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL NEE @@
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) WHBEERAMK @
Total
Within More than contractual
6 months or 6 months to 1 year Over  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 12 months to 5 years 5 years cash flow amounts
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
6EAME  6EAML BNRER

BREX 12088 1EESE SENE RERERE REE
TETL TERL TER TER TERT TERL

At 31 December 2019 RZE-nE+ZA=1+—H
Other payables and accruals HitEARIBREHN B 201,709
Amounts due to non-controlling ~ FEJSEEIRIREFIA

- - - 201,709 201,709

shareholders 3,817 - 146,201 - 150,018 148,458
Bank borrowings RITER 131,469 53,020 64,997 - 249,486 240,263
Other borrowings Hig 72,737 82,422 10,700 - 165,859 158,380
Lease liabilities HEat 3,309 3,309 11,130 - 17,748 13,657
Convertible bonds hRES - 26,940 - - 26,940 26,221
Promissory notes RAER 1,530 20,483 164,951 - 186,964 152,545

414,571 186,174 397,979 - 998,724 941,233

izt : EFRGSHRRBBRRSEH
B ARRAFFEEIRE[F

Note: The Directors estimated that there is no special dividend
to be declared by Shundong Port in the coming five

years from the reporting date.

The below table summarises the maturity analysis of
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the
facilities agreements with banks. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual rates.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
Directors do not consider that it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment and believe that these borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates.

RIS

TERBRRBRBERTZEZHME
WERFEBERRENDHRHEE
FREREBHRROBITERD
Mo -EENEREERS
MAESFTERR B AR 5K
FEBNTBRR EFBRR
TAKRAERNBERIINER
TREZFEBERRRBEREER
AEIEE -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. MBERBREERMBIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL NEE @
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) WHEEZRRE @
Over 1year Over 2 years Total Total
Within ~ but within  but within undiscounted carrying
1 year 2 years 5years  cash flows amount
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1ENERE 2FENEE KR
15/ pE SERN REMEBLH BiREE
TR TR TR TiEn TiEn
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-F=ZB=1+—H 62,809 7,462 120,406 190,677 176,387
At 31 December 2019 RIE-NE+ZA=T—H 187,006 64,997 - 252,003 240,263

(c¢) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank borrowings, convertible bonds, promissory notes,
other borrowings, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders and lease liabilities, which are issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk.

The Group monitors the level of its fixed rate

borrowings and manages the contractual terms of the
interest-bearing financial liabilities.
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e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group has exposure to fair value interest rate risk
through the impact of the rate changes on borrowings
which are at fixed interest rates. As at 31 March 2021
and 31 December 2019, the loan receivables exposed
the Group to fair value interest rate risk as the loan
receivables were at fixed interest rate. The Group’s fair
value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders (note 30),
bank borrowings (note 31), other borrowings (note 32),
promissory notes (note 36) and loan receivables (note
26).

In the opinion of the Directors, the expected change in
interest rates will not have a significant impact on the
interest income or bank balances and hence sensitivity
analysis is not presented.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations of
foreign currencies, including HK dollars and US dollars
against the functional currency of the relevant Group
entities.

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have
always been the concern of the Group. The Directors
will monitor the foreign currency exposure closely and
consider the use of hedging instruments when the
need arises. Given the insignificant net exposure to
foreign currencies, any change in the exchange rate
of foreign currencies relative to functional currencies
of the relevant Group entities is considered to have an
insignificant impact on the Group's profit after income
tax (and accumulated losses).
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BN )

MENESHESERBRZE
R AEEIRBEEAFEMNE
B -MRIEZ—F=F=+—
BER-ZZE—-hFE+ZB=+—
B> BHRERERZEEMNET
B WMAEBERREDRTEH R
FEAMERR AEBMZATE
MERREE D REMDIEZERE
HEBRIE (M5E30) ~RITE™
(FF5E31) ~ EffEgzr (BI5E32) ~
ARZE (H5E36) REWER (M
£126) °

EERn AN XxEHIEY
FEWMARRITEFELEERY
& I EEINERED -

S¥E R

FEBEIENTRHES XS B
XEBREIEHINE (BEBTRE
70) R EE ERINEE T K
HRPRESL -

FER-—BDREIEREBKRTS
B -BEFERYEEIERR
WERFRBE P TR ERINE
BYF E B O A E K ShEAE
HREREEERNEERES
B ERZERR D H AEBERA
sRrEd (RRsTER T
B

BERBERKEERERAR / 22 /" —FFR

133



134

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments held for trading and non-
trading purposes. Other than unquoted securities held
for strategic purposes, all of these investments are
listed.

The Group's listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities
are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
individual securities and the Group’s liquidity needs.
Listed investments that are not held for trading purposes
have been chosen based on their long term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for performance
against expectations. The portfolio is diversified in terms
of industry distribution in accordance with the limits set
by the Group.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for
long term strategic purposes. Their performance are
assessed at least bi-annually against performance of
similar listed entities, based on the limited information
available to the Group, together with an assessment of
their relevance to the Group’s long term strategic plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e B RRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

MEEAREEMMBEIAZ
AFE @

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (cContinued)

(e) HEmMEBEMER 5

N _E - —F=ZH=+—H'1&F
sHERRZERIEM, I 10%

(e) Equity price risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2021, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% (31 December 2019: 10%) in

the relevant stock price, with all other variables
held constant, would have increased/decreased the
Group’s profit after tax and decreased/increased the
accumulated losses. (31 December 2019: increased/
decreased the Group's profit after income tax and
decreased/increased the Group’s accumulated losses):

(ZE—hE+B=+—8":
10%) ' EFFEHMEBERF I
BER T &gm, R AE®
BRI B m A MR D I R 5HES
B(CE-AE+_-_A=+—0:
B A BT SRR

FRR D B mA kB R E

#8) :
At 31 March 2021 At 31 December 2019
“E¥-—-5¥=A=+-H “E—AE+ZA=+-H
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase/ increase in Increase/ increase in
(decrease) in  accumulated (decrease) in accumulated
profit after tax losses profit after tax losses
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®Bm/ (R  GED) /HEm #m/ GAd)  Gad) /1Em
iR & iER REEE i EER REEHE
TAET TAET TERT TERT
Change in the relevant equity ~ fARIEHBR AR
price risk variable: SY B .

Increase #1m 10% (1,316) 10% 2,831 (2,831)
Decrease AL (10)% 1,316 (10)% (2,831) 2,831

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after income tax (and
accumulated losses) that would arise assuming that the
changes in the stock market index at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same

FREDTBARRRRETSE
BN REPRELE I
EEBREMABAERMMFTA
MeAEERRSPARAZTEDR
BREBRZZEMHE IR RY
FEBZFAEREETN (KRSt
B EMZAREE - BE_T
—hNWF+B=+—HLEED

basis for the year ended 31 December 2019. REEEEET DM
(f)  Fair values ) 2FE

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.

FEMBIKRENFTEAERY
BEEKRYBABRZREERRK
FEREZAFERE
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments and the Group’s investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. At the end of each
reporting period, the Group works closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair
value measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are
not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that
include Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in
the fair value of the assets and liabilities, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.
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e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. ATESE@®

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

RTEERER @
Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2021 categorised into 31 December 2019 categorised into

R-BZ-F=B=+-RARAUTEANATENE RZB-NE+RZ+-BARANUTEANATEHE

Fair Fair
value at value at
31 March 31 December
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIZZ-F RIE-hE
=A 28
=t+-A2 =t-HZ
ATE £ it 224 NFE £ i E]
TR TER TR TER TiEn TER TEn TiEn
Recurring fai value measurements LEnATEE
Assets: BE!
Non-financial assets: HBEE.
~ Investment properties -RENE 1,574,454 - - 574454 | 1441575 - - 1441575
Financial assets: HHEE.
~ Held for trading - listed equity securities -8~ tTREES 13,166 13,166 - - 28314 28314 - -
- Equity instruments at FVOC| -RATEHARMZENAZ
B&RIR 2,412 - - 412 226,060 - - 226,060
Liabilities: af:
- Promissory notes -RREE (42,354) - - (42,354) (70,455) - - (70,455)
~ Preferred shares -Bik (333,832) - - (333.832) - - - -

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 and the year
ended 31 December 2019, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

BE _E_—F=ZHB=1+—HL+HE
BEBE_Z—NFEF+ZA=+—801k
FE > $—HREE _RBTEEE IR
EEANEHE =R - AEFNBRAR
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ByEEHE o
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements

Investment properties

REME

Equity instruments at FVOCI

BATESAEMEARAZESZTA

Promissory notes

ARER

plil

Valuation techniques

it {E M

Income approach

WA

Asset-based
approach

BEX

Scenario probability
analysis

BRERIM
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ANFES=E ®

AMEZRATEBOHER

Significant
unobservable inputs

BERRABRRBAAUE

(1

(M

(ii)

(i)

(i)

(ii)

Rental growth rate
per annum

AEFEEX

Discount rate

BEIRE

Capitalisation rate

EEN kS

Discount for lack of
marketability

TRZ BT

Discount for
lack of control

BRZ IR TR

Discount rate

BRIE=E

Probability of
fulfilment of
conditions

ERMIRFE AT A

Range

#£E

3%-9%

(31 December 2019:
0-6%)

3%-9% (ZE—HE
+-A=+—H":
0ZE6%)

8%

(31 December 2019:
8%)

8% (ZBE—HE
+-B=+—8:
8%)

5%

(31 December 2019:
5%)

5% (ZZE—H4E
+-A=+—H":
5%)

15.8%

(31 December 2019:
15.8%)

15.8% (ZZE—hE
+ZBA=+—8:
15.8%)

10%

(31 December 2019:
10%)

10%

(Z2—N&F
+-B=+—8:
10%)

7%

(31 December 2019:
7.5%)

7% (ZE—NEF
+ZA=+—8:
7.5%)

95%

(31 December 2019:
95%-100%)

95% (ZZ—NE
+ZBA=+—8:
95%-100%)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B EZ —Z—

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Valuation techniques

it {ER M

Preferred shares

Bk BREERE

Investment properties

The fair value of investment properties located in the PRC
is determined using income approach by reference to rental
growth rate per annum and capitalisation rate. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated to the rent growth rate
per annum and negatively correlated to the discount rate and
capitalisation rate.

Equity instruments of FVOC|/

The fair value of equity instruments at FVOCI is determined
using the asset-based approach adjusted for discount for lack
of marketability and lack of control discount. The fair value
measurement is negatively correlated to the discounts for lack
of marketability and lack of control. As at 31 March 2021,
it is estimated that: (i) with all other variables held constant,
a decrease/increase in discount for lack of marketability
by 1% would have increased/decreased the Group’s other
comprehensive income by HK$2,643,000 (31 December 2019:
HK$2,686,000); (ii) with all other variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in discount for lack of control by 1% would
have increased/decreased the Group's other comprehensive
income by HK$2,473,000 (31 December 2019: HK$2,512,000).

Discounted cash flows

e MBRRMEE

—F=A=+—HIE+HEB
AFET=E ®

EME=RATEH RN
(#)

Significant
unobservable inputs Range
EATTHERHABE E[E
Discount rate 5.5%
(31 December 2019:
N/A)
ARIR= 5.5% (ZZ2—NF
+ZA=1+—H:

REA)

REYE

URPREZEATFEINRZREYES
ATEERBRAZEZEE HE2EZHEF
BEXRERNMKR QA TEFEEBETF
BRERIERER BRERXRERCXREE
o

BAFEFARMEEAUAZ#EE TR

BAFEFAEMEEARAZEZT
B2 AFEEHEEFETE TRt =
BEHEHMITERBRZ TSI EEL A
BopFEFTELARZBHEMERRZE
B ZzrEaEE RS —F=A
=+—B8 s (()VEMBEEMEERE

TEWBERT B BHEETERLD
ibm%#%@zt%ﬂﬂﬂ%@l&)@bu/
#2,643,0008 T (Z2E—NF+AH
=+—H8 :2,686,00087T) ;(i)VEFFAHE
MEBESRF/EFNENBERT > = 6%
MR I8N0 % A A S B E A
2EUW AL H 2,473,000 7T (=
T—NF+ZB=+—H:2,512,0008

7T) °
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R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Promissory notes

The fair value of promissory notes is determined using scenario
probability analysis adjusted for discount rate and probability
of fulfilment of conditions. The fair value measurement is
negatively correlated to the discount rate and positively
correlated to the probability of fulfilment of conditions. As at
31 March 2021, it is estimated that: (i) with all other variables
held constant, a decrease and increase in discount rate by
1% would have decreased and increased the Group's profit
by HK$734,000 and HK$716,000, respectively. (31 December
2019: HK$1,986,000 and HK$1,918,000 respectively); and
(i) with all other variables held constant, a decrease/increase
in probability of fulfilment of conditions by 1% would have
increased/decreased the Group’s profit by HK$475,000 (31
December 2019: HK$725,000).

Preferred shares

The fair value of preferred shares is determined using
discount cash flow adjusted for discount rate. The fair value
measurement is negatively correlated to the discount rate. The
discount rate adopted was the sum of the yield of the 30-
year China Government Bonds and the average credit spread
of comparable bonds that are similar to that of the relevant
entity of the valuation. In addition to the assumptions adopted
above, the Company’s projections of future performance were
also factored into the determination of the fair value of the
Preferred Shares on the valuation date. As at 31 March 2021,
it is estimated that with all other variables held constant, a
decrease and increase in discount rate by 1% would have
decreased and increased the Group's profit by HK$99,439,000
and HK$67,477,000, respectively (31 December 2019: Nil).
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ANFES=E ®

EME=RATEHBHAN
(#)

EREE

AKREBRZATEERBESHEDM
EETE o W BB IR R R R A AL Y R =R
HiAE o N FE2HBMIRE IR E
ERNMEESEE N2 —F=4
=+—H 5t ()VEPMEEMEERE
REBIERT » B3R ZE /D 58 01 %
A mE ) R D B 12 N734,00078 7T K&
716,000 (ZE—HLE+ B =+—
B :95%A1,986,000% 7T %1,918,000
B RINVEFMBEEMEZ2RIFFEN
BRT  EREE RN %
(R A EE s A I8 0, R /475,000 7T
(Z&—hE+-B=+—H 725,000
HBIT) °

Bk

BERZ AFEERMBEREREE
EoMMAIREEHAE - A FEHSE
AR IR SRR o FT IR AL IR T B304
FHPEEEN WG E K AERE RS
EELUNTELERESNTFHEEERSE
2o BR U EFTRMMBERISN > AAQFE
HARKRRFNTFERA T REEBHES
Bz AFEZBE - R _ZE_—H=H
=t+—H GHIAEMEHEHMEBERTFAR
BB R T AR EE D R I 001 % i E
A5 B im ) R /D K2 38 1099,439,00058 7T
k67,477,000t (ZZ2—NF+ZA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M aE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

s

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. RFEFE@®
Information about Level 3 fair value BERE=RATEFENEN
measurements (Continued) (#4)
The movements during the period in the balances of these Level ZEE=ZRATFTEFEZHBRNEARNZ
3 fair value measurements are as follows: EHUT :
Non-financial
Financial assets and liabilities assets
MBEEERER FFHBEE
Equity
instruments Promissory Investment
at Fvodi notes properties
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BATFESA
Ht2EkAZ
BiETH ARER BREME
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ2—hE—F—H - - 1,425,000
Addition wnE 226,060 - 39,583
Issued B#1T - (70,455) -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment  FEZFERMREY E(LE
recognised in valuation gain on WA FERE
investment properties W F R
in profit or loss - - 5,196
Exchange difference included in SEAHMEERA
“exchange reserve” in other MEREEINERER
comprehensive income - - (28,204)
At 31 December 2019 RZZB-NE+ZA=+—H 226,060 (70,455) 1,441,575
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MBS RRM S

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 BE_—_Z - —F=A=+—HI-+AES

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7. REEFE@
Information about Level 3 fair value ERE=RATEFAENEN
measurements (Continued) (#)
Non-financial
Financial assets and liabilities assets
MHREEREE EMBEE
Equity
instruments Promissory Preferred Investment
at FvoCl notes shares properties
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRATEHA
Htt2EBAZ
EEIA RRRE Bk REME
TERT TERT TERT TERT
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZF—F—H 226,060 (70,455) - 1,441,575
Additions RE - (39,210) (307,233) 11,916
Net gain from a fair value adjustment PRIEZRERNRENEMEE
recognised in valuation gain on WENATERE
investment properties e % 88
in profit or loss - - - 33,600
Total loss recognised in the RedWm =R ZBEEE
consolidated income statement (EEAEMUA) B EE9(b)*
included in other income note 9(b)* - (5,139) (13,655) -
Total loss recognised in other REM2EBARRZ
comprehensive income B1E4EE (3,648) - - -
Derecognition upon partial EMEA R EL IR
fulfilment of conditions - 72,115 - -
Exchange differences included in SARMEEKA
“exchange reserve” in other ERHEENERER
comprehensive income - 335 (12,944) 87,363
At 31 March 2021 RZE-—-F=HA=+—H 222,412 (42,354) (333,832) 1,574,454
* Includes unrealised gains or (losses) recognised in profit or loss * HARBRERRMFEREGERRINRER
attributable to balances held at the end of the reporting period K= (518
For the fifteen months ended BEZZ-—F
31 March 2021 ZA=+—Hit+HER - (3,479) (13,655) 33,600
For the year ended BEZZ—NE
31 December 2019 +ZA=+—HIEE - - - 5,196
Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of loss ERABRERREFELDEARATE
of HK$3,648,000 (year ended 31 December 2019: Nil) relating SAEMEEWAZERTAZIEES
to unlisted equity securities classified as equity instruments at fe A5 5 A RBIE5 183,648,000 7T (&
FVOCI held at the end of the current reporting period and is E_EZ-NF+A=+—HIEFE:
reported as changes of fair value through other comprehensive ) sFAHEMEERA 2R ABZAT
income reserve (non-recycling). Bt AEME2EWARKE (FrsE0o) &
@J o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

REVENUE 8. W=
The principal activities of the Group are set out in note 1 to the NEBNFEEZHEHEN EEMBERERN
consolidated financial statements. 510
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BRIZERARBEIDZKBERE
major products or service lines is as follows: KWz EEUWT -
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE_T_—F #BE_ZT—NE
=B=+—H8 |+=ZBA=+—H
LE+REAR EFE
FAET FET
Revenue from contracts with EARAMBREENE1SREER
customers within the scope of REEFEHZKE (FFHEE)
HKFRS 15 at a point in time
Disaggregated by major products or BIBELRIRBERE D
service lines
- Agency income from — R AL RBHIEWA
insurance brokerage service (FELSEER)
(continuing operations) 14 8
— Agency income from trading of oil —EEHRERRBEIRZ
and liquefied chemical products RIEBUA (FEREER)
(continuing operations) 526 -
- Sale of crude oil —HERB (BREKEER)
(discontinued operation) - 16,436
540 16,444
Revenue from other sources Rk EHMEKEREZ WS
Rental income from investment KEMERSHA
properties (continuing operations) (FFELSEER) 192,608 129,830
Total revenue 4 193,148 146,274
Geographical markets ith & i 35
- the PRC —F 193,134 146,266
- Hong Kong —&5%5 14 8
193,148 146,274
Representing: i85
Continuing operations FREKSEER 193,148 129,838
Discontinued operation (note 14) BRI EER (WeE14) = 16,436
193,148 146,274
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

8.

REVENUE (continued)

Agency income from insurance brokerage service is from
contract with customers and recognised at a point in time when
the services are completed under the terms of each service
agreement and the revenue can be measured reliably, since
only by that time the Group has a present right to charge the
customers for the service performed.

Agency income from trading of oil and liquefied chemical
products is recognised when the Group satisfies its promise
to arrange for the oil and liquefied chemical products to be
provided by the suppliers to the customers and in the amount
of any fee or commission to which the Group is entitled
for arranging the oil and liquefied chemical products to be
provided to the end customers. Performance obligations are
satisfied at a point in time once control of goods has been
transferred to customers.

Sales of crude oil from oil production is recognised at a point
in time when the control of crude oil has transferred, being
when the crude oil have been delivered to customers’ specific
location. Following the delivery, the customer has full discretion
over the manner of distribution and price to sell the crude oil,
has the primary responsibility when on selling the crude oil and
bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the crude
oil. The normal credit term is up to 30 days. The segment of
sales of crude oil was discontinued during the year ended 31
December 2019.

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied performance
obligations on the abovementioned revenue, have original
expected duration of one year or less. As permitted under
HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlI

INTEREST REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

NANCIA

T

“Hr' ) e
AL

'S 1

L STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

F) B W 1 e HL U A B H Ath

AND OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (E548) Wz 7$ &E
(a) Interest revenue (a) FEW=
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
HE BHE
—E_—F —E-N%=F
=B=+—H |+=ZB=+—H
E+HRMEA LEFEE
FET FET
Continuing operations FHEREER
Bank interest income WITH] B A 93 39
Loan interest income ERF BIA 9,814 10,831
Other interest income HinF) SWA 13,797 -
23,704 10,870
Discontinued operation ERIERERER
Bank interest income WITHEUA - 1
Interest income on financial assets BB AENPYHREE
measured at amortised cost GIFSEON 23,704 10,871
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

9.

INTEREST REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 9.
AND OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

(Continued)
(b) Other income and other (losses)/gains, (b) HMKWARHEM (E58)
net Y 25 0% BB
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
HE BHE
S “ZT-hEF
=B=+—-H |+Z“HB=+—H
IE+HEAR IEFE
FHET FAET
Continuing operations FHERE R
Exchange gain/(loss), net BRI, (B518) S48 215 (982)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets 2 'AF{EF ARG Z M HFEE
at FVTPL ANFE (BB = (14,991) 15,992
Fair value loss on preferred shares BRI ATEEE (13,655) -
Impairment loss under expected credit FEWE RN TBEIEERE
loss model on loan receivables B TR ERE (sk26)
(note 26) (6,962) -
Fair value loss on promissory notes ARBEZ N FEEE
(note 36) (My5E36) (5.139) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BERXEZEE
plant and equipment (445) -
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HERAFEFABRZ
financial assets at FVTPL MBEEZ (BB = (14) 2,460
Rental income from sub-letting of DHEEEBEEZHERA
leased assets 132 487
Government grants (note) BN ED (M50 366 -
Service income ARFS WA 1,085 -
Sundry income HEIEWA 602 187
(38,806) 18,144
Discontinued operation BRI IS
Sundry income HIBWA = 17
(38,806) 18,161
Note: M -

SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B U R B A R H Ath
(B548) W= 358 @)

Government grants mainly represent subsidies received in

connection with the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of

the Government of Hong Kong Special Administration Region.
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to

these subsidies.
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography. In a manner consistent with the way
in which information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management, being the Directors, for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following three reportable
segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to
form the following reportable segments.

- the Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment
represents the business of the leasing of the Port and
Storage Facilities located in Shandong Province, the
PRC and owned by Shundong Port, and provision of
agency services on trading of oil and liquefied chemical
products;

- the Insurance Brokerage Service segment represents the
business of providing insurance brokerage service in
Hong Kong; and

- the Oil Production segment represents the business
of oil production in the PRC. This segment was
discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2019.
Details are explained in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as those described in the summary of
significant accounting policies.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Directors monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Reportable segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of investment in
an associate, equity instruments at FVOCI, certain property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, financial assets at
FVTPL, amount due from an associate, certain loan receivables
and other corporate assets. Reportable segment liabilities
include all liabilities with the exception of certain other
borrowings, promissory notes, certain convertible bonds, lease
liabilities and other corporate liabilities.

10.

DEEN

FEEZTREPFIEEES MEFIZER
RUEH R (EmkRE) MMECE
oA - AERZIUT=ZERSD
o ILEANBERENFEAERESITH
EEANE (ER) WFERDERERE
SHMERNA R —R-AEASHEZEDEUE
PR E D4R -

- HEERREBICIRBEDE 15
BEMRFE LRSI HIERS
BHRNBE R EEFRE LR
HESE AR KRREEIARAER
BER

- REBEELRBOE IBEREBR
HEMELCIRBES ; K

- EHDB ETENERER &
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S+ HUEEFEREEE 515
M BwRNE 140

BERGEHEZUHBREREAD
BB E L AR

RGO ERERESEZBNEE
B BRRUTEEEERRE ARG
NEE - BERARE:

BENHREECQREMEENEE B
BEERARBEE EFEERBEQT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments. Segment revenue and expenses do not include
the Group’s share of profits or losses of the Group's associate.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is earnings
before interest and taxes. For the purpose of assessment by
the Directors, the finance costs of bank borrowings, other
borrowings, lease liabilities and amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders were not included in segment results while certain
of the corresponding liabilities have been included in the
segment liabilities.

Customers from Qil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal and Oil
Production segments are located in the PRC (place of domicile)
whereas customers from insurance brokerage service segment
are located in Hong Kong. Geographical location of customers
is based on the location at which the goods are delivered
and the contracts are negotiated and entered into with the
customers. No geographical location of non-current assets is
presented as substantial non-current assets are physically based
in the PRC.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2021 and for the year ended 31 December
2019 is set out below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss:

L STATEMENTS

Nigel: Ll

e M B RRM

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

10. DHEER@®

ERBSOBBENER !

Continuing operations
HREEER
Oil and
Liquefied Insurance
Chemical Brokerage
Terminal Service Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR
REBE T mABEH AR A 40 AR 75 #st
FHET FET FHET
For the fifteen months ended HE_Z-_—EZH=+—H
31 March 2021 t+5HEA
Revenue from external customers RBIMNIER 2 193,134 14 193,148
Reportable segment profit/(loss) RENEEEN/ (B5148) 183,074 (535) 182,539
Interest revenue FE W 1,469 - 1,469
Depreciation of property, ME - -BRERZETE
plant and equipment (790) (5) (795)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESENE (506) (27) (533)
Fair value gain of investment properties & BE¥EMA T E WG 33,600 - 33,600
Fair value loss on preferred shares BERATERE (13,655) - (13,655)
Interest expense on: THEENF EME
- bank and other borrowings —RITRAMBR (30,514) = (30,514)
— amounts due to non-controlling —E IR IRERIB
shareholders (5,410) - (5,410)
— lease liabilities -HE&RE (98) = (98)
(36,022) - (36,022)
Income tax expenses PREMES (36,723) - (36,723)
As at 31 March 2021 RZE_-#=A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 1,740,184 332 1,740,516
Additions to non-current BREREEERE
assets during the period 12,641 - 12,641
Segment liabilities NEaE (930,271) (2) (930,273)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

10. DEER @®

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
BAIE
FEEEER BWEE
Oil and
Liquefied Insurance
Chemical Brokerage oil
Terminal Service production Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
piieied
REBIETH REREL
558 AR B fst
TEx TET FET FET
For the year ended BE_Z-—NEF
31 December 2019 +ZA=+—HLEE
Revenue from external customers RBEIMNDE R Z W 129,830 8 16,436 146,274
Reportable segment profit/(loss) RENERN/ (58) 110,045 (2,044) 2,622 110,623
Interest revenue F B W - - 1 1
Depreciation of property, ME--BERRZEITE
plant and equipment (765) (5) (86) (856)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERREENE (571) (372) (264) (1,207)
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEEE - - (287) (287)
Fair value gain of REMEN LA TERE
investment properties 5,196 - - 5,196
Interest expense on: THRENFSHES
- bank and other borrowings —RITRAEMBR (28,852) - (131) (28,983)
— amounts due to non-controlling —E IR RERIB
shareholders (12,879) - - (12,879)
- lease liabilities ==K (161) (12) (34) (207)
(41,892) (12) (165) (42,069)
Impairment loss on goodwill BERERE - 1,440 - 1,440
Income tax expenses FRERRS (23,124) - (2,002) (25,126)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—hE
+-A=+—-H
Segment assets DEEE 1,597,493 489 - 1,597,982
Additions to non-current assets FERFRBEERE
during the year 41,182 - - 41,182
Segment liabilities vk =)=RE (803,259) (56) - (803,315)
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss,
assets, liabilities and other items:

Revenue

There was no inter-segment sale and transfer during the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 and the year ended 31
December 2019.

No reconciliation of reportable and operating segment revenue
is provided as the total revenue for reportable and operating
segments is the same as Group’s consolidated revenue.

10.

DHEEN @

REDEW=E Bm EE
HEZHR !

Wy m
RBZE_F_—F#=B=+—Hi+E

BERBE_Z—NF+_A=+—H
EFE BEDEREERER-

CBERHM

1O 3R 45 T 4 8 ) MR A i 3 L o TR
AR B KR RS RGE D
U35 > 5 o

Profit or loss b=
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEZZ-—H | #E°2F—NF
=B=+—H | +=ZB=+—H
E+HEA IEFE
F#ET FET
Total profit of reportable segments WREDBLET 182,539 110,623
Finance costs from continuing operations K B @E & & 25 2 M B A (47,495) (45,028)
Other unallocated corporate Hhk DBz
income/(expenses): WA (B :
— Interest revenue —F B 22,235 10,870
— Administrative expenses —ITHRAX (29,832) (21,301)
— Share of results of an associate —EBEBE N B EE (2,857) (1,123)
- Impairment loss under expected credit —MEWERNTEREERIE
loss model on loan receivables BT 2R ERHIE (6,962) -
— Fair value (loss)/gain on financial —RATEFABRZHHEE
assets at FVTPL NTE (B8 (14,991) 15,992
(Loss)/gain on disposal of financial assets HERAFETAETZ
at FVTPL FHBEEZ (BB /W (14) 2,460
Loss on early redemption of promissory  1ZAIEEEIA R EHR 2 k518
notes (1,788) (6,459)
Fair value loss on promissory notes ARERANFEEE (5,139) -
Other corporate income less other Hhb WA REMBEZERS
corporate expenses (114) (4,929)
Elimination of segment profit for the year B4R LS EFFRNZ DEEEF]
from discontinued operation Eai) - (2,622)
Consolidated profit before income B/ ERRECSEER
tax for the period/year from continuing  BRFF1SIRATAR S E R
operations 95,582 58,483
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. FHEEN @
Assets BE
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIEZ— RIZZ—NF
=A=+-8 | +=A=+—8
FET FET
Reportable segment assets REDEEE 1,740,516 1,597,982
Equity instruments at FVOCI BAFESAHEMEEBAR
BEmTHE 222,412 226,060
Financial assets at FVTPL BATESABGNYBEE 13,166 28,314
Investment in an associate R—EBEATZRE - 2,805
Amount due from an associate FEUN — BB & A BB 2,368 5,588
Other unallocated corporate assets: HMAKRDEREEE :
— Property, plant and equipment e E NN 848 2,345
— Right-of-use assets —FRAEEE 6,305 8,808
— Prepayment, deposits and other —FEMRIE e
receivables Hih U Ia 87,209 119,742
— Loan receivables —EWER 186,168 34,096
— Cash and bank balances —IREKIBTERT 5,141 47,736
285,671 212,727
Consolidated total assets REREE 2,264,133 2,073,476
Liabilities aE
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
RZIEZ— RIZ—NF
=B=+—H | +=ZA=+—H
FET FET
Reportable segment liabilities wREDEEEB 930,273 803,315
Convertible bonds ARG E S - 26,221
Promissory notes AR ERR 129,402 152,545
Other unallocated corporate liabilities: Htk DA hEEE
— Other payables and accruals —HMENRIERESTER 20,243 17,787
— Other borrowings —H &= 12,359 38,190
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 6,527 9,041
39,129 65,018
Consolidated total liabilities ReaRas 1,098,804 1,047,099
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. SEEH ®
For the fifteen For the
months ended year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
BEZZE-—F | #1222 N1F
=A=+—AH | +=ZA=+—H
IE+AH@EA IEEE
F#ET FET
Other items: HEg :
Interest revenue FMEWA
Reportable segment total WEDIHERE 1,469 1
Other corporate interest revenue Hhd 2R SWA 22,235 10,870
Consolidated total REMEEE 23,704 10,871
Depreciation of property, ME - BERZBIFE
plant and equipment
Reportable segment total wEDIBLEER (795) (856)
Other corporate depreciation of property, EMMt2YE - BE K& EITE
plant and equipment (1,499) (1,200)
Consolidated total e ta%E (2,294) (2,056)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESEIE
Reportable segment total wEDIBLEEE (533) (1,207)
Other corporate depreciation of HMbXFREEERE
right-of-use assets (6,848) (5,360)
Consolidated total e ta%E (7,381) (6,567)
Interest expense FERAX
Reportable segment total RS fEME (36,022) (42,069)
Effective interest on convertible bonds R ESE 2 ERFE (719) (971)
Interest on promissory notes ARERFE (6,002) (818)
Other corporate interest expense on: HibxFMEMXE .
- bank and other borrowings —IRIT R EfthfE X (4,307) (701)
— lease liabilities —fHEafE (445) (634)
Consolidated total retas (47,495) (45,193)
Additions to non-current assets HRIERBEERE
during the period
Reportable segment total AR E DB ST 12,641 41,182
Other corporate additions HithbERE 4,340 3,997
Consolidated total retas 16,981 45,179
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

11.

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. FHEEN @
Revenue from major customers: REBFEEFRZWEH
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
BE_T-—F | #EZ2Z2—NF
=B=+—8 | +=ZB=+—H
IE+HEA EFE
FET FET
Customer A (derived from Oil and BAA R HR K
Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment) BB L T RESE D) 192,608 129,830
Customer B (derived from EFAB RRER E HD5E)
Qil Production segment) - 16,436
192,608 146,266
FINANCE COSTS 11. BM#RAE
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RRSEER BRIEEEER
Fifteen Fifteen
months ended Year ended | months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-E--—F [HZ_Z—HEF |HEZZZ-§ (§E_Z—N&
ZA=+-B |+tZA=t-B | =R=+-RA |tZA=1+-8
E+EEAR EE E+EEA EFE
TAER TERT FTAERT FTERT
Effective interest on TRRESZERFE
convertible bonds (note 35) (PffzE35) 719 971 = -
Interest on bank and other borrowings 3817 K A&7 & 34,821 29,553 - 131
Interest on promissory notes (note 36) &R Z#EF| & (M536) 6,002 818 = -
Interest on amounts due to e IEERRRRIEZHE
non-controlling shareholders 5,410 12,879 - -
Interest on lease liabilities HE&EHNE 543 807 - 34
Interest expense on financial WIRATEFAEBRN
liabilities not at fair value through M5 & &R BFI%
profit or loss 47,495 45,028 - 165
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

12. FRIGMBEX

Continuing operations

Discontinued operation

FHEREER BAIERELE
Fifteen Fifteen
months ended Year ended | months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEZS-_—F |B#E"Z—NF |BEISZ-F |(B#EZZ—NF
SRA=+-B |+ZA=+t-B | =B=t+-H |tZRA=+-H
Lt+REA THEE L+REA HEE
TAET TAET TER TERT
Current tax EHRE
- PRCET — PR EMBR - = 26
Deferred tax - PRC FIETRTE— P
— Current year (note 37) - REE (ME37) 23,124 - 1,976
Income tax expenses PSS 23,124 - 2,002

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021 (year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).

Pursuant to rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Independent State of Samoa
("Samoa”), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman lIslands, BVI and Samoa.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC (the "EIT Law"”) and Regulation
Implementation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is 25% for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2021 and for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, PRC Value
added Tax Law and other related regulations, non-PRC resident
enterprises are levied withholding tax at 10%, 6% and
various tax rate (unless reduced by tax treaties/arrangements)
respectively on interest receivable from PRC enterprises for
income earned since 1 January 2008. The Group has adopted
withholding tax rate of 10%, 6% and various tax rate on
corporate income tax, value-added tax and other taxes for PRC
withholding tax purpose during the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021 and for the year ended 31 December 2019.

AR AEBRBEE _S - —F=H4
=t+—HIE+HESL W ERREREF
WBAMEBNERNTIREE BEZS
—hE+ZB=1+—HIEE  #) -

BEHSHEE RBERELEE (REREY
BE)) REESEYE (MTEED)) B
REEG ~EBBEANRERS HE
BRREERERDGNERMRSR-

BEFEEEMBRE (TREMRER
E) REEFRESREBREN BE-F
T—H#=ZRB=t+—HLETREAKEE
“E-NF+BA=+—HLEFE &E
EPERE AR ZIRER25%

RBEREEEPSRE  PEEERER
HaBrge B S22 NFE—HF—H
2 FEFPE/E R 1 2 A P BRE U A FE IR
FREENFEDHIZ10% 6% KRZIA
FRAME REBERBIER RHEELTH
AIFRSN) 2 MEXGMTFENR - RBEZT
T—H#=ZRB=t+—HLETREAKEE
“E-NF+A=+—HLEFE &E
E M ERNREAE10% 6% k%
BRRMENEERER G ERKEAM
MIBR TR K
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12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

12. PRGBS @

FTiS MBS SR AT 2 WARIT ¢

The reconciliation between the income tax expenses and profit

before income tax is as follows:

Continuing operations

SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Discontinued operation

FEREER BRIEKEER
Fifteen Fifteen
months ended Year ended | months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December 31 March 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE_E_-F BE"Z2-N\F |BE_B-_-F |BE"ZNF
=B=+—-H |tZA=+—H =B=+—-H |tZA=+—H
It+aEAR EEE IE+HER EEE
AT TET FTHET TAET
Profit before income tax E3 T =nha il 95,582 58,483 = 13,498
Tax at the applicable rate to profit RIEAREEERERERAR
in the tax jurisdictions concerned B ZMEFEZRE 26,897 14,610 - 2,439
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERBAZRETE (4,663) (4,682) = (1,821)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses FETIIMBEZ 2 M H & 12,337 5,182 - 1,384
Tax effect of deductible temporary ~ RER AR LR ZEH
differences not recognised REFE 2,220 1,331 = -
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses KREZRBEFBEZRHEF E 2,659 6,683 - -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss B EABRIEREN
brought forward REeE (2,727) - = -
Income tax expense PriSfRps 36,723 23,124 - 2,002
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13.

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR

The Group's profit for the period/year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

1“1.:‘_‘- T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

13. XEAREFEEF

A EAPE,EERAENGR G
) UFEB#II

Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
HE_E_—F | HEZZ—NF
=B=+—H | +=ZB=+—H
IE+AREAR IEFE
FHET FET
Continuing operations FFEREER
Depreciation of property, ME - -BERREITE
plant and equipment 2,294 1,970
Depreciation of right-of-use assets PRAEEERE 7,381 6,303
Gross rental income from investment KEMERTWALLE
properties (192,608) (129,830)
Direct operating expenses arising from EXHESWAZEEYE
investment properties that generated EENEELERS
rental income 8,099 9,654
Exchange (gain)/loss, net ER (Wm) E518F (215) 982
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 21(a)) & EERE (iEE21()) - 1,440
Lease payments not included in the X AHEBGEHEZ
measurement of lease liabilities HEM 796 947
Share of result of an associate (included — H{GHEE AT 248
in administrative expenses) GrATERES) 2,857 1,123
Staff costs (including Directors’ BT (BIEESEH)
remuneration):
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances —Fr e~ TEAL R AL 17,062 13,077
— Retirement benefit scheme —RIREAE R
contributions 749 744
17,811 13,821
Auditor’s remuneration 12 B4 B 3 M
— Existing auditor —IR(EIZEED 950 -
— Predecessor auditor* — A% BB * 590 880
1,540 880
Discontinued operation BARIERE T
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BEREZEBITE
equipment - 86
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE = 264
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEBH - 287
Exchange loss, net PE R e 18358 = 2
Lease payments not included in the KT AHEEEFEZHEMNRK
measurement of lease liabilities - 16
Staff costs: BT :
- Salaries, bonuses and allowances — & EAT R 2 AL - 3,732
— Retirement benefit scheme —RRBFIET B HR
contributions - 440
- 4,172
* These amounts represented fees incurred for audit services ZEREBEERE_Z_—F=A1

rendered by the Company's predecessor auditor, ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited, during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021 and year ended 31 December 2019 respectively.

Zt+—BLE+AEBARBEZFT—N
F+ZRA=+—HLEFEMREARFA
BHEPECEGAMEBAERA
BRENZBRFMEENER -

RERERREZERARAR / —

LT —FFER
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

14.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 3 June 2019, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with the independent third party (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to
acquire and the Group has conditionally agreed to sell the
entire issued shares of China International Energy Investments
(Hong Kong) Limited (together with its subsidiaries referred
to as the "Target Group” engaged in the oil production)
which holds 100% equity interests in China Era Energy Power
Investment Limited at a total consideration of HK$52,819,000
(the “Disposal”) which was paid upon signing of the disposal
agreement by way of two promissory notes (collectively, the
“Promissory Notes”). The Promissory Notes comprised of (a)
the first promissory note with a face value of HK$41,619,000
carrying no interest and maturing on 31 December 2020 (the
"Zero-coupon Promissory Note”); and (b) the second promissory
note with a face value of HK$11,200,000 carrying interest
of 8% per annum and maturing on 31 August 2019 (the
"8%-coupon Promissory Note").

Prior to the completion of the Disposal, the Group, exclude
the Target Group (collectively the “Remaining Group”) owed
the Target Group an amount of HK$41,619,000 (the “Drawing
from Target Group”). Pursuant to the disposal agreement, it
is a condition that (a) the Group shall apply the Zero-coupon
Promissory Note to settle all the outstanding sum owed to
the Target Group following completion of the Disposal; and
(b) the 8%-coupon Promissory Note shall apply as the partial
repayment to a refundable earnest money of HK$29,000,000
(the "Earnest Money"”) owed to the other interested purchaser
(the "Other Interested Purchaser”) who advanced to the
Company pursuant to the memorandum of understanding
dated 31 December 2018 entered between the Company and
the Other Interested Purchaser. Details of which are set out in
the Company’s announcements dated 31 December 2018 and
3 June 2019.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 14. BERUEREXRH @
The Disposal was completed on 28 June 2019 (the “Disposal HESEBEER ZZE—NAEAZ+N\H
Date”) and there is no outstanding balance between the (THEHH) Tl HEEB AR TE
Disposal Group and the Remaining Group and the 8%-coupon BB mREEER H8% ZE AR
Promissory Note has been partially offset with the Earnest ZHREREE AN ES - LEZTEERS
Money. The Disposal constitutes a discontinued operation under BB EENESRAFEHE 2 IETE)
HKFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued BERBHIKEEFETHMIEZEKLE
Operations as the oil production represented one of the major KREED RRAERNARERNTESE
line of businesses of the Group. Sales, results, net assets and BEzr— BEREENHERE - EHE B
cash flows of the Target Group were as follows: EFEAREREHINOT
(a) Analysis of the profit from the (a) BRUEKEEFEZHID
discontinued operation Uiy
Period from
1 January 2019
to the
Disposal Date
HK$'000
“Z2—hF
—B—HZ%E
HEHH
FHET
Profit of discontinued operation BRIEKEERE 2 imH] 455
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR Z W 11,041
Profit for the period from discontinued operation B #% 148 & 2 75 =~ Hi P im # 11,496
Revenue Wi 16,436
Cost of sales & A A (8,665)
Gross profit EH 7,771
Other income and gains H WA R Wz 18
Selling and distribution expenses HE kD iHB (225)
Administrative expenses THFEX (4,657)
Other operating expenses HM& S/ (285)
Finance costs BA 75 i s (165)
Profit before income tax BR P 1575 Al & A 2,457
Income tax expenses PSRz (2,002)
Profit from discontinued operation BARIEREEE T 455
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14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 14. BRIEKSEER @
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (b) HEMEBXRE
As at
Disposal Date
HK$'000
RHEEHA
FHET
Net assets disposed of HENEEZRE
Property, plant and equipment ME- B KRR 1,139
Right-of-use assets FRAREE 841
Intangible assets mIEE 153,854
Deferred tax assets RIS E 2 41,179
Trade receivables B 5 EWEARR 5,064
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FUIE 2 K E M E U R IE 1,223
Cash and bank balances HE RIBTHET 270
Amount due from the Remaining Group FEUS 85 T EE B 7B 41,619
Other payables and accruals H A FE A RIE K FE ST R IE (101,416)
Other borrowings HEmR (42,612)
Lease liabilities HEAE (857)
Tax payables FE{TIRIE (9,796)
Deferred tax liabilities IEIERIBEAE (38,403)
52,105
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HERNREREREE (10,327)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRR Z W 11,041
Total consideration RBHER 52,819
An analysis of the net cash flow arising on disposal of HEWBARESEZFRERE
the subsidiaries was as follows: DA
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration RERE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRERREEEIER (270)
Net cash outflow arising HENBRAREE ZRE R IFEE
from the disposal of subsidiaries (270)
No tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of the TERMHEERIEKEEFT W
discontinued operation. mAESEMREZ HEER
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

DIVIDENDS 15.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2021, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (for the year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE 16.

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share has been
based on the following profit attributable to owners of

535

BETZ - —F=ZB=+—HLETIE
B rUIEfiAATEBRRRIKMNIEE
ERE G BREPARETERZEARE
BEZZ-AEF+A=+—HLE

B
FREF
(a) SRELEF

SREABANDRELARARDER
AL R 31T TSN BB AR AN

the Company and weighted average number of ordinary B EE -
shares outstanding.
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$’000
HE_E_—F | 5E"Z—NF
=H=+—H | +ZB=+—H
IE+HREAR IFFE
FHET FHET
Profit for the period/year EN/NETE 2= DN
attributable to the owners of NEAR S FEHR
the Company:
— From continuing operations — B EER 6,726 19,814
— From discontinued operation —BERIEEEET - 11,496
6,726 31,310
‘000 ‘000
Number of shares A hE- 4= T2 T
Weighted average number of AUt EESREARFZ
ordinary shares for the purpose i@ N T 158
of basic earnings per share 7,205,629 7,205,629

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
after considering mandatory conversion element of
convertible bonds.

G EARR T i R B A
HHRHBARAEREAATE
BB R B 8 R I 4
BiteE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 16. SRREF @
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREZERT
Diluted earnings per share for the fifteen months ended HE_Z”-_—HF=-HB=+—HL
31 March 2021 and for the year ended 31 December +REBEREE_E—HLE+Z
2019 were the same as the basic earnings per share has B=+—HLEEE - SRETR
no potential dilutive ordinary shares in exercise during MESKREEARBRTERE I HE
both period/year. e FEREERTHEZER
EITE
17. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 17. EFEM=E
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) RIFF B R B ERAE3I83(NE K AT (]
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BEENEEN RAOE2BHENEE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of =T
Directors) Regulation are as follow:
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021: HE_Z_—F=ZA=+—HL+AE
J=
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors” and benefits benefit
fees in kind schemes Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fre 2R RIAEF
EE Lk RiE# HE e st
THET THET THET FTHET
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Lan Yonggjiang (Chairman) ExRkE (ZE) - 405 12 417
Mr. Wang Feng (Vice-chairman) T%E FZE) - 276 12 288
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral BREELE - 1,760 23 1,783
Mr. Cao Sheng ERiLE - 90 3 93
Mr. Yu Zhiyong FEBLE - 90 3 93
Dr. Lei Liangzhen EREEL - 266 12 278
Independent non-executive Directors B JEMITES
Mr. Tang Qingbin BEWE 150 - - 150
Mr. Wang Jinghua TIREELE 75 - - 75
Mr. Fung Nam Shan Skt 180 - - 180
Total for the fifteen months ended HE_T-—%=H
31 March 2021 =+—HLE+EER
R 405 2,887 65 3,357
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M aE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B EZ —Z—

17. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

17. EEME ®

—F=R=+—HILL+HEAR

BE_T-AF+A=+—HLFE:

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  to retirement

Directors’ and benefits benefit
fees in kind schemes Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A £ BAREF
BxHE KEUERN HENGEA st
FTET TER FEx FHET
Executive Directors HiITES
Mr. Lan Yonqggiang (Chairman) ExREE (FF) - 680 - 680
Mr. Wang Feng (Vice-chairman) Tg%sE E+E)
(Appointed on 1 August 2019) BZE-AEFENE—H
EZT) - 83 - 83
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral BREELE - 1,365 18 1,383
Mr. Cao Sheng BERGE - 240 - 240
Mr. Yu Zhiyong TEELRE - 240 - 240
Dr. Lei Liangzhen ERERLT (WZ2—NEF
(Appointed on 1 August 2019) NB—BEZE) - 60 - 60
Ms. Wang Meiyan ITEEZT RIZ—NF
(Retired on 28 June 2019) AEZHN EILE) - 76 - 76
Ms. Jin Yuping EEFLT RZIT—NEF
(Retired on 28 June 2019) AEZ+HNBER - 59 - 59
Independent non-executive Directors ?ﬁi%‘Fiﬂﬁ%%
Mr. Tang Qingbin BEEEAE RZT—NEF
(Appointed on 1 January 2019) —B—HEZ®) 120 - - 120
Mr. Wang Jinghua FEELE 60 - - 60
Mr. Fung Nam Shan SEWLEE 144 - - 144
Total for the year ended BEZZ-—NE+ZH
31 December 2019 —t+—HIEFEEE 324 2,803 18 3,145

There was arrangement under which 6 Directors waived
or agreed to waive emoluments with total amount of
approximately HK$972,000 during the fifteen months ended 31

March 2021. (year ended 31 December 2019: Nil).

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021,

emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (year ended 31 December 2019:

Nil).

REBEE_F-_-—F=ZA=+—H1+a
BR  AREFTHENRNEREEZR
8849972,0008 Tl 2 28 (BE_ZT

—hE+ZA=+—HLEE &

) o

BE_ZT_—F=ZRB=+—HLE+HE
B AERTERNESENEMMEES
DS AN A 7 & [ 12 B9 52 80 3 7F 7% Bl B
HmEBE_Z-NEF+A=+—HL

FE 8-

RERERKREERARAR / 2% /=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MBS RRM S

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 HZEZ_—%

18.

——F=B=+—HLt+HEAR

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one
Director (year ended 31 December 2019: two Directors) whose
emoluments is/are disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements. The aggregate of the emoluments in
respect of the other four (year ended 31 December 2019:
three) individuals were as follows:

18.

mEHMAL

TfEsHMALH —UEF B@EZ
E-NE+"A=+—HLEFE WUE
B)NHFEMNGEMBRRWE17TRE -
B (BE—_T-AF+_B=+—
HIEFE =) ALZMERENT ;

Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
BE-T-—F | #2°"2—NF
=—B=+—H +-A=+—H
IE+FHEAR IEFE
FET FET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances i AL K2R 2,723 2,712
Contributions to retirement benefit BRIREF AR
schemes 55 18
2,778 2,730
The emoluments of four (year ended 31 December 2019: mf (22— hF+-B=+—HI
three) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the FE =) KRHFMATZHMENFU
following bands: TEE :
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
BE_E_—F | HEZZ—NF
=B=+—H8 | +=B=+—H
IE+HER EFE
Below HK$1,000,000 KE1,000,0005%8 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 % 1,500,000 7T 1 1
During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, no RN8EE_E_—F=H=+—HLE+E

emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office (year ended 31 December
2019: HK$50,000).

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020/21
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlI

NANCIA

i/

L STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

19. ME - -BERRERERE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS BE
Property, plant and equipment (a) ME -BERZMH
Leasehold
improvement
furniture,
office
equipment
oil and motor  Construction
properties vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEME
R R
HEYNC ]
BHME RiSH TEIR ast
TET FTET TET FTET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—-h&E—-B—H:
Cost A 412,110 32,826 3,926 448,862
Accumulated depreciation and REMERAEE
impairment (411,654) (27,544) (3,145) (442,343)
Carrying amount BRE(E 456 5,282 781 6,519
At 1 January 2019, net of RZE—-h&—B—H>
accumulated depreciation NREHTERAE
and impairment 456 5,282 781 6,519
Additions w"E - 1,236 - 1,236
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14)  HEWRBAE (HzE14) (359) - (780) (1,139)
Disposals HE - (57) - (57)
Exchange differences EREE (11) 21) 1 (33)
Depreciation e (86) (1,970) - (2,056)
At 31 December 2019, netof ~WZZE—AE+_H
accumulated depreciation =+—H MIRENE
and impairment KR fE - 4,470 - 4,470
At 31 December 2019 RZE-h&+ZB=+-H
Cost AR - 8,204 - 8,204
Accumulated depreciation and RETERAE
impairment - (3,734) - (3,734)
Carrying amount IREE - 4,470 - 4,470

BERBERKEERERAR / 22 /" —FFR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 19. ME BERZXERERE
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) BE @
(a) Property, plant and equipment () VE-BERSKE @
(Continued)
Leasehold
improvement
furniture,
office
equipment
0il and motor  Construction
properties vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEME
NN
MARE
RHiE KkiSE TEIR Bt
TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2020, net of RZ2Z—-%—-F—A>
accumulated depreciation MR ERAE
and impairment - 4,470 - 4,470
Additions HE - 347 - 347
Disposals HE - (880) - (880)
Exchange differences BEREE - 72 - 72
Depreciation e - (2,294) - (2,294)
At 31 March 2021, net of RZBZ—-&#=A=+—-A>
accumulated depreciation NBRRHTERAE
and impairment - 1,715 - 1,715
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZE-_-#=ZA=+-H
Cost A - 7,250 - 7,250
Accumulated depreciation and REAWERRE
impairment - (5,535) - (5,535)
Carrying amount REE - 1,715 - 1,715




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

. F o

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

19. ME - -BERRERERE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) BEE®
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FHEEE
Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEME AE st
FTERT FHER FTHET
As at 31 March 2021 RZEZ—f=A=+—H
Carrying value fREE 6,305 545 6,850
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-h&E+”-B=+—H
Carrying value REE 10,719 333 11,052
For the fifteen months ended B#E-T_—£=A=+—H
31 March 2021 +EEA
Depreciation charge WEER 7,187 194 7,381
For the year ended HEZT-NF+ZA=+—H
31 December 2019 LEFE
Depreciation charge EER 6,530 37 6,567
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expenses items in relation to lease

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ME-BERRERERE
BEE®

EREEE ®

RIBE AR EEER R E

recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BammT

Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEZZE_—F | &E°"ZF—NEF
=A=+—H | +=*E=+—H
IE+HER IFFE
FHET TFET

Expenses relating to short-term PIRHATEE AR

leases 796 963
Termination of right-of-use assets 4% IE{F S E (1,790) -
Total cash outflow for leases (note) FA &I & 7 HH 48 %8 (ffsE) (8,799) (9,021)
Addition to right-of-use assets RETCREEE 4,718 370

Note:  Amount includes payments of principal and interest
portion of lease liabilities, short-term leases and
payments of lease payments on or before lease
commencement date. These amounts was presented in
operating or financing cash flows.

The Group leases various office premises and motor
vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed
periods of 3 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not
impose any covenants and the leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIA

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

L STATEMENTS

a1 '
¥ - H

s

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

20. BREYE

At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$’000
RZTZ—F NIZ—NF
=A=+—H8 | +*B=+—H
FHET FET

FAIR VALUE ATE
At beginning of period/year R ER ) 1,441,575 1,425,000
Additions = 11,916 39,583
Fair value adjustment REERHE 33,600 5,196
Exchange adjustments PE 2 S EE 87,363 (28,204)
At end of period/year RHRF R 1,574,454 1,441,575

The investment properties held by the Group represents the oil
and liquefied chemical terminal located in Shandong Province,
the PRC.

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period ranging from
2 to 3 years (31 December 2019: 5 years), All leases are on a
fixed rental basis and do not include variable lease payments.

The investment properties have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings (note 31) and lease liabilities (note 34) as at 31
March 2021 (31 December 2019: bank borrowings (note 31),
other borrowings (note 32) and lease liabilities (note 34)).

The details of fair vale measurement of investment properties
are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

FERFENREDEEUNTRELER
BB AR REEE T AmbSEE -

AEEREEEAAHARRENE )
B —RA2EIE (CE—AE+A
=+—B 5% ARNEECHSE
%, FeETREETR.

AR —FZA=t+—H BEYE
EEIRE LUERIRITE R (MIsE31) K
HEsE (WsE34) (ZT2—LEF+ZA
=+—8 RITEF (5E31) ~ HhERR
(M£32) RAAEEE (FzE34)) ©

REMEZ ATEFEFBHARGEY
BRI EET o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 BE_—_Z - —F=A=+—HI-+AES

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. BREE

a) Goodwill a) BE
HK$'000
FHET
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZZ2—NF—HF—H-
1 January 2020 and 31 March 2021 Z—AF+ZA=+—8">
_v_gi H—HR&
2 —HF=H=+—H 1,440
Accumulated impairment losses Rt ERE
1 January 2019 —E2—hF—HF—H -
Impairment loss BB 1,440
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and RZZ—hF+ZBE=+—8-
31 March 2021 —EFF—HFB—HK
T —F=ZA=+—H 1,440
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2021 AR —F=A=+—H .
At 31 December 2019 A ZE—hF+ZA=+—H -

Goodwill acquired in a

business combination is

allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating
units that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been
allocated to Insurance Brokerage Service segment (the
“Insurance CGU").

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the financial
performance of the Insurance CGU, as a consequence of
the intense competition from surrounding competitors
in the market, did not meet Directors’ expectations.
The Directors performed impairment assessments of the
Insurance CGU to which goodwill had been allocated.
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21.

22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

i/

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

b) Other intangible assets

21. BEE ®)
b) HfthEFEE

Exploration and Interests in
evaluation oil production
assets  sharing contract Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HER ERER
TEEE  HEANZEE @zt
TR FEL TR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NFE—-A—H 253 153,888 154,141
Amortisation for the year AEEHE (10) (277) (287)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HEMBAR (H14) (243) (153,611) (153,854)

RZE-NEF+ZA=1+—8"
—EZZFE-A-HK
“E-—-%#=Zf=+—H

At 31 December 2019, 1 January
2020 and 31 March 2021

All of the intangible assets were disposed during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

INVESTMENT IN AND AMOUNT DUE

FRIEBTLEEIRBE_E—N
F+ZA=+—HILFEHE-

22. REEE QBRI E K FE U

FROM AN ASSOCIATE EREIRIE
At 31 March At 31 December
2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
e RZZE—NF
=B=+—H | +=ZB=+—H
FAET FET

Share of net assets, including goodwill on EBhEESE SEWE

acquisition EERNESE - 2,805

An associate is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has injected 30% equity interest in HF){E R B
BIRAT ("gLFIE"), a company established and domiciled
in the PRC, at an amount of RMB3,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,990,000) during the year ended 31 December 2019.

BERABEARDEINGEMHTREA
N

HE_Z-NAE+_B=+—HL=E
E AEEMARE3,500,0007T FEER
3,990,000 7T) TEYAEREERR
NE) (TR =) > — R B AL AL T ML FZ
FEAFEEZAT) 30%[E -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

22. INVESTMENT IN AND AMOUNT DUE 22.

FROM AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Financial information of F1#]42 was disclosed as below:

Fifteen months
ended 31 March

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I BE A B) B9 B e R U B

BNTIFRIE 18

FIANEHNMBERHRENT ¢

Year ended
31 December

2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BHE_E_—F | BEZZ—NF
=BA=+—H | +=ZB=+—H
IE+FHEAR IEFE
FHET FHET
Revenue Wz 12,337 2,035
Loss and total comprehensive expense BEkEEHESZEE (64,530) (3,742)
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE_E_—F | AEZZE—hE
=B=+—H | +=B=+—H
IE+HEAR IFFE
FHET FET
The unrecognised share of loss of FERDMEHFA
an associate for the period/year BE A B RS 1E 16,502 -
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss of Rt RKER DG
an associate BE A BIE5 18 16,502 -

The amount due from an associate of HK$2,368,000 (31
December 2019: HK$5,588,000) is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

172 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020/21

FE R Bt = /A B 70 1E2,368,0008 7 (ZF
—hE+-F=+—H : 5,588,000 )
AEEE Lt ERGEREER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M B RRM

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

BATESAEMERKRA
HWEmTAR

At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
i AT —NF
=B=+—H +-BA=+—H
FAET FHET
Equity instruments at FVOCI BAFESAREMEEERAN
#m TR 222,412 226,060

Reference to the announcement of the Company dated 21
October 2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an acquisition agreement with an independent
third party to purchase the entire interests in Ever Rosy Ventures
Limited (the “Ever Rosy”) for the consideration of nominal value
of RMB224 million which shall be settled by way of issuance
of promissory notes by the Company (the “Promissory Note
A") (note 36). Ever Rosy is an investment holding company
and directly owned 40% equity interest of Supreme Success,
an investment holding company and directly owned entire
interest of Hongkong Weichenghui Trading Limited. Hongkong
Weichenghui Trading Limited is an investment holding
company and directly owned entire interest in Weichenghui
Trading (Shenzhen) Company Limited. Weichenghui Trading
(Shenzhen) Company Limited is an investment holding
company and directly owned 70% of Tai'an Wanyue. Tai'an
Wanyue's principal activity is property development in Tai'an
City, Shandong Province, the PRC. The investment essentially
represent 28% of effective interest in Tai’an Wanyue's property
development business.

The Company did not have any significant influence in Tai'an
Wanyue as the Group has no representative on the board of
Supreme Success as well as its subsidiaries and therefore, the
Directors concluded there is no significance influence over
Tai'an Wanyue, and the investment on Tai'an Wanyue was
classified as equity instruments at FVOCI as at 31 March 2021
and as at 31 December 2019 .

R AASDHBAZZE—NAE+A
—+—HBN2H ARE—HEeERBEA
BEBUE=AIUWERE UEE
Ever Rosy Ventures Limited (I Ever Rosy J)
HET NEBERALEBEARE
224,000,0007% > AR QB 1T R R RIE
(MK REHEAD) FREE (H5E36) ©
Ever Rosysm—EHRBER LS BEEHES
Supreme Success 40% & > MSupreme
Successh—BIREBEZER LG BEER
EBEMEBZERLAENEBRIE-F
BENEBEZERLABA—HRERER
RNE BRBEEENEES (FI) BARRA
BINENRE-EREES CRI) BRA
BlR—EREZRAE BERERLZLZE
H70%KRIE - HZLEFRNEEZFZHAINF
BLREHRZTUREVERE - LETE
LR B EREETE28% N ERE

2z
>< o

I

FH 7 s & @0 #ESupreme  Successfz E it
BRrEINEEERR WAL HRLE
B EAREAREES At EEB A
W _E _—F=ZRA=Z+—HK_Z—A
F+ZA=t+—HBHHEZZERLETW
BEAFE BHRTEH 2 KREHNE
AR ATEFAEMEZEBRANER T
Ho
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AE M BIRRMEE
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 &2 — &£ - —F=A=+—HI-+HEA
23. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 23.

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Details of the fair value measurement of equity instruments
at FVOCI are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATEAREMZERKA
NEZTH @

BMATEFAEMEERANEZTA
HAFESENEBENGEHBRE
BisE7 o

B 5 EWERER
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000

R-BZ—%F RZE—NEF
=A=t+—H | +t=A=+—H
TR TART

Trade receivables from an independent  ZREBBIIE=HZ EZ BRI
third party

The Group normally allows a credit period up to 30 days to its
established customers. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. For certain customers with long established relationship
and good past repayment history, a longer credit period may be
granted. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. All of the
trade receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follow:

15,981 -

FEEBEREEZTFRHERZ3I0AM
FEEH - EEFREGELR -METE
BURHARFFRERERFEREENE
FME AJEREBRRNEEN R
B E B BEBRRGR I —Erlk(m e

PRERSHR BN ER QPTG EE
BHE S EUBRRAVIRE DT &M T -

At At

31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000

RZBZ—% | R-ZF—h%F
=A=+—A8 | t=A=+-8
Fit T8

0 - 90 days 0E90K
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24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the analysis of trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired, based on past
due date, are as follows:

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

24. BEEWERR @

RB|EHR EBMERRENEZ B
SRRER AR A RE DTN ¢

At At

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

i AT —NF

=H=+—H | +ZB=+—H

FAET FHET

0-30 days past due #H0-30H 15,981 -

At 31 March 2021 and 31 December 2019, there were no trade
receivables that were individually determined to be impaired.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment of trade receivables for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021 and for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The entire trade receivables as at 31 March 2021 (31 December
2019: Nil) were pledged to a bank for bank borrowings (note
31).

N_E_—F=ZA=Z+—HKZZE—H
FHIA=+—HB HEEZEWRERE
AHEEAERE AEBTEMRZES
RIS B MIgESRe

BE_S_-—F=A=+—HiLE+AME
ARBE_Z—NAE+ZA=+—081t
FE > ERRURARZABEHFFERNGS
RN G-

A CEBET—FZHA=+—H AEEES
EWRZERE (CE—AE+_A=+—
H &) BT IRITLUESRITER (s
31)°
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FAMIE-EEREMEL
RECEIVABLES RIE
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
RZIEZ—F A TE—HEF
=A=+-HB | +=A=+—~8
FET FET
Current ENHA
Prepayments FEIRRIE 26,202 5,665
Prepayment to a supplier M — B EE AN R 60,871 -
Deposits & 1,382 129
Refundable deposits (note i) AFRERS BsH) 68,331 67,300
Advances to staff BHFTEL 4,430 11,188
Value-added tax (“VAT") FEW I E R (M EHRy) (ki)
receivables (note ii) 13,684 11,561
Other receivables HpE W IE 1,629 125
176,529 95,968
Non-current JEBNEHA
Deposits e 189 1,375
Refundable deposits (note i) Al FiREEE (M) - 44,700
VAT receivables (note ii) FEUUIG B (Y 5Eii) 26,945 47,121
27,134 93,196
Notes: I
(i) A memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") was (i) BB E=RENRRESRE (53R

entered with an independent third party for the purpose to

acquire an investment company and a refundable deposit
of RMB100 million was paid in 2018. During the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2021, the MOU was terminated
and the settlement agreement was entered into between the
parties, pursuant to which RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$55,875,000) was refunded to the Group and remaining
balance of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$56,099,000)
and an additional interest of RMB10,750,000 (equivalent to
HK$12,232,000) were subsequently settled in June 2021.
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) Other receivables comprises VAT recoverables of approximately
HK$40,629,000 (31 December 2019: HK$58,682,000), of
which an amount of approximately HK$13,684,000 (31
December 2019: HK$11,561,000) will be used to offset output
VAT within one year and hence is accounted for as a current
asset whereas the remaining VAT recoverables of approximately
HK$26,945,000 (31 December 2019: HK$47,121,000) is
classified as a non-current asset.

(iii) Details of impairment assessment on deposits and other
receivables are set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

The balance as at 31 March 2021 and 31 December 2019
represent loans to independent third parties which bear fixed
interest rates up to 10% per annum (31 December 2019:
up to 10% per annum) and are repayable within one year.
Subsequent to the reporting date, RMB116,550,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$137,972,000) was recovered.

Except for those which had been determined as credit-
impaired or there is significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group applied 12-month ECL basis to measure
the ECL of these balances. During the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021, an impairment loss of HK$6,962,000 (year ended
31 December 2019: Nil) for loan receivables was recognised
(note 9(b)) to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of impairment assessment on loan receivables are set
out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 27. BAFESAEGZZMHEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
woE-—f& WoE—NhE
=H=+—8H +-BA=+—H
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REBLTHERES BATE
at fair value 13,166 28,314
28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 28. WEKIRITERF

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 December 2019, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances and
concluded that the probability of defaults of the counterparty
banks are insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for credit
losses is provided.

Conversion of approximately HK$12,767,000 (31 December

2019: approximately HK$102,689,000) into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HMEARIBEKRESHRIEA
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
RIE-—% RIZZE—NF
=B=+—H | +=BE=+—H
F#ET FET
Construction cost payables FE{T RS A A 65,293 146,495
Amounts due to shareholders (note i) FET IR BT (i 5Ei) 2,997 1,395
Amounts due to Directors (note i) FESEEHE (MaE) 3,846 4,472
Other tax payables HtELIRIE 3,792 3,173
Contract liabilities (note ii) a88aE FEi) 60,544 -
Deposits received Bl E 44 -
Accruals FEsH I8 19,384 17,306
Other payables Hu eI Ia 3,570 32,041
159,470 204,882
Notes: Mok -
(i) These are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. (i) ZERBEABIER REREEXRE
Bo
(ii) Disclosure of contract liabilities: (ii) HBHBENIFE .
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
R —%F R ZB—NE
=A=+-8 | +-B=+-8
FHR i
Contract liabilities in relation to A—REPLEMRENEGNER
prepayments from a customer 60,544 -

EHERERREMHRIEERET
ZERHBEEZRGERE -AEEE
HoERmpEfRafEnERE
ERRDEEXRBITENEENR
ZEREISEERIREOREETLS
BAEW A - B A RRESS AR IR
HHIBES —FRARREREE -

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of
the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations
that are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The
Group expects the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as agency income
from trading of oil and liquefied chemical products when
the controls of goods has been transferred from supplier to
customer, which is expected to be recognised within one year
from the reporting date or on demand.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 30. FE(TIEIERGRRRFRIE
SHAREHOLDERS
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIEZ—F R ZE—NF
=A=+—H8 | +—A=+—H
FHET FHET
Current ENHA
— Due to non-controlling shareholder B — &1t JE$E B PR EEBRRIE (P 5i)
(note i) - 3,817
Non-current JEEPHA
- Due to non-controlling shareholder A —FE{TIEIEAR AR EBBATRIE
(unsecured and interest-bearing) (BIRFRTE) (M&Ei)
(note ii) 90,206 118,048
— Due to non-controlling shareholder A — FE{J IEHEAG R BRARIE
(unsecured and interest-free) (note iii) (HIgW R AE) (5% 30,335 26,593
120,541 144,641
120,541 148,458

Notes:

(i) The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

(i) As at 31 March 2021, the balance was unsecured with interest
up to 8% (31 December 2019: up to 7%) and repayable on 31
October 2022 (31 December 2019: 31 July 2021).

(iii) The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on 31

October 2022 (31 December 2019: 31 July 2021).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M aE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. $RITMEM
The Group's bank borrowings are analysed as follows: REBWNRITERDTUWT :
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$’000
RZZTZ—F R ZE-NF
=B=+—H | +=ZB=+—H
FAET FHET
Fixed rate borrowings: ERER
— secured and guaranteed by an —HBIE=FEERER
independent third party 52,088 119,573
— unsecured and guaranteed by —EIRRRBEBIE =R
independent third parties 124,299 120,690
176,387 240,263
Carrying amount repayable:* FEMFREAREE  *
— Within one year —R—FR 52,088 76,437
— After one year but within two years ——FBREMFERN - 56,322
— After two years but within five years —MFEBERLFR 21,308 6,929
73,396 139,688
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that B EEZERERERZRITERZ
contain a repayment on demand clause  EREIE BRI REI &)
(shown under current liabilities)
— Repayable within one year —R—EREE 102,991 100,575
176,387 240,263
Less: Amounts due within one year and 3 : R—ERE LS A
shown under current liabilities MEIBEZHIE (155,079) (177,012)
Amount shown under non-current TR IEMEN B R RIE
liabilities 21,308 63,251
Interest rate IES 4.8%-5.3% 5.3%-15.0%
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * S BENDREBEHNERBRZTAE
out in the loan agreements. ERHEAEE -

RERERREERERAR / 2T/ "—F5% 18]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES
31. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

All of the non-current portion of bank borrowings are carried
at amortised cost. None of the non-current portion of bank
borrowings is expected to be settled within one year.

The following assets and their respective carrying values as
at the end of the reporting period are pledged to secure the
Group's secured bank borrowings:

31.

RITER @

SR1T1EFRBY PR A FE M ) 8 0 19 92 61 AN
AR BHEIFABIRITERBARRN —

FRBE

THEERESEBZREENKRSHR
ERIEIRLESAER B RPIRITER

At At

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

RIEZ—F RIZZ2E—NEF

=A=+—H | +=*B=+—H

FHET FHET

Investment properties (note 20) BEYE (H5E20) 1,574,454 1,441,575
Trade receivables (note 24) B 5 EURERR (F5E24) 15,981 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

32. OTHER BORROWINGS

32. HfthfEmX

At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$’000
WZEZ—F N ZE—NF
=B=+—H | +=ZB=+—H
FHET FET
Secured fixed rate other borrowing BRAESEMmER (M
(note) - 33,525
Unsecured fixed rate other borrowings &R E B H hE R 22,969 124,855
22,969 158,380
Carrying amount repayable:* FET TR ARMEE (>
Within one year R—FA 12,317 147,901
After one year but within two years —FREMFERN - 10,479
After two years but within five years MEBEBRER 10,652 -
22,969 158,380
Less: Amounts due within one year and & : R—F AT RIS A REEE
shown under current liabilities Z I8 (12,317) (147,901)
Amount shown under non-current T AIERENBEZRIE
liabilities 10,652 10,479
Interest rate IES 3.0%-24.0% 0-10.0%
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * HH CELRBHENRERBHE AT
out in the loan agreements. ERMHEAEE -

Note:

The other borrowing was secured by certain of the Group’s underlying
assets included in investment properties as at 31 December 2019.

All of the non-current portion of other borrowings are carried
at amortised cost. None of the non-current portion of other
borrowings is expected to be settled within one year.

=
=1l)

RIZZ-NF+ZA=+—HEMERBRE
EETHBAEE GtAREYE) fFER-

F A JF R B H fth & 759 3 8 A A A
IR BIEIFRBHEMMERTARRN —FR

=Rk
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

33.

PREFERRED SHARES

Shungdong Port, an indirect-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has issued a series of preferred shares (“Preferred Shares”)
to two independent third parties during the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2021. In accordance with HKFRS 9, they are
accounted for as financial liabilities at FVTPL.

The key terms of the Preferred Shares are summarised as
follows:

Dividend rights

The holders of the Preferred Shares are entitled to special
dividend based on 8% of the issuance price when the following
conditions are satisfied in a particular year: (i) Shundong Port
made a distributable profit which is more than the special
dividend for the year; and (ii) Shundong Port has accumulated
distributable profit which is more than the special dividend for
the year. Both profit for the year and accumulated distributable
profit are determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards.

Liquidation preferences

(i) If the assets and funds available for distribution are less
than the total contributions from preferred shareholders
and ordinary shareholders of Shundong Port, the entire
assets and funds legally available for distribution shall
be distributed ratably among the preferred shareholders
and ordinary shareholders in proportion to the
contribution amount each such holder contributed to
Shundong Port; and

(i) If the assets and funds available for distribution are
in excess as compared to the total contributions from
preferred shareholders and ordinary shareholders
of Shundong Port, the distributions to preferred
shareholders would be limited to the contributions
made by the preferred shareholders to Shundong Port,
plus the amount of dividends entitled by the preferred
shareholders but not yet paid. The remaining assets
and funds shall be distributed ratably among holders of
ordinary shares of Shundong Port.
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

-

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

PREFERRED SHARES (continued)
Other features

The Preferred Shares do not have any redemption feature or
conversion feature.

The Group applied the discounted cash flow method to
determine the underlying equity value of Shundong Port to
determine the fair value of the Preferred Shares. The Directors
considered that fair value changes of the Preferred Shares that
are attributable to changes of credit risk of these instruments
are not material.The details of the fair value measurement
of Preferred Shares are set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

34. LEASE LIABILITIES

34. HHE&RE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Present Present
Lease Lease value of lease value of lease
payments payments payments payments
At 31 March | At 31 December At 31 March | At 31 December
2021 2019 2021 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE R HEMR | HEMRZEE | HEMHRZRE
RIEZ—F RIZ—hEF RIEZ—%F RIZ—h&F
=B=+—H | +tZA=+—H =B=+—H | tZE=+—H
FAET FAT FAET FAT
Within one year —&FR 3,430 6,617 3,109 6,134
In the second to fifth years, H_EERE
inclusive CEEEERES) 4,910 5,974 4,258 5,706
After five years hE® 5,292 5,156 1,847 1,817
10,202 11,130 6,105 7,523
13,632 17,747 9,214 13,657
Less: Future finance charges 8 : RKRRMEZEEH (4,418) (4,090)
Present value of lease liabilities T E & B2 RE 9,214 13,657
Less: Amount due for B+ ZERRIIH
settlement within B FRR
12 months (shown RBEBET)
under current
liabilities) (3,109) (6,134)
Amount due for settlement  + BB B EHEENIE
after 12 months 6,105 7,523

As at 31 March 2021, amount of approximately HK$2,687,000
(31 December 2019: HK$2,643,000) included in lease liabilities
are secured by the underlying assets included right-of-use
assets (note 19(b)) (31 December 2019: right-of-use assets
(note 19(b)) and investment properties (note 20)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In September 2018, the Company issued approximately
1,760,784,000 convertible bonds ("CB9") with a principal
amount of HK$449,000,000. CB9 are denominated in HKS$,
unsecured, bear interest of 3% per annum and will be
matured on the date falling on the second anniversary of the
issue of CB9 at their principal amount or can be converted
into ordinary shares of the Company at the holder’s option
HK$0.255 per share of the outstanding principal. Any CB9,
which remained outstanding on 16 September 2020, should
be converted automatically into the shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.255 per share (subject to the
standard adjustment clauses relating to share sub-division,
share consolidation, capitalisation issues and rights issues).

The fair value of the liability component, include in non-
current financial liabilities of CB9, was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bonds.
The residual amount, representing the value of the equity
conversion component, is included in convertible bonds equity
reserve in the owner’s equity.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021,
approximately 1,760,784,000 shares of CB9 have been
converted into Company'’s shares.

35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M B R R M

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

35. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

35. RGBS @)

Movements of liability component BREPEH
Movements of liability component for the fifteen months ended BHE_Z_—F=—A=+—HL+HE
31 March 2021 and for the year ended 31 December 2019 are BARBEZZ—NAF+ZAE=+—H81t
as follows: FESGRHOEHBUT :
CB9
HK$'000
AR ES
BhMES
FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—F—H 25,250
Effective interest expenses (note 11) BERAEMX (FsE11) 971
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIZ2E—-—AFE+ZBE=1+—HK
—EEF—F—H 26,221
Effective interest expenses (note 11) BEMEMZ (W:E11) 719
Waiver of convertible bond interest upon HRBHRRMKRESTIE ()
conversion (note) (26,940)
At 31 March 2021 RZBE-_—HF=A=+—H -

Note: Pursuant to CB9 agreement, interest of CB9 would be waived Mt . REBEDTMRESEAMESHZ
upon the conversion. MERFRRIBRESENMRESH
FE-o
Movements of equity component REmER D EEH
CB9
HK$'000
Al RS
BhMES
FHET
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and W_ZE—-NF—HA—H" —NEF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—HBrZZ _—\,E A—H 416,628
Issuance of shares upon conversion of BN ESREITRG
convertible bonds (416,628)
At 31 March 2021 B2 —F=A=+—H -

188 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020721



36.

e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

PROMISSORY NOTES 36. AREE
Promissory Promissory Promissory Promissory Promissory
Note A-i Note A-ii Note A-iii Note A-iv Note B Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AREBA  RRERAG AREBAGT AREEAV EREHEB it
TR TEn TER TiEx FER TR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-F-H - - - - - -
Fair value of promissory notes ~ BEHTAREZHEATE

issued 155,605 70,455 - - 17,800 243,860
Repayment during the year ERER (97,866) - - - (300) (98,166)
Loss on early redemption RABOZEHE 6,459 - - - - 6,459
Effective interest expenses BRASHZ (1)

(note 11) 233 - - - 585 818
Interest paid during the year FREMFE - - - - (351) (351)
Exchange difference ERER (75) - - - - (75)
At 31 December 2019 and RIZE-nE

1 January 2020 +ZB=+-A%

Z22Z25-A-H 64,356 70,455 - - 17,734 152,545
Repayment during the period ~ EARIIE (28,333) - - - (5,500) (33,833)
Partial fulfilment of conditions M HB A KM - (72,115) 39,210 32,905 - -
Loss on early redemption RABEZER 1,788 - - - - 1,788
Fair value change (note 9(b)) ATEEE (H:90) - 1,660 3,479 - - 5,139
Effective interest expenses BRAEHES (1)

(note 11) 3,512 - - 1,720 770 6,002
Interest paid during the period ~ HIRE[FE - - - - (725) (725)
Exchange difference ERER (950) - (335) (229) - (1,514)
At 31 March 2021 RIE_—%

ZA=+-H 40,373 - 42,354 34,396 12,279 129,402
Represented by: R&:
At 31 March 2021 RZE-—-F=A1

=t-H
Current portion BERE 2 - - - - 12,279 12,279
Non-current portion FEREH D 40,373 - 42,354 34,396 - 117,123
At 31 December 2019: RZZ-NE+ZA

=t+-H:
Current portion L - - - - 17,734 17,734
Non-current portion FEENEH 64,356 70,455 - - - 134,811
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE MBS RRM S

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & Z —

36.

B —F=B=+—HL+EHEES
PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)
Promissory Note A

The purpose for issuance of the Promissory Note A was related
to the acquisition of equity instruments at FVOCI, for a nominal
consideration of RMB224,000,000 which was satisfied by the
Company's issue of Promissory Note A to vendor (note 23).

The Promissory Note A can be early redeemed by the Company
at all or part of the outstanding principal amount of the
Promissory Note A.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Promissory Note
A comprised of two parts, (i) the unconditional promissory
note with nominal value of RMB149,000,000 (approximately
HK$165,554,000) carrying interest of 5% per annum and
maturing on 18 December 2022 (the “Promissory Note A-i");
and (ii) the conditional promissory note with nominal value
of RMB75,000,000 (approximately HK$83,333,000) carrying
interest of 5% per annum and maturing on 18 December 2022
(the “Promissory Note A-ii”). Conditions for the Promissory
A-ii included release of financial guarantee provided by Tai'an
Wanyue on facility of a third party and full recoverability from
certain debtors of Tai'an Wanyue.

The Promissory A-i was early redeemed by the Company
partially amounted to approximately HK$28,333,000 (31
December 2019: approximately HK$97,866,000) resulting in
a loss on early redemption of approximately HK$1,788,000
during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 (year ended
31 December 2019: approximately HK$6,459,000).

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, condition
relating to full recoverability from certain debtors of Tai'an
Wanyue had been fulfilled and the Company spun off the
Promissory Note A-ii on 28 August 2020 into (i) the conditional
promissory note with nominal value of RMB43,000,000
maturing on 18 December 2022 (the “Promissory Note A-iii”)
and (ii) the unconditional promissory note with nominal value
of RMB32,000,000 carrying interest of 5% per annum and

maturing on 18 December 2022 (the “Promissory Note A-iv").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)
Promissory Note A (Continued)

At issue date, the fair value of the Promissory Note A is
determined at date of issuance with reference to valuation
performed by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited.

At issue date, the fair value of the Promissory Note A-iii and
Promissory Note A-iv is determined at date of issuance with
reference to valuation performed by APAC Assets Valuation and
Consulting Limited.

For the fair value measurement of Promissory Notes A-ii and
A-iii, please referred to note 7 to the consolidated financial
statement.

Promissory Note B

The purpose for issuance of the Promissory Note B is for the
settlement of the amount due to an independent third party.

The Promissory Note B was partially repaid by the Group in the
amount of HK$5,500,000 during the fifteen months ended 31
March 2021 (year ended 31 December 2019: HK$300,000).

36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R EE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

a0

Al

37. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 37. EERIE&R
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/assets TRAAEERIMNFERLERE (8
recognised by the Group. &) BE-

Fair value Fair value

Accelerated adjustment adjustment

capital on business on investment
allowances  combination properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EBEHN BREME
MEREAEE ATERE ATERE Eh
TET TET TET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NE—B—H 43,189 (38,472) (81,528) (76,811)
Charged to profit or loss (note 12) ARG (HEE12) (1,907) (69) (23,124) (25,100)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HERBAT (Hs14) (41,179) 38,403 - (2,776)
Exchange difference [EREH (103) 138 1,959 1,994

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZZE—hE+-A=+—H

RZEZ_ZE-F—H - - (102,693) (102,693)
Charged to profit or loss (note 12) AR (HEF12) - - (36,723) (36,723)
Exchange difference EREH - - (7,573) (7,573)
At 31 March 2021 RZZZ—-F=H=+—H - - (146,989) (146,989)
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(s) RIEG S BRRWT4(s)FT & B 5T
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has not RN _BE_—FZRA=Z+—H &&
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses [ 5L 4983,643,0008 2 RS AR
of approximately HK$83,643,000 as at 31 March 2021 (31 HE®E (CE-—AFEF+ZA=+—8":
December 2019: approximately HK$94,356,000) as it is not 94,356,000/ 7t) EsRIRIEMRIEE E » A
probable that future taxable profits against which the tax losses REMRIEREZEEKRBRAERBAREEY
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction RERREN EEHZE BB UFIRHE
and entity. The remaining unused tax losses will be expired by ZHERERK-RBIBRITHRBEH  BR TR
2026 under current tax legislation. FRAMEBEFR ST RFEH-
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

-

SHARE CAPITAL 38. &
Number
of shares Amount
'000 HK$'000
& E Bl
T FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEEBITNEER
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, RZIZ2—n&—HF—8-
1 January 2020 and 31 March 2021 “E-hE+B=+—H">
e =l =P4
“E—H=A=+—H 15,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEIBTHSER
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and R ZZT—HAF—HF—H-
1 January 2020 “2-NE+ZA=T—HK
—EEF—-F—H 5,444,845 544,484
Issuance of shares upon conversion of REBMO MR ESREITRMD (D)
convertible bonds (note) 1,760,784 176,079
At 31 March 2021 RIE-_—&H=B=+—H 7,205,629 720,563
Note: Bt -
During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, 1,760,784,310 shares HE_E-_—F=HBA=+—HL+HEAR"
have been converted under CB9 (note 35). 1,760,784, 310 M ERIBEFT MK ESF

#HEFE (H5E35) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

39.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme, which was adopted
by the shareholders on 24 June 2013 (the “Scheme”) and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from the date of adoption. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Directors, independent non-
executive Directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, any
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on
24 June 2013, the general scheme limit of the Scheme is
set to 1,746,849,000 shares, which have been adjusted to
174,685,000 shares pursuant to the share consolidation in
2014, representing 10% of the Company’s issued share capital
on the date of meeting, with the passing of ordinary resolution,
which allows the Company to grant further options carrying
the rights to subscribe for a maximum of 174,685,000 shares.
This is also the maximum unexercised share options currently
permits to be granted under the Scheme at any time.

Maximum number of shares issuable under share options to
each eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1%, of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’” approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive Directors. In addition, share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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e MBRRMEE

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Director, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date
of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the higher of:

(a) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There has been no share option granted or exercised since
the Scheme was adopted in June 2013. As at 31 March 2021
and 31 December 2019, the Group has no outstanding share
option.

39.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

40. FATIMBIRARKFEE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE &)
COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) ZETRTHBRAR
Company
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000
W2 —F R — N
=BA=+—H | +=—B=+—H
FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BB R 832 2,319
Interests in subsidiaries Y B A B BV 2 600,560 735,450
Deposits and other receivables & R H WA = 44,700
601,392 782,469
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments, deposits and SEANE R
other receivables Hpg 18 69,296 68,392
Loan receivables EUE R - 5,000
Financial assets at fair value BAFESFAB@mZ
through profit or loss MBEE 13,166 28,314
Cash and bank balances BE&EMIRITEERF 515 2,149
82,977 103,855
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H e TR IE K FESTFUIE 18,906 16,545
Amount due to a subsidiary B —RE M E AT RIE 1,118 -
Other borrowings HAE™R 1,707 27,711
Convertible bonds AR ES - 26,221
Promissory notes TR 12,279 17,734
34,010 88,211
Net current assets REEEFE 48,967 15,644
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREAEE 650,359 798,113
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Other borrowings HAE™R 10,652 10,479
Net assets FEE 639,707 787,634
Capital and reserves BERKREE
Share capital [N 720,563 544,484
Reserves i (80,856) 243,150
Total equity g 639,707 787,634
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 40. LB BERRREFHEFEE
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE I NE-))
COMPANY (continued)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) ZFLBHEEH
Convertible
Share Capital  bonds equity  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ahkES
1A iEE BAfE it 2R s
T T T T T
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—-F-H 2,820,152 157,960 416,628 (3,134,806) 259,934
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEREZERLAE
expenses for the year - - - (16,784) (16,784)
At 31 December 2019 and RIE-NE+ZA=T-HEK
1 January 2020 “E°FE-F-H 2,820,152 157,960 416,628 (3,151,590) 243,150
Loss and total comprehensive BREERZERZLS
expenses for the period - - - (174.867) (174.867)
Issurance of shares upon conversion — PREEIREIAREHE
of convertible bonds (note 35) BIRM (H535) 267,489 - (416,628) - (149,139)
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-F=B=+-H 3,087,641 157,960 - (3,326,457) (80,856)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

41. RESERVES
Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium
Share premium mainly arose from:

- the difference between the combined net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2001, over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefor;

- the premium arising from the capitalisation issue
in the previous years;

- issue of shares of the Company at a premium net
of transaction costs associated with the issue of
shares; and

- amount transferred from other equity reserves
upon exercise of share options and conversion of
convertible bonds.

(ii) Capital reserve
Capital reserve mainly arose from the Company’s capital

reorganisation in 2005 and represented the reduction of
share capital of the Company.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

#E®

RESERVE (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Exchange reserve

Exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from
their functional currencies to the Group's presentation
currency (i.e. HK$) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in exchange
reserve. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy of foreign currencies set out in note
4(v) to the consolidated financial statements.

Convertible bond equity reserve

Under HKAS 32, convertible bonds issued are split into
liability and equity components at initial recognition
by recognising the liability component at its fair value
determined using market interest rate for equivalent
non- convertible bonds and attributing to the equity
component the difference between the proceeds from
issue and the fair value of the liability component.
The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost whilst equity component is recognised
in convertible bond equity reserve until the bonds are
either converted (in which case it is transferred to share
premium) or the bonds are redeemed (in which case it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

41.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

41.

RESERVE (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Revaluation reserve

Changes arising on revaluation of properties held for
own use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the
revaluation reserve.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve

Fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve mainly arose from fair value change on equity
instrument at FVOCI during the reporting period.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly arose from the adjustment made to
the amount of controlling and non-controlling interests
arising from the capital injection by non-controlling
interests resulting in a change in the Group’s ownership
interests in non-wholly-owned subsidiary.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include bank borrowings (note 31), other borrowings (note
32), amounts due to non-controlling shareholders (note 30),
preferred shares (note 33), convertible bonds (note 35) and
promissory notes (note 36) and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with the capital. The Directors balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares and share buy-backs as well as the
raising of new debts, if required.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessor

The entire of investment properties held by the Group for rental
purposes have committed leases for the next 2.13 years (31

December 2019: 3.38 years).

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on the lease are as
follows:

42.

43.

BErRERER

AEREEREEN NBRFRAEENEEE
BENFEEE FAREBELEBRR
RIEFEARREIER - R EF BRI A
BIEFEARR -

FEREFARBOEGES  HBER?T
B (FEE31) ~ HfERR (EE32) &
JIEER IR R AIR (MiEE30) ~ Bk (M
5£33) ~HMRES (W5E35) REARE
& (y5E36) » URARBHEE ABIEE
m  HRESE#TRE FAEKRRE
e

EXTHERELARB - FAZRERZ—
B EFAHEERMAREAERBRAZ
Rk - ERBBIKNRE BEITHRMND K
B 17 B 88 U K S EFTE (M H) kT
HERENERREB-

RETHAZHE

EAHEA
FEFELEEBNTENESREYE
CAEBHBARK2A3E (ZE—HE
+Z-B=+—H:3.38%) ¢

BAOZBUCRMBIREEMROT

At At

31 March 31 December

2021 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

R_B-—%F R ZE—NEF

=A=+—8 | +=*A=+—H

FHET FHET

Within one year —FR 152,048 128,154
After one year but within two years —EME 162,908 128,154
After two years but within three years —E=F 22,056 128,154
After three years but within four years —ENF - 49,612
337,012 434,074
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

44. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital and other commitments at the end of the

44, BRFHMEE

FEFRREPRZER R E AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

reporting period are as follows: T~
At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
RIZEZ—F ATE—NE
=A=+—-8 | +-B=+-8
FHET TFET
(a) Capital commitments in respect of: (@) UTRBEZERKIE !
— construction of oil and liquefied — Mmoo AR
chemical terminal BT RISEEER 5,645 10,020
— property, plant and equipment —ME- -BEREE 131 -
5,776 10,020
(b) Other commitments in respect of: (b) BREAUTEEMEMK
#
- acquisition of target companies —EERATE 17,031 -
— investment costs in an associate —R—EEERE
KRER & 31,371 29,614
48,402 29,614
54,178 39,634
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 HEZE—Z - —F=H=+—HILt+AEA

45. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has no other material transaction with its related
parties.

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,

including amounts paid to the Directors as disclosed in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements, is as follows:

45. EXFAEALRS

BRZEHMEAIRZRESVHERRE
fth3th 73 Fr %2 82 B4 E?rﬁl\ A H A
ERBEALRS

FEEBASZHM

AEBTEZEEABZHI (BE&EH
BREME17TFAREZBNEENIER) W
o

Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$°000 HK$'000

BEZZE_—F | #2°F—NF
=B=+—H +-B=+—H

IE+HREA IFFE

FHET FET

Short-term benefits ZHIR A 3,292 3,127
Post-employment benefits BB 65 18
3,357 3,145

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined
by the board of Directors (upon the recommendation of the
remuneration committee) having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

EERTIZTBRAENHFHEESE (0
FMEES e RMEBRERR) KEZEAEA
KPR TIHBEMETE -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES

46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

46.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the

results, asset or liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2021:

Particulars of

RBARZKRE

UTHREHFIN _E - —FE=H
=S+—BEETATEZERAERE
B EENEENRNBARS

Place of issued share
incorporation/ capital and
establishment and registered Proportion of
Name of the companies g)erlaﬁ;ion/ 2 (a%istal ownership interest Principal activities
ML BETRER
RERHE RIREES HRERHE BRELH IEEH
: Held by th’e
Tlhe Group's Held by the Company's
effective interest Company subsidiaries
HEAE
rEAERED HEREHE WEATHA
Treasure Tone Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
(31 December (31 December (31 December (31 December 2019:
2019: HKS$1) 2019: 100%) 2019:-) 100%)
ERBERAT Bk %7 100% - 100% REER
GEE T P s
TR o) T oow)
Mission Achiever Limited Samoa Us$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
(31 December (31 December (31 December (31 December 2019:
2019: US§1) 2019: 100%) 2019:-) 100%)
Mission Achiever Limited EED 157 100% - 100% RERR
T i . = N L S
TR T T 9 T ow)
Mid-Ocean Hong Kong Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
(31 December (31 December (31 December (31 December 2019:
2019: HK$1) 2019: 100%) 2019:-) 100%)
PEEEREARAR & 187 100% - 100%  REZR
TP i = o S
TR e T o0w)
Shundong Port* The PRC RMB403,040,036 46.67% - 46.67% Leasing of il and liquefied chemical
(31 December (31 December (31 December (31 December 2019: terminal, the PRC
2019; RMB223,040,036) 2019: 46.67%) 2019:-) 46.67%)
JBR S HE AR 403,040,0367 46.67% - 46.67% BERRRRECIRES
LN o g o
AR I223,00,0367) T e e
iECO Financial Consulting Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 88% - 88% Insurance Brokerage Service, Hong
(31 December (31 December (31 December (31 December 2019: Kong
2019: HK$1,600,000) 2019: 85%) 2019:-) 85%)
TREHBRERAT &% 2,000,0007% 7 88% - 88% RRSLRY 5%
g
1,600,000%77) %) T )
Cheerful Dragon Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
(31 December (31 December (31 December (31 December
2019: US$1) 2019: 100%) 2019: 100%) 2019:-)
REBRAT HRRUEE E5H 100% 100% - REER
cE A B
TR T ) D)
Ever Rosy Ventures Limited Samoa U5$1,000,000 100% - 100% Investment holding
(3; Decembe; (31 Decemb/eg (31 Decembe; (31 Decemb/e;
2019: US$1,000,000 2019: 100% 2019: -) 2019: 100%,
XERRERAR EEE 1,000,000%7 100% - 100%  KEZR
T e Y i O o S
TO000ER) %) o) 00%)
* This company is a sino-foreign owned enterprise established in * AR BAEFERLINPIIEEDR
the PRC. e
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46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 46. MBABIZIRE @

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the FrEMBABSREAR, FEARBEHY
end of the period/year. mETEMERES
(b) Particulars of the wholly-owned entities de-consolidated (b) B ZFREABEHEEARZ
since 2010 are as follows: TEERFBEUT
Particulars of
Place of issued share
incorporation/ capital and
establishment and registered Proportion of
Name of the companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
ML/ BETRER
RE%HE IR EEE AMERHE BRELS TEEH
Held by the
The Group's Held by the Company's
effective interest Company subsidiaries
HERF
FEEERER HERARRE WEBARRE
QHFSMI (note 2(a))* The PRC HK$40,000,000 100% - 100% Exploration of mine,
(31 December 2019: (31 December 2019: (31 December 2019: (31 December 2019: the PRC
HK$40,000,000) 100%) -) 100%)
BERR (H52a) HE 40,000,000 7% 100% - 100% BEEF hE
CE-n& (CE-h& C2-NE (CZ2-nE
+ZA=+-8: +ZR=+-H: TZR=1+-R: +ZA=+-R:
40,000,00077T) 100%) -) 100%)
IMFSMI (note 2(a))* The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Not yet commenced business
(31 December 2019: (31 December 2019: (31 December 2019: (31 December 2019:
Nil) 100%) -) 100%)
RELRER (i20)* HE & 100% - 100% HABESELEE
CE-n& (CE-h& C2-NE (CZ2-nE
+ZA=+-H TZR=t-R: TZR=1+-R: +ZA=+-R:
' E) 100%) -) 100%)
# These companies are wholly-owned foreign enterprises # ZERNTDARPERINIIEEED
established in the PRC. o
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 B2 - " —F=A=+—HIE+HES
46. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following table lists out the information of Shundong
Port that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) to
the Group. The summarised financial information represents
amounts before inter-company elimination.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. MNHIBATIZIRE @

TRITHEEHAEEBEARNIFER
i (TR ) MIERBHEK - ft
BEMI2IEATNEHE 2T

Name Shundong Port
%8 JIE 3R 7 755

At At
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
NI —%F RZZ—N%EF
=A=+—H | +*E=+—H
Principal place of business/ FEEEMB PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
country of establishment R ILFRTEBI FEHE HRE, HE
% of ownership interests/voting FERERFEN 53.33%/33.33% | 53.33%/33.33%

rights held by NCI RS SRy,

Non-current assets ERBEE
Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mENABE
Non-current liabilities EREBERE
Net assets BEEFE

Net assets attributable to NCI FERERELEEZFE

206 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2020721

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
1,602,811 1,493,058
137,374 104,433
(558,870) (838,713)
(617,956) (314,401)
563,359 444,377
300,495 237,031
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021 & EZ —E - —F=H=+—HIt+HEA

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  46. RHIBATZIRE @)
Fifteen
months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2021 2019
HK$000 HK$'000
BEZE-—F | HEZZT—NEF
=B=+—H | +=ZB=+—H
LE+HEA IEFE
F#ET FET
Revenue & 193,134 129,830
Profit for the period/year . ERE 97,875 31,278
Total comprehensive income for the period/year Hi,/ EAR2E WA LEEE 118,982 28,979
Profit attributable to NCI FEPERG R PR R A 52,207 15,665
Total comprehensive income attributable to NCI  FEIERRE R (L2 E
WA 4B %R 63,464 14,705
Net cash inflow from operating activities BEEHRIRERAZEE 42,146 28,959
Net cash outflow from investing activities KETEMEBIRE R FEE (32,230) (1,178)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities FEZ EEFFEIRE CRHt)
AP EE (65,832) 41,876

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transaction

For the year ended 31 December 2019

On 26 September 2019, Shundong Port, Mid-Ocean
(subsidiary of the Company), LUIER|EZREHBRA
&) (Shandong Shuntai Port Services Company Limited)
(the "JV Partner”) and an independent third party
(the “2019 Investor”) entered into a capital increase
agreement, in which to subscribe for the new equity
in the capital of Shundong Port for the consideration
of RMB70,000,000 (HK$77,000,000), which shall be
satisfied by the capitalisation of a pre-existing loan
owed by Shundong Port to the 2019 Investor (the
“Capital Increase”). On completion of the Capital
Increase, the equity holding of Mid-Ocean in Shundong
Port decreases from 51% to approximately 46.67%. The
effect of the Capital Increase on the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company is a gain recognised
directly in other reserve of the Group of approximately
HK$18,842,000.

47.

(a)
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meRTRERME

TEFRERS

BE_E—NEFL+—-F=+—H
IEFEE

RZZ—hAhFEABZ+8>
BB B (KA KB
AAE) CLUEIERBEKEERAA
(TEELEBM) -8
F=H(ZZE—HELKER T
TIBERE B IUARKE
70,000,0007% ( 77,000,000 7T)
REDBIBRBBER AP
o ZREZBRIBERES XN
TE-NELEFNIRBRIEN
BAREMZT (MEE) o R5Eaig
BB RERIBREAEFNWRER
51% E4946.67% o ILEH AR
BEAEANEHRENSZEANRE
EREMBEERBEIRANBED
18,842,000 7T °
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& A =1 2y e
47. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 47. FERERERME @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) FIEEBRRELENEESE
financing activities 5|
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TERHIAEERERES THE
arising from financing activities, including both cash BrEFs:EE giFHe RIER
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing SRS - RKREMEBETHNEER]Y
activities are those for which cash flows were, or the HEeREdixRREERELZE D
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s AREEREME T IEAR
consolidated cash flows from financing activities. ShEavaEe.
Total
Amounts liabilities
due to non- from
Bank Other Lease  Convertible Promissory controlling Preferred financing
borrowings  borrowings liabilities bonds notes  shareholders shares activities
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEfE ®E
FERRR BEEHZ
RITER HiffER HEAR  THRRAS ARRE nE BRR BafR
THT FHT FER TE7 THT FHw FER TR
At 1 January 2019 RZB-NE-A-H 234,840 210,978 20,747 60,508 - 259,418 - 786,491
Changes in financing cash flows MERERELH (9,496) 37,849 (7,224) - (98,517) (122,536) - (199,924)
Non-cash changes FREEH
Capital injection by non-controlling interests ~ FFERERTE - (77,000) - - - - - (77,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAR - (42,612) (857) - - - - (43,469)
Reclassified from amounts due to non- EFIEERRRAE
controlling shareholders EHRE - (3,817) - - - 3817 - -
Reclassified to other payables ENNBEEMENTE - 26,237 - (35,258) - - - (9,021)
Addition of right-of-use assets REBREEE - - 370 - - - - 370
Loss on early redemption RABENEE - - - - 6,459 - - 6,459
Settlement of deposits received for potential ~ EEFETEHERBAT
disposal of subsidiaries KBRS - - - - 17,800 - - 17,800
Acquisition of equity instruments at fair value ~ WEERATEF A
through other comprehensive income HEt2ARANERIA - - - - 226,060 - - 226,060
Interest expenses (note 11) FISFRX (HaE11) 19,554 10,130 841 971 818 12,879 - 45,193
Exchange difference ERER (4,635) (3,385) (220) - (75) (5,120) - (13,435)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIE-AE+ZA=+-H
RZZZZF-F-H 240,263 158,380 13,657 26,221 152,545 148,458 - 739,524
Changes in financing cash flows REHeEy (94,991) (147,133) (8,003) - (34,558) (40,712) 307,233 (18,164)
Non-cash changes FREEH
Waiver of convertible bond interest BHERR AR
upon conversion BHENE - - - (26,940) - - - (26,940)
Transfer to other payables EEHAMENTE - (5816) - - - - - (5,816)
Addition of lease liabilities REREAE - - 4,525 - - - - 4,525
Modification of lease EREE - - (1,890) - - - - (1,890)
Fair value change on promissory notes AREEATEEY - - - - 5,139 - - 5,139
Fair value loss of preferred shares BERATEER - - - - - - 13.655 13.655
Loss on early redemption of promissory notes {2 AIEEA R EEHESE - - - - 1,788 - - 1,788
Interest expenses (note 11) PSR (HzE11) 19,889 14,932 543 719 6,002 5,410 - 47,495
Exchange difference ERER 11,226 2,606 382 - (1,514) 7,385 12,944 33,029
At 31 March 2021 RIBZ-E=A=+-H 176,387 22,969 9,214 - 129,402 120,541 333,832 792,345
48. COMPARATIVE FIGURE 48. L& E=F

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to confirm
with current period presentation.
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